
City of Lowell
Council Meeting Agenda

Tuesday, May 14, 2024, 6:00 PM
City Hall
101 W. First Street
Lowell, North Carolina 28098

** Revised **

1: General

1A. Call To Order

1B. Invocation / Pledge of Allegiance

1C. Adoption of Agenda for this Meeting

1D. Public Comments

2: Approval of Minutes

2A. Approval of Minutes 04-09-2024 (p. 3-16)

3: Special Presentation

3A. Citizen Academy Graduation (p. 17)

3B. Proclamation National Public Works Week May 19-25, 2024 (p. 18)

3C. Proclamation of National Police Week - May 12-18, 2024 and Peace Officers Memorial Day May 15, 2024 (p. 19-20)

4: Consent Agenda

4A. Finance Update (p.21)

4B. Stormwater Report (p. 22)

4C. Planning Report (p. 23-24)

4D. Police Report (p. 25)

4E. Communications Report (p. 26)

4F. Public Works Report (p. 27)

4G. Geographic Information System (GIS) Report (p. 28-30)

4H. Parks and Recreation Report (p. 31-32)

5: Unfinished Business

5A. Public Hearing - Map Amendment (General, Rezoning) - 603 Groves Street - JPFJ LLC (p. 33-39)

5B. Public Hearing Spencer Ridge Development Agreement (p. 41-93)

5C. Consideration to adopt the City of Lowell 2024 Legislative Advocacy  (p. 94-105)

6: New Business

6A. Presentation of the Proposed Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Budget (p. 106)

1



6B. Set Public Hearing for Adoption of the Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Budget Ordinance (p. 107)

6C. Set Public Hearing to Closeout the FY17 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Neighborhood Revitalization 
Program (p. 108)

6D. Consideration of Interlocal Agreement with Town of McAdenville to Provide Water Service to Lowell Elementary 

(p.109-114)

6E. Ordinance #02-2024 To Allow for a Volunteer Auxiliary Police Department (p. 115)

6F. Resolution to Discontinue Collection of Motor Vehicle Tag Tax beginning FY 2024-2025 (p. 116-117)

6G. Amended Grant Project Ordinance (p. 118-165)

6H. Discussion of Forensic Audit (p. 166)

6I. Consideration of Budget Amendment #13 (p. 167-168)

6J. Consideration of Budget Amendment #14 (p. 169-170)
7: Reports / Discussions

7A. City Manager Report

7B. City Attorney Report

7C. Mayor and City Council General Discussion

8: Closed Session

8A. 143‑318.11 (3) Pursuant to NCGS 143-318.11(3) to Consult with the City Attorney on a Specific Matter in Order
to Preserve the Attorney-Client Privilege with Respect to the Matter Discussed

9: Adjournment

9A. Meeting Adjournment

Date Posted: May 10, 2024

2



City of Lowell

Regular City Council Meeting

Approval of Minutes 04-09-2024

Meeting

Tuesday, May 14, 2024, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

Approval of Minutes Item: 2A

Reference File Presented By

Attachments

Regular City Council Meeting-04-09-2024-minutesDraft.pdf

Approval of Minutes for Regular City Council Meeting held on 04-09-2024

3

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Fpdfs%2Fdrafts%2FRegular-City-Council-Meeting-04-9-2024-minutesdraft.pdf?alt=media&token=cf4a9d5a-a04f-4c87-a98f-e81d7a41c5a7
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Fpdfs%2Fdrafts%2FRegular-City-Council-Meeting-04-9-2024-minutesdraft.pdf?alt=media&token=cf4a9d5a-a04f-4c87-a98f-e81d7a41c5a7
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Fpdfs%2Fdrafts%2FRegular-City-Council-Meeting-04-9-2024-minutesdraft.pdf?alt=media&token=cf4a9d5a-a04f-4c87-a98f-e81d7a41c5a7


** The following document is a draft of the minutes and the not the official approved minutes **

Minutes for the Regular City Council Meeting

101 W. First Street, Lowell, North Carolina 28098

April 9, 2024, 5:59 PM - April 9, 2024, 7:12 PM

Roll Call: (The following members were in attendance)

Larry Simonds, Mayor
Scott Bates, Mayor Pro Temp
Phil Bonham, Councilmember
DeWayne Chitwood, Councilmember
Travis Smith, Councilmember

4



1. General

1A. Call To Order- 5:59 PM

Mayor Larry Simonds called the meeting to order at 6:00pm. Councilmember Robinson was absent. City

staff present were the City Manager Scott Attaway, City Attorney John Russell, Police Chief Moore, Asst.

Police Chief Harrison, Planner Tyler Cobb, Public Works Director Thomas Shrewsbury, Finance Director Lisa

Nolen, Stormwater Administrator Jamie Watkins, and City Clerk Cheryl Ramsey. A quorum was determined

at the beginning of the meeting. The meeting was teleconferenced on YouTube for the public and the

agenda and meeting materials were made public on the city's website as well as in person. Members of

the public were also in attendance.

1B. Invocation / Pledge of Allegiance- 5:59 PM

The Invocation was led by Thomas Gillespie. The Pledge of Allegiance was then led by Mayor Simonds.

1C. Public Comments- 6:01 PM

1. Thomas Lesperance of 721 Overlook Rd, Lowell, NC - complained about his recent arrest by a Lowell

Police Officer. He also stated his right to peacefully protest and his freedom of speech were infringed upon.

He said one of those times was right before he came in the building for a council meeting.

2. Diana Lesperance of 3028 Fallswood Dr, Gastonia, NC - complained about her brother Thomas' false

arrest by Lowell Police. She wanted to know why the officer still has a job and not being charged.

Mayor Simonds asked Mr. Attaway what was going on with this case. Mr. Attaway said it was a personnel

matter. Mayor Simonds said a personal letter needs to be supplied to address what has been done. Mr.

Attaway said that correspondence was forwarded to the Mayor and Council and that they received it as

well. Mayor Simonds asked Mr. Lesperance and Ms. Lesperance if they received it. They said yes and

stated they will read it at the next council meeting.

Mayor Simonds said "freedom of speech is a right and nothing is wrong with freedom of speech but how

we conduct ourselves sometimes things go awry but I don't know the situation because I wasn't there.
5



We're not a court of law, only mayor-council and City Manager. People with the powers that be, they need

to take care of things like this because you, as a citizen, need to hear an answer whether it is good or bad

or indifferent. Just answer the question. It might not be the answer you want but at least give you an

answer." He then thanked everyone for coming and reiterated any and everyone can speak during public

comments.

1D. Adoption of Agenda for this Meeting- 6:09 PM

Mayor Simonds asked if there were any changes to the agenda. Mr. Attaway said 6G would be added to

consider amending the Planner position to a salary grade 17 from a grade 20.

The item was motioned To Adopt by Phil Bonham and seconded by DeWayne Chitwood with a passing

result 4-0-1-0 Abstained by Larry Simonds

To Adopt the agenda with changes to add 6G.

2. Approval of Minutes

Councilmember Chitwood asked about comments on page 9 stating that it says Presbyterian church and

should read Methodist. Mr. Attaway stated that the Clerk types up what was actually said. It was agreed that

although this was said, it is a Methodist Church.

2A. Approval of February 28, 2024 City Council Special Meeting Minutes- 6:10 PM

2B. Approval of Minutes 03-12-2024- 6:10 PM

3. Special Presentation

4. Consent Agenda

Councilmember Chitwood asked about the Police Report. He said he knows it is probably a personnel matter

but read that the Administration wanted to discuss a recent dip in staff moral that had been brought to their

attention. He was wondering what the moral issue was but if it was personal, it can be discussed at a later

date. John Russell told Chief Moore that he can speak generally to answer Councilmember Chitwood's

question without going into anything specific. Chief Moore stated they had some complaints that officers

were not performing their duties or not patrolling different areas and we had a meeting to discuss that.

Councilmember Chitwood then asked about the jump in special checks and asked what that was. Chief

Moore said that is patrolling certain neighborhoods, certain streets. He said in a community watch meeting,

it was discussed that the police would start to specify zones so when we get the complaints that a police

officer is not patrolling a street or neighborhood, they would have proof to say that they are. He said now,

with the new system, they would be able to specify a special check like someone going on vacation.

Councilmember Chitwood said that's what special checks mean to him. He asked if that is part of the officers

job to patrol anyway and not considered a special check. He said it should be a different way to do that.

Chief Moore said that is what they are trying to do with the new RMS System. Councilmember Chitwood said

where he lives is not considered a neighborhood but it should be part of the patrol as well. He just wanted to

ask since he saw the numbers go up.

Councilmember Smith asked Chief Moore how many people showed up at the last zone meeting? Chief

Moore said two police officers and two councilmembers. Councilmember Smith asked how many people

showed up at the Rogosin meeting? Chief Moore said three police officers and nine citizens.

6



The item was motioned To Approve by DeWayne Chitwood and seconded by Travis Smith with a passing

result 4-0-1-0 Abstained by Larry Simonds

4A. Finance Report- 6:12 PM

4B. Communications Report- 6:12 PM

4C. Planning Report- 6:12 PM

4D. Public Works Report- 6:12 PM

4E. Geographic Information System (GIS) Report- 6:12 PM

4F. Police Report- 6:12 PM

4G. Stormwater Department Report- 6:12 PM

5. Unfinished Business

5A. Public Hearing - Text Amendment ZTA24-01 - Article 17, Sign Regulations- 6:16 PM

Mayor Simonds said he thought this was taken care of last month. Mr. Attaway said that was to set the

public hearing for this month. Mayor Simonds asked for a motion to go into public hearing. Councilmember

Chitwood made a motion to go into public hearing, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Bates. The vote was

unanimously in favor.

Presented by Planning Director Cobb. He gave Council an update on the changes that had been made. He

said staff has (please see Agenda packet) for Council approval of Ordinance 01-2024:

Mayor Simonds asked about the 100 square feet and what was the total acreage for a business to have a

100 square foot sign? Mr. Cobb said we are doing 10% of the overall building wall area, not to exceed 100

square feet. with no other questions from Council, it was then opened to the public for comments.

Tom Lesperance (did not go to the microphone but hollered out) "what about holding up a sign?" Mr, Cobb

said he does not know the answer to that. Mayor Simonds told Mr. Lesperance that is not what this public

hearing is about but for business signs. With no other public comments, Councilmember Smith made a

motion to come out of public hearing, seconded by Councilmember Bonham. The vote was unanimously in

favor.

Mr. Attaway noted that if the ordinance is approved that the motion would have a statement of consistency

and reasonableness in it and that it is consistent with the City's Comprehensive Land Use Plan. There was

Removed the section of only allowing one sign per building per street or parking frontage

Added at the bottom "buildings located in the mixed use section"

Removed the section "not to exceed 100 square feet."

Changed the acreage in the Commercial, Institutional, Industrial, Mixed Use from three acres to two or

more acres in an area

Added "signs that may be placed or modified as long as it does not increase the existing to the non-

conformity"

7



some discourse on how to word the motion to amend the LDO between the Mayor and John Russell. Mayor

Simonds then read the statement of consistency and reasonableness (pg. 39 of agenda packet). There was

more discourse on how to word the motion between the Mayor, Councilmember Bonham, and John Russell.

Mr. Russell said what the Mayor read is just the legal requirement but the motion has to say something

that is consistent and reasonable. Mayor said 160D [General Statute]. Mr. Russel said no, 160D is what

tells you that you have to have consistency. There was more back and forth about how to make a motion

correctly from the Mayor.

After Councilmember Bonham made the motion (see below), Mayor Simonds said "that the motion

shouldn't say that it is reasonable but that it has to be the law. The law is not reasonable but is the law."

Councilmember Bonham said "that is my motion and we don't need any other discussion. Do we have a

2nd" Councilmember Smith seconded. Mayor Simonds demanded the Clerk to read the motion for the

public. John Russell asked the Clerk to read the motion if she could. Ms. Ramsey said she recorded it and

can try to read it by memory. She could not recall what was said. Mr. Attaway said that the Clerk records

the meetings. Mayor Simonds said the motion should not be in the lawyers words but your words to adopt

this motion. Councilmember Smith said there is a motion and a 2nd on the floor. Mayor Simonds said he

didn't understand the motion, then asked for a vote. The vote was unanimously in favor. There was some

more inaudible disagreements briefly before moving onto the next agenda item.

The item was motioned To Approve by Phil Bonham and seconded by Travis Smith with a passing result 4-

0-1-0 Abstained by Larry Simonds

To approve because it is consistent with the Comprehensive Land Use Plan and is reasonable with the City

of Lowell.

6. New Business

6A. Request for Public Hearing: Spencer Ridge Subdivision Development Agreement- 6:29 PM

Presented by Tyler Cobb. This is to set a public hearing for May 14, 2024 at 6pm.

The item was motioned To Set by DeWayne Chitwood and seconded by Phil Bonham with a passing result

4-0-1-0 Abstained by Larry Simonds

To set a public hearing for May 14 at 6pm for the Spencer Ridge Subdivision Development Agreement.

6B. Request to Set Public Hearing - Map Amendment (General, Rezoning) - 603 Groves Street -

JPFJ LLC- 6:30 PM

Presented by Tyler Cobb. Mr. Cobb explained the area on the map that is being requested to be rezoned,

which is about 5 acres. Councilmember Chitwood asked if this was the area that has already been cleared

off. Mr. Cobb said yes. Mayor Pro Tem Bates asked how close this area would be to the other property

owners. Mr. Cobb said he didn't have the exact numbers with him but stated the developer will have to

conform to the required buffer between the two areas. Councilmember Bonham said currently this backs

up into their [own] property. Mr. Cobb said it's not developed currently. Mr. Attaway said this is slated to be

the 177 townhomes that Tru Homes is working on with the Planning Department. Mr. Cobb is asking to set

a public hearing for May 14, 2024 at 6pm.

The item was motioned To Set by DeWayne Chitwood and seconded by Scott Bates with a passing result 4-

0-1-0 Abstained by Larry Simonds

To set a public hearing for the rezoning of 603 Groves St. on May 14 at 6pm.

8



6C. Consideration of Interlocal Agreement with Gaston County for Lowell Elementary Waterline

Extension Project- 6:32 PM

Mayor Simonds asked if this was still going to be inside the city limits of Lowell? Mr. Attaway gave some

background on the situation. He showed a map (see agenda packet) of the school and stated that the

school is in Town of McAdenville city limits. He said in the front of the River View subdivision is where

Lowell's main line terminates at the moment. He stated that the county is using their American Recovery

Plan Act (ARPA) funds to do some of the projects across the county. "The school is currently fed by

McAdenville and the water quality and water pressure flow is inferior to the school so they are trying to

take the path of least resistance and extend our city main line down to serve the school. There was a

change to the Interlocal Agreement under Section 8, Operation, Maintenance, and Extensions. Language

was in there that specified that if this wasn't a school, perhaps in the future, that we would still serve it or

anyone from the connection point in McAdenville town limits we would be able to serve. That has been

struck out of the agreement because the intent of the County and the City of Lowell is just to provide good,

clean, reliable water to the school. We will have another subsequent interlocal agreement with McAdenville

scheduled for May council meeting, where we will have Lowell and McAdenville as a party to the

agreement basically because the Town of McAdenville has to authorize the City of Lowell to supply water in

it's town limits when they have their own water enterprise fund." He said Ray Maxwell was here tonight to

speak more about scheduling with the county commissioners for their approval if council decides to move

forward with the agreement.

Mayor Simonds asked if we are billing them [McAdenville] water now. Mr. Attaway said they are currently

fed water by McAdenville. Mayor Simonds said "they pay us because we furnish the water, they wouldn't

be paying us a bill if they didn't. You and I have had this discussion before where you showed me all our

lines and also when the lady came in from the water department and made the statement that 'yes we are

billing them for water.'" Mr. Attaway said he would "have to have Lisa [Nolen, Finance Director] look up

their account to see what is billed to McAdenville if that's what you're saying, but what we have now is a

school fed by McAdenville and being replaced with a Lowell water line." Ray Maxwell, County

Commissioner, came to the podium to answer questions. He stated that "McAdenville approached us

because they are currently serving the school and the line that serves this school is old and dilapidated

and unreliable so they approached us first and requested that they look for a way to fund the school and

that is when we approached Lowell. The connection from your existing system is very short, only four or

five hundred feet and it's only across the school property. Because it is in McAdenville's city limits, we have

an agreement that is with Gaston County and Lowell that allows us to connect the school to your system

but as your Manager was mentioning, there will be a separate agreement between McAdenville and Lowell

to allow you to serve the school, which is in McAdenville's jurisdiction. Councilmember Smith said "so what

we're doing is, the County is paying to put in these new water lines for Lowell to give the kids good water,

obviously it's not good right now, then, to your point, the school will then pay the City of Lowell for their

water?" Mr. Maxwell said "that is correct, we're just extending your system to the school, to serve the

school and then Lowell will bill the school for monthly water service." Councilmember Smith said "so if

there was never a school there, we would go back and not feed that property." Mr. Attaway said "it would

be terminated and a blow off put in just like any other termination line or hydrant." Councilmember

Bonham asked if this is only water, not sewer? Mr. Maxwell said "correct water only, and no cost to Lowell."

9



Mayor Simonds asked Mr. Attaway "what are the sewer (inaudible) to the school?" Mr. Maxwell answered

and said he believes it goes to McAdenville. Mayor Simonds said "it's our system that goes down there and

belongs to Lowell but anyway we don't want to lose the rights to that. With the County coming in and

paying for water lines, that's all well and good but we don't want to give up any territorial rights to our

sewer system because that's a big asset." Councilmember Bonham said "I don't think we have any rights

to that to begin with, but as this is in front of us right now, it is a request to access to our city water within

McAdenville city limits of which we will bill for and provide Lowell Elementary School proper water. I don't

think it's much of a discussion." Councilmember Chitwood said "after the two years" and asked if

Councilmember Bonham had read the agreement? Councilmember Bonham said yes. Councilmember

Chitwood continued "you know it's after two years." Mayor Simonds said "read the agreement, you read it

Scott [Attaway]." Councilmember Chitwood said "hold on a second, so you didn't read it either?" Mayor

Simonds said no he didn't. Councilmember Chitwood said "you might want to read it because we are not

going to ask Mr. Attaway to read it tonight because we should have all read it. During this period time of

24-26 [2024-2026] any monies made off of this, goes to the Treasury Department, the way I'm

understanding. Am I correct? I was bringing it up because you [Mr. Maxwell] hadn't said 'during that two

year period.' Apparently some of council has not read that or seen that and I wanted to make sure they

understood that." Mr. Maxwell said "because we are using federal funds to extend this water line, there are

some stipulations from the US Treasury that we have to abide by. One has to do with program income and

that requirement from Treasury says that you can't earn income from infrastructure that was put in place

with Treasury dollars. What the County is doing, through this agreement, is that we are contributing some

local funds, local county dollars towards this project too that will offset that program income. I can get into

as much detail as you want about this but basically what happens is when you bill the school and say that

bill is $100 a month, and the school pays Lowell that $100 a month, you have to account for that money

separately and be able to show where that money went in case US Treasury comes in and audits our

project. Lowell will then submit records to the County on a quarterly basis that shows how much money

came in to Lowell from the school and we have to go to our County Commissioners and get them to

approve the release of those funds. So, you still get the money, it still goes into the Lowell accounts, but

until we go to the Commissioners and get approval for release of the funds, you can't spend that. Now we

will do that on a quarterly basis and when the Commissioners approve that, we'll notify the Manager that

the funds have been released and you can do whatever. It just has to be an accounting trail so that if we

are audited, we can show that the money was set aside and it didn't just disappear into a black box but it

was set aside and we used funds that we are paying as kind of a local match, so to speak, to offset that

income. It's just a process you have to go through to show where the funds went. At the end of December

2026, which is the end of the ARPA period of performance, at that point, moving forward, there is no need

for you to reconcile with us because the federal grant period is over."

Mayor Simonds asked "what's the need for us to replace this water line? What's wrong with the present

water line. I mean we are billing to the school now." Councilmember Chitwood said "again it is in the

agenda that it is corroded." Mayor Simonds said "you don't have to approve this, I don't care if I read it or

not, that's up to you, but I think we need to know." Councilmember Chitwood said "because it is corroded

and causing poor water quality and water pressure to the school system." Councilmember Smith added "to

the kids of this community." Mayor Simonds said "I hadn't heard any complaints but it's ok, you can

approve this, yes it's up to you." Councilmember Smith and said "so we will just get that quarterly versus
10



monthly and I appreciate you bringing that up DeWayne [Councilmember Chitwood], I read it but I

(inaudible)." Mr. Attaway said "we will bill monthly, get paid monthly but will hold those funds in a separate

funding account until the Commissioners release the funds, say four months, $100 a month, they release

$400. Same situation that you are dealing with the other school projects, I presume, in the City of Gastonia

that's already approved an Interlocal for that project." Mr. Maxwell said yes.

Councilmember Bonham asked "just to be clear right now, Lowell Elementary is being fed from where?" Mr.

Maxwell said "McAdenville." Councilmember Bonham asked "and proposed is from where?" Mr. Maxwell

said "Lowell." Mayor Simonds said "explain to me how it is being fed by McAdenville if it comes right down

in front of your [pointing to Councilmember Bonham] house, where you rent, down to the school, that's

where our water line is, not McAdenville's water line. This smoke in mirrors is a joke and we wouldn't be

collecting the water if it wasn't our water line. That's just common sense. The whole deal is this, we don't

want to give up no territorial rights to no one as far as our possessions, which is our water line and our

sewer line." Councilmember Chitwood said this is not giving it up. Mayor Simonds said "I want to make

sure that we are not giving it up because it does not belong to you or me, it belongs to the whole town."

Councilmember Chitwood said "again, this is not giving it up. The only other question I had is that it says

the County has agreed to provide GAP funds, which yall are doing...you can cancel, alter the project if

sufficient funds are not available. If that happens, not saying it will, who is responsible for the rest of that?"

Mr. Maxwell said "the County will provide the GAP funds but I have to have a disclaimer in there for legal

reasons to say if, for some reason, the County went bankrupt, or something like that, and we didn't have

the money to cover it, then we could say, we're not continuing with the project and we won't move

forward. There is no impact to Lowell." Councilmember Chitwood asked "so, you're not going to come to

the City of Lowell and say let's find money to fix this?" Mr. Maxwell said correct.

The item was motioned To Approve by Travis Smith and seconded by Phil Bonham with a passing result 4-

0-1-0 Abstained by Larry Simonds

6D. Resolution to Designate Chief Moore as the Official to Make Recommendations to the NC

ABC Control Commission- 6:45 PM

Presented by Scott Attaway. He stated this had been implemented before here but somehow the ABC

Commission does not have it on file. He said we are asking, to follow suit with the rest of the municipalities

and appointing the Chief as that designated official. He said it still goes through the zoning, to ensure that

restaurant, for example, is allowed in the area they are wanting to be located in, but the Chief has the final

signature.

The item was motioned To Approve by Scott Bates and seconded by DeWayne Chitwood with a passing

result 4-0-1-0 Abstained by Larry Simonds

6E. City of Lowell Façade Grant Application Review and Approval- 6:48 PM

Presented by Tyler Cobb. He said staff received 10 applications and after reviewing and considering all the

applicants, they identified the following projects for funding, three of which are in our downtown location

and one is on highway 74, total of four projects:

1. 

2. 

3. 

EM Investments: update and paint to match the neighboring businesses for $2500

Vera Floyd Salon: new front door purchased and installed for $1,170

Back of the Moon: improving paint, trim and molding to match connecting buildings for $2406.03
11



4. 

This is a grant total of $6661.03, leaving a balance of $3,338.97 for FY24 and there will be no remaining

cycles [in this fiscal year]. Councilmember Chitwood asked if that means that there will be no grants

accepted? Mr. Cobb said correct, the review and application process is over and the approval is just for the

four businesses. Mr. Attaway said there were two cycles, one was opened in the fall receiving zero

applicants and then the spring cycle. He said there will be a surplus. Councilmember Chitwood asked if

there are always two cycles every year. Mr. Attaway said yes and this is the first time the facadegrant was

revamped and the first time doing the two cycles. Councilmember Bonham asked "is it really two cycles?

There's a bucket of money that when you go through the first cycle I think if it's consumed in that cycle,

there's not a second one?" Mr. Attaway said "you could."

Councilmember Bonham said "this was extended because no one applied in the first go round, so this one

came and people took advantage of it, which is great." He asked if the guidelines are very clear,

specifically referring to the procurement process of getting at least three bids, and having enough time to

do so. Mr. Attaway said "we can bring that back to the Lowell Community Committee (LCC) for them to

study that with that in mind. After this agenda item, we plan on updating them on where this went anyway.

I think it is very clear. It's an intense application of multiple pages but if you all would like to change the

parameters a little bit about the number of bids, trying to find more local in the city perhaps, we can look

at that and take it to the LCC." Councilmember Bonham said "I am not opposed to three bids. I'm also not

against a percentage allowable for local vendors."

Councilmember Chitwood asked "how do we determine how much one person gets, because I see,

obviously all this grant, all this money for it does not cover what they are asking for?" Tyler Cobb said the

max is $2500. Mr. Attaway said the grant is dollar to dollar or that the owner has to match what the city

contributes. Councilmember Bonham asked about the Back of the Moon property. He said "as the building

ties into another building that is not leased or it seems that nobody wants to do anything with it. I wonder

if, as much as I would like to, does the city match funds for that, if it's not going to match the adjoining

space that's right there." Mr. Attaway said "they just painted. The adjoining space had a code violation and

the former Planning Director and Tyler [Mr. Cobb] worked on that with them to replace some window panes

and paint the window trim and they painted all the molding around the top." Councilmember Chitwood

asked if this was the old bank. Mr. Attaway said yes. Mr. Cobb added that Back of the Moon is wanting to

do the trim and the molding to match the whole building.

The item was motioned To Approve by DeWayne Chitwood and seconded by Scott Bates with a passing

result 4-0-1-0 Abstained by Larry Simonds

6F. Resolutions for Approval of (1) the Inter Local Agreement with Gaston County for

Enforcement Services of the Gaston County Soil Erosion & Sedimentation Control Ordinance;

and (2) for the Inter Local Agreement with Gaston County for Enforcement Services of the

Gaston County Stormwater Ordinance- 6:53 PM

Presented by Jamie Watkins. She stated that the two resolutions are to approve updates to the Interlocal

Agreement that has been in place with Gaston County since 2007. She said nothing substantial has

changed but a clarification of both the roles of the city and Gaston County as it pertains to permitting, plan

review, stormwater control measures on active construction sites, and sediment and control measures on

active construction sites. She said this is basically giving the county permission, in our place, to perform

York Properties: cleaning of the exterior of the building for $585

12



plan reviews, permitting, and site inspections in regard to new development. In exchange for that, they are

allowed to collect any fees associated with plan reviews, permits, and fines if they find that a developer

has violated best management practices. She said these do not cost the City of Lowell anything or deprive

the city from performing it's own inspections nor does it require the city to collect monies and hold onto

them to pass onto Gaston County. The county would handle all of that.

Mrs. Watkins said the reason we need these is because there are certain requirements that the city needs

to meet to be able to perform soil erosion and sedimentation control inspections. She said the "city has to

be delegated by the North Carolina Department of Environmental Quality. Additionally some proportions of

this plan review activities require you to be a licensed professional engineer and we do not have the staff

to meet those qualifications. Therefore staff is requesting the approval of both of these Interlocal

Agreements." Mr. Attaway said we have Mr. Joseph Alm here from the Gaston County Natural Resources to

answer more in depth questions. There were no additional questions.

The item was motioned To Approve by Travis Smith and seconded by Phil Bonham with a passing result 4-

0-1-0 Abstained by Larry Simonds

6G. Consideration to Amend the Planner Position to a Salary Grade 17 from Grade 20 - 6:57 PM

Presented by Scott Attaway. He stated that after reviewing the ongoing salary study with the MAPS Group

who is our consultant working on this, which will be presented next week and the budget work session, the

information found on the Planner I position fits more of a grade 17 than the grade 20 as it currently stands.

This is the vacant Planner position since Tyler Cobb was promoted to the new Planning Director. Before we

advertised for this position, staff wanted to go ahead and make the change if the adoption of the new pay

study is voted on. The results of the salary study will be presented next Tuesday, April 16, 2024.

Mayor Simonds said "we're getting closer to the budget, you've not hired anyone besides Tyler [Cobb]

right? No one is in the zoning other than Tyler, correct?" Mr. Attaway said "correct." Mayor Simonds said

"I'm just waiting to look at the whole budget process as far as how much money we are going to be able to

spend and what we really need." Mr. Attaway said "council can discuss that if that's what you all would like

to do but that department is very busy with the development, code enforcement and zoning things that

are going on. Trying to do this going forward and reduce it, so it's less of a fiscal impact on the city."

Councilmember Bonham said "I understand what the mayor is saying and I appreciate that, but

understanding where we are trying to facilitate this position, whether we move forward with filling it or not

doesn't matter, the pay grade still needs to be set. I agree moving it to a pay grade 17 versus a 20 in

keeping the conversation in line with that position." Mayor Simonds said "I agree with that as well, as long

as we don't hire anyone after we, until we get our budget done." Councilmember Bonham said "we are just

changing the position, the salary grade, is all we're doing here." Mayor Simonds said "I just don't want him

to slip it in and hire someone before we have a budget meeting, but that's ok. You're making a motion to

do what?" Councilmember Bonham said "I did not make a motion, but a comment. If you are looking for a

motion, I make a motion to amend the Planner position to a salary grade 17 from grade 20." The motion

was seconded by Councilmember Smith. The vote was unanimously in favor.

The item was motioned To Approve by Phil Bonham and seconded by Travis Smith with a passing result 4-

0-1-0 Abstained by Larry Simonds

7. Reports / Discussions

7A. City Manager Report- 7:00 PM
13



1. Received a draft Brownfield agreement for the old dye plant at 1602 N. Main St that is being reviewed

and underway now with our legal, environmental consultant and environmental attorney so we can make

comments on it and bring to council in the future.

2. Budget work is underway. It will include easy to read and brief documents to supplement the overall

budget available for the public to get a better understanding. Preparation for the budget work session next

week are also underway.

3. An email was sent to council last week to set up a time to meet with them before the meeting with the

engineering consultant at noon at Harold Rankin Park on Tuesday, April 16th. He said he has heard from

four members and asking the other two members to respond on if they will be there. He said this meeting

is to go over the whole process of the Part F grant and LWCF grant the city received for the Harold Rankin

park phased project.

4. Pavement inventory analysis map is almost complete thanks to our GIS Analyst, Todd Stroupe and Public

Works Director Thomas Shrewsbury. They have been doing this in-house to save the city money and he will

bring this report to council in the future so they can prioritize the Powell Bill fund balance on some paving

projects.

5. Public Works Director interviews are underway. Related to that, the CDBG-I (Infrastructure) which was for

sewer line repair and rehab in a certain geography of Lowell. We had tried to add the Lynn St Pump Station

into that but the State denied it. There was a meeting this morning on how to utilize the remaining grant

funds of approximately $800,000. He said we are looking to slip lining more pipe out there and some man

hole rehabilitation. We've done an AIA sewer map project through a grant received a few years ago and

the GIS Analyst is taking those layers and finding all the man holes. He said it's probably at least 50-60

man holes in this geography and they are ranked by some level of importance for I&I or Inflow and

Infiltration issues where rainwater is getting into the sewer system. We are thinking of developing a scope

of a project to line all those or spray line those man holes which will help with our ongoing I&I battles.

6. Police Department is putting together a hiring panel and some written exams this week for the Sergeant

position.

7. The CIP and water rates study is ongoing and the consultant will come to the work session next Tuesday

to speak more on it.

7B. City Attorney Report-

Nothing to report.

7C. Mayor and City Council General Discussion- 7:03 PM

1. Councilmember Smith reported that he had a meeting with the YMCA about coming to the Boys and

Girls Club. He said it went ok and they will be coming to the work session on Tuesday (April 16th) to

explain their costs and the route the city wants to go.

2. Mayor Simonds said council "has not adopted the audit this year from the previous council has never

been approved and needs to be done. Also, this council, when we got elected, we expressed that we

wanted an overall forensic audit for the City of Lowell and nothing has taken place. I'd like to have it put on

14



the agenda for the next meeting agenda to vote on it but I strongly recommend that we do have a forensic

audit. Like today, when I got this stuff from Mr. Attaway... We got this deal where we signed with Trifecta on

August 14, 2023 for $949,000 and by November we already spent right at $900,000 so yall knew then that

you were going over budget and as it went into the next year they spent all this money, $1,987,000 as of

to date. Let me explain something to you Scott, I'm not stupid. You got two statements on here for

September 15th for $34,000 exact amount and I want it to be on record, $34,748 and another for

$196,000 and on the very same day you have two more, you got to have check numbers. $34,748 and

another $196,000. This don't add up and we need to have invoices to show this." Mr. Attaway said "I'd be

happy to sit down with you and we can go through." Mayor Simonds said "it ain't about just sitting down,

this is mind boggling to see that someone had to authorize these checks and pay the same amount twice

on the same day, maybe we got some money coming back." Mr. Attaway said "we didn't pay double for

anything. Again, I'll be happy to sit with you and go through these by the invoice." Mayor Simonds said

"this is yours, this is what you gave me but I'll be glad to sit down with you. In the interim, we need to

have an audit and I want it put on the agenda if that's ok with the council since that's the only time you

can do it, unless you want to vote on it tonight but I'd rather Shane [Robinson] be here so we can have a

full council. But we do need a forensic audit to know where every penny has been spent. If you want to

vote that's fine but I'm asking it to be put on the agenda."

Councilmember Bonham said "giving that we have a third party audit anyway, so you are disputing the

third party audit that we already paid for and you're saying you want another audit." Mayor Simonds asked

him what is the third party. Councilmember Bonham said "we paid a third party company..." Mayor

Simonds said Butler and Stowe. Councilmember Bonham said "who is not an employee of the City of

Lowell, we paid them, the third party company, to conduct an audit. This is what they do for a living to

municipalities, forever, and they don't find anything wrong but you think something's wrong, so you want

to pay another audit to come back and tell you there's nothing wrong? If there were red flags somewhere,

I'd be 'yeah, ok sure, let's go for it, pay some tax dollars'. There aren't any, outside of what you believe to

be true or what you want to believe to be true. The audit before that didn't say anything, the audit before

that didn't say anything, the audit before that didn't say anything and back, back, back, back. We don't

have any red flags anywhere and all of a sudden you want to use terms like forensic audit and write checks

for something. If there is something real and something out there that we need to know that the lawyer is

covering up, the manager is, all this conspiracy and $2 million dollars underneath City Hall, unless there is

something there, why are we spending money going through this?" Mayor Simonds said "my question, like

I explained earlier is when you pay the same amount twice.." Councilmember Bonham said "the City

Manager said he'd be happy to meet with you." Mayor Simonds said "that has nothing to do with it."

Councilmember Bonham said "you'd rather pay somebody to come in to say there's nothing wrong than to

listen to the City Manager when he's offering you an explanation. To me it's ridiculous. You're wasting the

City Council's time on this, you're wasting staff time on this in tax payer money on this. If there is an issue,

there's an issue, if it's not, it's not. Obviously, there's not." Mayor Simonds said "that's your opinion and

you have a right to vote yes or no but I'm just asking the council to put it on the agenda. Do we need a

vote to put it on the agenda or can you just put it on there Scott?" Mr. Attaway said "the rules and

procedures state that the Mayor and council can ask to add an item to the agenda. You do not need a

motion to add. I think what you may be trying to do is straw poll the council to see if they would like to

even consider this." Mayor Simonds said "I'm not straw polling nothing, I just want to know if I need a
15



motion to call for an audit but if you put it on the agenda, that's good, and let them vote on it and I'd

rather have the full council here to do that. I want to have it done and that's just my opinion and you can

have your opinion [talking directly to Councilmember Bonham]. I respect your opinion, but you're damn

well going to respect mine." Councilmember Chitwood said "Mayor, I'd appreciate without cussing." Mayor

Simonds said "it ain't cussing sir, it's the truth." Councilmember Chitwood said "well control it." Mayor

Simonds said "ok (inaudible), what we're going to do next is get that on the agenda for May correct?" Mr.

Attaway asked what he would like on the agenda. Mayor Simonds said to call for a forensic audit for the

City of Lowell, dating back to 2010 to present day.

Councilmember Smith said he had a question. He said "no offense, you want to audit an audit?" Mayor

Simonds said it's not auditing an audit. Councilmember Smith said "that's exactly what it it." Mayor

Simonds said "it's auditing all the transactions, all the contracts, that's what a forensic audit is."

Councilmember Smith asked him how much he thinks that's going to cost the citizens of Lowell. Mayor

Simonds said "I don't know. Ranlo did it for like $30,000." Councilmember Smith said "you're willing to

spend $30,000 to audit an audit?" Mayor Simonds said "whatever it takes." Councilmember Bonham said

"with no red flags, let's throw in another caveat I want every hour of every employee that spends any

minute documenting on time spent on putting the information together for, in addition to, whatever the

auditors comes into, how much time we are wasting, etc. There are no red flags, nothing in here to suggest

that anything was spent the wrong way. You want it because you want it and that's fine." Mayor Simonds

said "I want it because we are paying too much for taxes. I want to know where the money is."

Councilmember Bonham said "you know where it is. It's right there in our audit as it is every year. You're

auditing an audit." Mayor Simonds said "why are you arguing with me? I'm asking for a forensic audit

that's going to take council vote, not Larry vote. It's not up to me." Councilmember Bonham said "it's the

why? Why are you stirring a pot and there is nothing to stir." Mayor Simonds said "you can't ask why in the

real world about nothing. Someone passes away, you can't say why, you say Lord thank you for taking

them and know it's going to be ok." Councilmember Bonham said "fine, count it up and let's see how much

this is going to cost." Mr. Attaway will put it on the agenda for next month.

Mayor Simonds said he appreciates everyone's interest and they should ask questions and that there was

nothing wrong with that. He then thanked everyone for being here tonight.

8. Adjournment

8A. Meeting Adjournment- 7:12 PM

The item was motioned To Approve by Scott Bates and seconded by Travis Smith with a passing result 4-0-

1-0 Abstained by Larry Simonds

16



City of Lowell

Regular City Council Meeting

Citizen Academy Graduation

Meeting

Tuesday, May 14, 2024, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

Special Presentation Item: 3A

Reference File Presented By

To: Scott Attaway, City Manager

From: Cheryl Ramsey, City Clerk

Date: 5-7-2024

Re: Citizen Academy Graduation

Four citizens of Lowell, NC have successfully completed the requirements of the Citizen Academy.  They had an
opportunity to meet with and learn about the City Manager, City Clerk, Finance, Utility Billing, Parks and Recreation, Public
Works, and Planning Departments as well as sit in on one of the Planning Board Meetings and the Lowell Community
Committee meetings.

Graduation Ceremony for the following residents:

Tamika Hopper

Kelly Busher

Scott Wilson

Laura Lovelace

17



 National Public Works Week  
  
 Proclamation 02-2024 
 
WHEREAS, May 19-25, 2024 has been designated as Public Works Week in which we pause to 
reflect on the contributions of the Public Works staff; and 
 
WHEREAS, public works professionals focus on infrastructure, facilities and services that are of 
vital importance to sustainable and resilient communities and to the public health, high quality of 
life and well-being of the people of the City of Lowell, NC; and, 

WHEREAS, these infrastructure, facilities and services could not be provided without the 
dedicated efforts of public works professionals, who are engineers, managers, and employees at 
all levels of government and the private sector, who are responsible for rebuilding, improving, 
and protecting our nation’s transportation, water supply, water treatment and solid waste 
systems, public buildings, and other structures and facilities essential for our citizens; and, 

WHEREAS, it is in the public interest for the citizens, civic leaders and children in Lowell, NC 
to gain knowledge of and to maintain an ongoing interest and understanding of the importance of 
public works and public works programs in their respective communities; and, 

WHEREAS, the year 2024 marks the 64th annual National Public Works Week sponsored by the 
American Public Works Association/Canadian Public Works Association be it now, 

NOW, THEREFORE, the City of Lowell City Council, do hereby designate the week May 19–
25, 2024 as National Public Works Week; I urge all citizens to join with representatives of the 
American Public Works Association and government agencies in activities, events, and 
ceremonies designed to pay tribute to our public works professionals, engineers, managers, and 
employees and to recognize the substantial contributions they make to protecting our national 
health, safety, and quality of life. 

 
This, the 14th day of May, 2024. 
       ____________________________________ 
       Larry Simonds, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Cheryl Ramsey, City Clerk      

18



National Police Week May 12-18, 2024 and  
Peace Officers Memorial Day May 15, 2024 

  
 Proclamation 03-2024 
 
WHEREAS, throughout our nation, law enforcement officers serve diligently and with 
unwavering dedication to uphold the rule of law, safeguard our communities, and protect the rights 
and liberties of all citizens; and 
 
WHEREAS, these brave men and women of law enforcement selflessly put their lives on the line 
each day to ensure the safety and security of our neighborhoods, often facing grave dangers and 
challenges in the line of duty; and 
 
WHEREAS, National Police Week observed annually, provides an opportunity for all Americans 
to express gratitude to law enforcement officers for their tireless commitment and scarifies, and to 
honor those who have made the ultimate sacrifice in service to their communities; and 
 
WHEREAS, Peace Officers and Memorial Day, observed May 15th, serves at a solemn occasion 
to pay tribute to the memory of law enforcement officers who have lost their lives in the line of 
duty, and to honor their enduring legacy of courage, valor, and service; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Lowell, North Carolina recognizes the invaluable contributions of law 
enforcement officers to our community and acknowledge their integral role in fostering a safe, 
just, and inclusive society for all residents; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, I, Larry Simonds, Mayor of Lowell, do hereby proclaim the week of May 
12th through May 18, 2024 as National Police Week in our City. I call upon all residents to join in 
honoring our law enforcement officers, expressing gratitude for their dedication, and recognizing 
their sacrifices. 
 
FUTHERMORE, I designate May 15th, 2024, as Peace Officers Memorial Day in Lowell and 
urge all residents to observe this day with reverence and reflection, honoring the memory of those 
officers who have given their lives in service to our community. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF I have set my hand and caused the official seal of the City of Lowell 
to be affixed this 14th day of May 2024. 

19



____________________________________ 
Larry Simonds, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

_________________________________ 
Cheryl Ramsey, City Clerk  

20



City of Lowell

Regular City Council Meeting

Finance Update

Meeting

Tuesday, May 14, 2024, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

Consent Agenda Item: 4A

Reference File Presented By

To:  Scott Attaway, City Manager

From:  Lisa Nolen, Finance Director

Date:  May 2, 2024

Re:  Finance Update

Utility Billing:

Answer questions from Utility Billing staff.
Provide assistance as needed answering phone, troubleshooting technical issues, and reviewing items for staff.
Provide back-up when staff is out of the office.
Complete water report requested by Public Works Director.

Finance:

Issue purchase orders for staff.
Process and pay bills.
Ensure all transactions are entered correctly and reconcile bank accounts.
Complete tasks as needed for the agenda related to Council meetings.
Complete reporting requirements for SCIF Grant and update spreadsheet for all SCIF related transactions.
Complete required annual reporting for ARPA Grant.
Complete needed documentation and tasks for other grants.
Continuous training for Accounts Payable/Payroll clerk on duties to assist Finance Director.
Review A/P for accuracy, advise clerk of corrections, and review again to ensure all is correct.
Reconcile bank accounts.
Compiling information requested by CPA from NCLM.
Provide assistance to other staff as needed.
Other duties as needed.

Other:

Attend Department Head meetings.
Attend meetings with City Manager.
Attend Leadership Gaston classes.
Meet with CPA from NCLM to discuss needs of the City for conversion to Black Mountain Software.
Attend other meetings as needed.

21



City of Lowell

Regular City Council Meeting

Stormwater Report

Meeting

Tuesday, May 14, 2024, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

Consent Agenda Item: 4B

Reference File Presented By

To: Scott Attaway, City Manager

From: Jamie Watkins, Stormwater Administrator 

Date: 5-3-2024

Re: April 2024 Report

Inspected Waste Water Treatment Facility, Public Works Facility, McCord Parking Lot, and Methodist Parking Lot
in accordance with Pollution Prevention and Good Housekeeping BMP 43.B.2.
Attended the second of three free NIFP 101 workshops with NC Emergency Management.
Made all necessary preparations for the Litter Sweep event on Saturday 20 April.
Attended Regional Stormwater Partnership of the Carolinas Board meeting for first time as the newly elected
Secretary.
Attended South Fork Water Quality Subcommittee Meeting
Began investigating a new stormwater complaint.
Distributed Landscaping Management Industry BMP flyers to all construction contractors with active construction
sites in Lowell in accordance with BMP 8.B.3.
Began developing a “Stormwater Welcome to Lowell” kit to be given to new residents of River Heights in
accordance with BMP 8.B.3.
Began work on the next Stormwater Spotlight portion of the Lowell Newsletter in accordance with BMP 10.B.1.
Continued streamlining and organizing digital records.
Created activity books and NC Bike Law FAQs to distribute at the upcoming bike rodeo.
Designed digital art for a Facebook post thanking Litter Sweep volunteers in accordance with BMP 13.B.1.
Began drafting outreach information to be distributed electronically to past volunteers.
Began drafting outreach materials to be distributed in print with the intention of recruiting new volunteers.
Assisted with Bike Rodeo.
Stakeholder on-site meeting with Willow Creek project group.
Quarterly meeting of South Fork Collective.
Department Head Meeting.

22



City of Lowell

Regular City Council Meeting

Planning Report

Meeting

Tuesday, May 14, 2024, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

Consent Agenda Item: 4C

Reference File Presented By

To: Scott Attaway, City Manager

From: Tyler Cobb, Planning Director

Date: 5-8-2024

Re: Planning Report 

Code Enforcement:

Multiple nuisance violation letters issued.

1 Minimum Housing Case

Enforcement Action:

N/A

Zoning:

Processed (19) zoning permits in April. 

Permit count (56) for calendar year 2024 to-date. 

Meeting regarding Spencer Ridge development agreement.

Meeting regarding Spencer Ridge water/sewer line alignments.

Reviewed Site Plan for Lowery Oaks 

Planning:

HWY 7 Project review 

Attended Lowell City Council Meeting, 4/09/2024.

Attended Lowell Community Committee meeting 4/29/2023.

Other:
23



Attended monthly department head meeting.

Attended UNC School of Government  

Presented at Citizen Academy

24



City of Lowell

Regular City Council Meeting

Police Report

Meeting

Tuesday, May 14, 2024, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

Consent Agenda Item: 4D

Reference File Presented By

To: Scott Attaway, City Manager

From: Jeff Harrison, Assistant Chief of Police

Date: May 8th, 2024

Re: Monthly Report

Lowell Police Officers responded to 526 calls in the month of April. There were 80 traffic stops conducted, however there is still no
citation data while we await the arrival of New World reporting. There were Five felony arrests and six misdemeanor arrests during
the month.

A thorough sergeants promotion assessment was conducted in April. Candidates for promotion each sat for a written test that
covered important sections of our policy manual. Both candidates passed the test demonstrating extensive knowledge of our policy
manual. On the 19th the candidates sat for the in-person interview and scenario portion of the assessment. Two panels of three
members each conducted the assessments and scored the candidates responses. The scores were totaled, and the results revealed
that both candidates would be appropriate for the position. Ultimately Officer Tinoco was selected by Chief Moore for promotion.

There was one officer’s resignation in April. Jacob Springs resigned after only five months with our agency.

There were two offer letters sent out the first week in May.

Officers assisted the recreation department with a “bike rodeo” event the last Saturday in April. The event was held on a day that
Lowell also had T-ball games scheduled. The event was well attended, and many children received free bicycle helmets.

Officer Murphy attended Intoximeter training and has received his certification. Officer Murphy can now conduct his own DWI
investigations and run testing to determine a person’s level intoxication.

25



City of Lowell

Regular City Council Meeting

Communications Report

Meeting

Tuesday, May 14, 2024, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

Consent Agenda Item: 4E

Reference File Presented By

To: Scott Attaway, City Manager

From: Cristy Cummings, Communications Director

Date: May 8, 2024

Re: April Communications Report

Lowell PD Community Watch Meeting and Kid's Bike Rodeo event

Worked with GIS to update StoryMap
Took updated photos around town for photo inventory for future posts
Assisted Parks and Rec Director with transition by answering questions and sending over contacts/vendor
information

Attended 3 day Communications conference in Concord

City website updates
Updated Quick Links on the Homepage
Added documents as requested by Department Heads
Created Edgewood Cemetery page on website and reached out to local funeral homes for direction when
people call us to set up arrangements for their family plots

Creation of social media content for Facebook and Instagram
Event artwork and promotions
Holiday/office closing posts
Other posts to keep residents in-the-know

CodeRed
Updated CodeRed contacts
Sent out City alerts (phone, email, text)

Rogosin Blvd. Traffic Calming Measures Meeting

General
Set up agenda link and ran test meetings for Planning Board meeting and regular City Council meeting.
Monitored video and audio during regular City Council meeting and Special City Council meeting

Attended meetings with:
Staff Department head meeting
Council meeting

26



City of Lowell

Regular City Council Meeting

Public Works Report

Meeting

Tuesday, May 14, 2024, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

Consent Agenda Item: 4F

Reference File Presented By

To:  Scott Attaway, City Manager

From:  Thad Buchanan, Interim Public Works Director

Date:  May 8, 2024

Re:  Public Works Report

City crews repaired the following water leaks in April:

Dogwood St. 2" main
Walker Dr. 2" main
S. Church St. 2" main
Stowe St. 2" main
Lowell Ave. 3/4" service
Park Cir. 2" main
Walnut St. 2" main
White Oak Dr. 2" main

Bulk Trash Pickup:

City crews picked up 15.73 tons of trash on bulk pick up days - April 1st, 2nd, and 3rd

City crews continues with the lead and copper evaluation.

Street Dept. Mowed and maintained all City properties and right of ways.

Repaired street signs.

Replaced 25' storm drain pipe on mclain st.

27



City of Lowell

Regular City Council Meeting

Geographic Information System (GIS) Report

Meeting

Tuesday, May 14, 2024, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

Consent Agenda Item: 4G

Reference File Presented By

To: Scott Attaway, City Manager

From: Todd Stroupe, GIS Analyst

Date: May 8, 2024

Re: Geographic Information System (GIS) Report

GIS and Mapping 

Generated Lowell BBQ cookoff and music in the park alcohol permitted area map for event ABC permit
Developed Lowell Development Projects interactive map for the City website.
Generated CDBG Infrastructure area map that shows maintenance hole risk priority assessments and sewer line
within grant area
Coordinated and mapped Toyota of Gastonia storm system
Provided age, poverty, and race and ethnicity Census information for an April data request
Generated Lowell’s potential development and opportunity map.
Provided housing Census information for an April data request
Generated McCord Family Park mark-up map for BBQ cookoff
Provided water distribution GIS data to Wooten for the future Water AIA project
Generated Spencer Ridge Development Agreement map for the mailer to adjacent property owners
Compiled adjacent property owners’ mailer list for the Spencer Ridge Development Agreement public meeting
Compiled adjacent property owners’ mailer list for the Choice USA Beverage INC rezoning public meeting
Assisted in four Lowell facility inspections per MS4 permit pollution prevention and good housekeeping
requirements
Assisted in seven outfall inspections per MS4 permit IDDE requirements.
Continue to work on lead service line inventory
Continue to work on Phase 2 of MS4/stormwater infrastructure mapping

Other Tasks and Assignments

Worked on ISCS List for GBA
Created “No Heavy Trucks” artwork for the manufacturing of road regulatory signs

Meetings and Events

Attended GCLMPO TCC Meeting
Attended Bicycle Pedestrian Advisory Committee Meeting
Attended Lowell Planning & GIS Liaison Meeting
Attended Lowell CDBG manhole discussion meeting with WithersRavenal

Completed Edgewood Cemetery Mapping Project

Kicked off the mapping project in October 2023
C l d i f i l 1 552 d 101 f il h d i M 2023

28



Completed grave inventory of approximately 1,552 graves and 101 family headstones in May 2023
Information in the inventory includes individual’s names, birth and death dates, military services, society
memberships, and web links to permanent grave markers
Staff is finalizing the public-facing interactive web map which will include information pop-ups, a search by name
bar, military filter, and navigation functions like pan and zoom.

29



30



City of Lowell

Regular City Council Meeting

Parks and Recreation Report

Meeting

Tuesday, May 14, 2024, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

Consent Agenda Item: 4H

Reference File Presented By

To: Scott Attaway, City Manager

From: Andrea Nixon, Parks and Recreation Director

Date: May 9, 2024

Re: Parks and Recreation Report

GENERAL
-Prepared supplies and items for Kid's Bike Rodeo
-Communicated with Safe Kids Gaston County assistance with bike rodeo
-Communicated with vendors for Kids Bike Rodeo
-Communicated and collaborated with Police Dept and Storm Water assistance with Kids Bike Rodeo
-Worked on Music in the Park series 
-Corresponded with Bands-available dates, contracts
-Communica�on with Public Works-needs for upcoming events
-Worked on Memorial Day Service program-par�cipants, layout
-Worked on BBQ Cookoff- recruitment of cook teams, band
-Corresponded with Customer Service-Ball field and shelter rentals
-Communica�on with Communica�ons Director- regarding programs/events and general ques�ons
-Scanned and submi�ed receipts and invoices
-Answered phone calls and returned voicemails 
-General cleaning and picked up trash in park 

MEETINGS
-Site Visit for Boys & Girls Club 4/3
-Mee�ng with MadCap 4/9
-Ci�zens Academy 4/15
-A�ended City Council Work Session 4/16
-Area Special Event Coordinators Mee�ng 4/17
-Lowell Community Commi�ee (LCC) Mee�ng 4/29
-Department Head Mee�ng 4/30

EVENTS
-Kids Bike Rodeo with Lowell Police Department
Saturday, April 27 at 11 am
Harold Rankin Park
(50 youth/families)

ATHLETICS
-Followed up on team uniforms with Essic Sport Shop 31



Followed up on team uniforms with Essic Sport Shop
-Distributed team uniforms to coaches
-Communicated with coaches and parents: schedules, games, prac�ces
-Set up and prepped ball fields for game days
-Supervised prac�ces and games at Harold Rankin Park
-Communica�on with Parks & Recrea�on Maintenance regarding ball fields and needs for games 

32



City of Lowell

Regular City Council Meeting

Public Hearing - Map Amendment (General, Rezoning) - 603 Groves Street - JPFJ LLC

Meeting

Tuesday, May 14, 2024, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

Unfinished Business Item: 5A

Reference File Presented By

To: Scott Attaway, City Manager

From: Tyler Cobb, Planning Director

Date: 5-8-2024 

Re:  File #ZMA24-01, General Rezoning Request, 603 Groves Street, Lowell, NC - Parcel 302742 

STAFF REPORT

Rezoning File # ZMA24-01

OWNER(S): JPFJ LLC

APPLICANT: JPFJ LLC

PROPOSED ZONING ACTION: CHANGE TO INDUSTRIAL (IND) ZONING CLASSIFICATION

LOCATION:  603 Groves St. Lowell, NC, Parcel 302742

TOTAL TRACT SIZE: 18.79

AREA TO BE REZONED: 5.03

EVALUATION:

The applicant has submitted a rezoning request to have the property rezoned from (MU-2) Mixed Use to (IND) Industrial .
Industrial zoning is being requested to facilitate an expansion of the existing business.

Site Description and Background

The subject property includes one tax parcel, currently located in Lowell's jurisdiction, zoned MU-2 (Mixed Use) . A rezoning
application has been filed by the applicant. The current site has two zoning districts. The front of the property is zoned IND.
The back of the property is currently zone MU-2. The overall site of the property is 18.79 acres, the applicant is asking for a
rezoning of 5.03 acres.

Proposed Zoning Conditions (if applicable)

N/A.

Adjoining Properties and Land Use Trends

Adjoining properties are a combination SFR-3 (Single Family Residential), MU-2 (Mixed Use) and VSR (Vehicle Service and
Repair). 33



Attachments

Town of Lowell_20240328_100850 (1).pdf

Rezoning_ChoiceUSABeverageINC_2024March28 (1).pdf

ORDINANCE NO 2-24 Rezoning Choice.pdf

Available Public Facilities

Public utilities (water & sewer) are existing on the site.

Consistency with Adopted Plans

The Future Land Use Map in the 2040 Land Use Plan indicates Employment/Manufacturing uses for the subject property

Conclusion

The request includes an rezoning and assignment of zoning from MU-2 to IND to facilitate an expansion of the existing
business. . Based on the 2040 Land Use Plan, the submitted site plan, and proposed conditions, staff recommend approval
of the request as presented.

Statement of consistency and reasonableness (motion to approve): The proposed zoning is consistent with the City of
Lowell 2040 Comprehensive Land Use Plan and will result in the development of a IND. The Planning and Zoning Board
considers an affirmative vote to be reasonable and in the public's interest.

Statement of inconsistency (motion to deny): The Planning and Zoning Board considers an affirmative vote to not be
reasonable and not to be in the public interest.

34

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F663a7182740e38005528afa8%2FTown%20of%20Lowell_20240328_100850%20(1).pdf?alt=media&token=9f0e32b3-1943-4a12-90db-21c960f2feab
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F663a7182740e38005528afa8%2FTown%20of%20Lowell_20240328_100850%20(1).pdf?alt=media&token=9f0e32b3-1943-4a12-90db-21c960f2feab
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F663a7182740e38005528afa8%2FTown%20of%20Lowell_20240328_100850%20(1).pdf?alt=media&token=9f0e32b3-1943-4a12-90db-21c960f2feab
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F663a7182740e38005528afa8%2FRezoning_ChoiceUSABeverageINC_2024March28%20(1).pdf?alt=media&token=967bda2d-7cf5-414d-85c3-caec1716a5b5
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F663a7182740e38005528afa8%2FRezoning_ChoiceUSABeverageINC_2024March28%20(1).pdf?alt=media&token=967bda2d-7cf5-414d-85c3-caec1716a5b5
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F663a7182740e38005528afa8%2FRezoning_ChoiceUSABeverageINC_2024March28%20(1).pdf?alt=media&token=967bda2d-7cf5-414d-85c3-caec1716a5b5
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F663a7182740e38005528afa8%2FORDINANCE%20NO%202-24%20Rezoning%20Choice.pdf?alt=media&token=4167f06a-aa66-4481-b249-696b0ac78c3a
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F663a7182740e38005528afa8%2FORDINANCE%20NO%202-24%20Rezoning%20Choice.pdf?alt=media&token=4167f06a-aa66-4481-b249-696b0ac78c3a
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F663a7182740e38005528afa8%2FORDINANCE%20NO%202-24%20Rezoning%20Choice.pdf?alt=media&token=4167f06a-aa66-4481-b249-696b0ac78c3a


35



36



37



38



 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2-2024 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE LOWELL 
DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE OF THE CITY 

OF LOWELL, NORTH CAROLINA 

 
WHEREAS, on May 11, 2021 the Lowell City Council adopted the 
Lowell Development Ordinance, also known as the LDO, and the City 
of Lowell Zoning Map to promote the health, safety, and general welfare 
of the residents of the City of Lowell by regulating the use of buildings 
and land, land development, planned developments, manufactured 
housing, development of subdivisions, signs off-street parking and 
loading, planting yards, watershed protection, flood damage protection, 
and/or undertaking other consistent action as provided in the Ordinance; 
and, 

 
WHEREAS, Article 5 of the LDO allows the Lowell City Council 
to amend, supplement, modify, or repeal any provision of the 
Ordinance or to amend the Zoning Map pursuant to the procedures 
established by N.C. Gen. Stat. §160D-601 through §160D-605 and 
upon a finding of compliance with the City of Lowell Comprehensive 
Land Use Plan; and 

 
WHEREAS, on April 2, 2024, the Lowell Planning Board unanimously voted to 
approve a revise of the Lowell Zoning Map to allow for a rezoning of five acres from 
Mixed Use 2 to  Industrial.  

WHEREAS, the Lowell City Council, after conducting a public 
hearing which was duly advertised as provided by the foregoing 
statutes, has found this Amendment to the City of Lowell LDO be in 
the public interest, in furtherance of the general purpose and 
objectives of the LDO, and in compliance with the City of Lowell 
Comprehensive Land Use Plan; 
 

39



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of 
Lowell, North Carolina that: 
 

Passed and Approved this _________ day of May, 2024. 

Attest: 

 

_____________________________   

Cheryl Ramsey, City Clerk 

 

_____________________________ 

Larry Simonds, Mayor 

 

 

 

 

       

 

 

    

 
 

40



City of Lowell

Regular City Council Meeting

Public Hearing Spencer Ridge Development Agreement

Meeting

Tuesday, May 14, 2024, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

Unfinished Business Item: 5B

Reference File Presented By

Attachments

Version 2.0 202022-08-30 - Spencer Mountain - Rezoning Plan.pdf

To: Scott Attaway, City Manager

From: Tyler Cobb, Planning Director

Date: 5-10-2024

Re: Spencer Ridge Development Agreement

STAFF REPORT

Spencer Ridge Development Agreement

Overview:

As part of our ongoing efforts to promote responsible growth and development within our community, we have been in negotiations
with LENNAR CAROLINAS, LLC regarding a proposed project within our jurisdiction. This project has reached a critical stage
where a formal development agreement is necessary to outline the terms, conditions, and responsibilities of both the developer and
the city.

Purpose:

The purpose of this development agreement is to establish a clear framework for the project, ensuring that it aligns with our
community's values, goals, and regulatory requirements. By formalizing our expectations and commitments, we can effectively
manage the development process and mitigate any potential risks or conflicts that may arise.

Key Components:

1. Project Description: The agreement will define the scope and nature of the proposed development, including the type of
structures, their intended use, and any associated amenities or infrastructure.

2. Timeline: A detailed timeline for the project will be outlined, specifying milestones, deadlines, and key
deliverables to ensure timely completion and adherence to established schedules.

3. Responsibilities: Clear description of responsibilities between the developer and the city will be established,
covering areas such as construction, maintenance, compliance with regulations, and provision of necessary
services.

4. Compliance and Enforcement: Provisions for monitoring, compliance, and enforcement mechanisms will be
included to uphold the terms of the agreement and address any deviations or non-compliance issues.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff and planning board recommend the approval of the proposed Development Agreement. The
Planning Board voted unanimously to recommend APPROVAL.

41

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F663a6bf7740e380055289b89%2FVersion%202.0%20202022-08-30%20-%20Spencer%20Mountain%20-%20Rezoning%20Plan.pdf?alt=media&token=a7cdd18f-3356-427b-bcca-90deadd2354d
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F663a6bf7740e380055289b89%2FVersion%202.0%20202022-08-30%20-%20Spencer%20Mountain%20-%20Rezoning%20Plan.pdf?alt=media&token=a7cdd18f-3356-427b-bcca-90deadd2354d
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F663a6bf7740e380055289b89%2FVersion%202.0%20202022-08-30%20-%20Spencer%20Mountain%20-%20Rezoning%20Plan.pdf?alt=media&token=a7cdd18f-3356-427b-bcca-90deadd2354d


ORDINANCE NO 3-24 Spencer Ridge DA Ordinance.pdf

Spencer Ridge - Development Agreement v9.pdf

42

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F663a6bf7740e380055289b89%2FORDINANCE%20NO%203-24%20Spencer%20Ridge%20DA%20Ordinance.pdf?alt=media&token=55850ad8-b11d-45c6-b721-137f25a256b8
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F663a6bf7740e380055289b89%2FORDINANCE%20NO%203-24%20Spencer%20Ridge%20DA%20Ordinance.pdf?alt=media&token=55850ad8-b11d-45c6-b721-137f25a256b8
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F663a6bf7740e380055289b89%2FORDINANCE%20NO%203-24%20Spencer%20Ridge%20DA%20Ordinance.pdf?alt=media&token=55850ad8-b11d-45c6-b721-137f25a256b8
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F663a6bf7740e380055289b89%2FSpencer%20Ridge%20-%20Development%20Agreement%20v9.pdf?alt=media&token=b1a16a19-8228-4ed7-85ee-964b3c51d239
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F663a6bf7740e380055289b89%2FSpencer%20Ridge%20-%20Development%20Agreement%20v9.pdf?alt=media&token=b1a16a19-8228-4ed7-85ee-964b3c51d239
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F663a6bf7740e380055289b89%2FSpencer%20Ridge%20-%20Development%20Agreement%20v9.pdf?alt=media&token=b1a16a19-8228-4ed7-85ee-964b3c51d239


20
'

T

T

T

T

TT

CLIENT

REVISIONS

PROJECT NO.

FILENAME

CHECKED BY EM

DRAWN BY JDS

SCALE

DATE 12.10.2021

N0. DATE

M
:\

Pr
oj

ec
ts

\P
LT

\P
LT

21
00

1\
04

-P
ro

du
ct

io
n\

En
gi

ne
er

in
g\

Re
zo

ni
ng

\P
LT

21
00

1-
RZ

1-
al

t2
-6

0f
t.d

w
g,

 8
/3

0/
20

22
 3

:3
0:

25
 P

M
, D

re
w

 S
in

gl
et

on

The John R. McAdams Company, Inc.

www.mcadamsco.com

3430 Toringdon Way
Suite 110

phone 704. 527. 0800
fax 919. 361. 2269

license number: C-0293, C-187

Charlotte, NC 28277

SHEET

PLAN INFORMATION

PRELIMINARY DRAWING - NOT RELEASED FOR CONSTRUCTION

SP
EN

CE
R 

M
O

U
N

TA
IN

SI
N

G
LE

 F
AM

IL
Y

RE
ZO

N
IN

G 
PL

AN
LO

W
EL

L 
SP

EN
CE

R 
M

O
U

N
TA

IN
 R

O
AD

LO
W

EL
L,

 N
O

RT
H 

CA
RO

LI
N

A,
 2

80
98

PLT21001

PULTE HOMES
11121 CARMEL COMMONS BLVD.
SUITE 450
CHARLOTTE, NC 28226

1 07. 12. 2022 REVS PER SELLER COORDINATION
2 08. 30. 2022 PER CITY COMMENTS

PLT21001-RZ1

1" = 300'

SITE LEGEND
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14

OWNER
DORIS B TALLENT
DORIS B TALLENT
TALLENT DRUM COMPANY
DORIS B TALLENT
EUNICE H CARPENTER & CATHY J SNYDER
GAIL REDDICK BARKER
DANIEL A DAVIS
JEFFREY A LITTLE
TAMMY S SCHRONCE
RACHEL MANN MOORE
FRANKLIN CHARLES & MARSHA B MORROW
EDITH C MAY HEIRS
DOROTHY MAY BROWN
THOMAS GERALD & TERI LYN FLOWERS

PARCEL
136566
136565
136557
136558
135132
135137
135141
135134
135133
135138
135129
135128
135127
135108

DEED
2133-708
2411-777
1891-116
1454-363
4963-030
4514-2463
4684-697
4975-2031
4693-2468
2286-634
2371-490
0010-551
1432-802
4467-1512

NOTE: PROPERTY INFORMATION BASED ON GASTON COUNTY GIS

ADJACENT PROPERTY OWNERS
ZONING
RS-20
RS-20
RS-20
RS-20
R-1
R-1
R-1
R-1
C-1
R-1
R-1
R-1
R-1
R-1

GRAPHIC SCALE
0 150 300 600

1 inch = 300 ft.

NC GRID (NAD83)

STREAM FEATURE

20' PERIMETER BUFFER

STREAM FEATURE

20' PERIMETER BUFFER

20' PERIMETER BUFFER

20' PERIMETER BUFFER

20' PERIMETER BUFFER

20' PERIMETER BUFFER

EXISTING
LOWELL SPENCER
MOUNTAIN ROAD

(NCDOT MAINTAINED)

EXISTING
LOWELL SPENCER
MOUNTAIN ROAD

(NCDOT MAINTAINED)

68' OVERHEAD
POWER EASEMENT

SOUTH FORK CATAWBA RIVER

SO
U

TH FO
RK CATAW

BA RIVER

AMENITY
AREA

PLANNED CAROLINA
THREAD TRAIL. FINAL
LOCATION TBD

PLANNED CAROLINA
THREAD TRAIL. FINAL
LOCATION TBD

PLANNED CAROLINA
THREAD TRAIL. FINAL
LOCATION TBD

SWMF
± 1.02 AC

SWMF
± 0.94 AC

SWMF
± 2.55 AC

SWMF
± 1.41 AC

SWMF
± 0.64 AC

SWMF
± 0.43 AC

SITE DATA

TAX PARCEL NUMBER:

PROPOSED ZONING:

136564, 210660 + PORTIONS OF 135144,
202166, 202774
SFR-4 (CZ)

PREPARED BY:
MCADAMS

3430 TORINGDON WAY, SUITE 110
CHARLOTTE, NC 28277

TOTAL DEVELOPMENT
AREA:
PERIMETER BUFFER:
PUBLIC ROW WIDTH:
SINGLE FAMILY (60' x 130')
DENSITY:
OPEN SPACE REQUIRED (5% OF SITE AREA):

NATURAL OPEN SPACE PROVIDED:
STORMWATER DETENTION PROVIDED:
TREE SAVE REQUIRED (6% OF EXISTING TREES):
TREE SAVE PROVIDED:

± 226.29 AC
20'
60'
422 LOTS
1.86 LOTS/AC
11.31 AC

7.71 AC
± 9.16 AC
13.58 AC
13.58 AC

NOTES:
1. ALL INTERNAL STREETS WILL BE PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAYS

20' AT&T EASEMENT

20' AT&T
EASEMENT

SWMF
± 0.43 AC

PHASE #
1
2
3
4
TOTAL

LOT COUNT
99
133
101
89
422

POCKET
PARK

+/- 1.0 AC TO BE SUBDIVIDED
TO ADJACENT PROPERTY
OWNER

RZ.01
REZONING PLAN

AMENITY
AREA

ROAD 'G'(60' PUBLIC R/W)

RO
AD

 'E
'

(6
0'

 P
U

BL
IC

 R
/W

)

ROAD 'E'

(60' PUBLIC R/W
)

ROAD 'G'
(60' PUBLIC R/W)

ROAD 'A'
(60' PUBLIC R/W)

RO
AD

 'A
'

(6
0'

 P
UB

LIC
 R

/W
)

RO
AD 'A'

(60' PU
BLIC R/W

)

ROAD 'B'
(60' PUBLIC R/W)

ROAD 'C'

(60' PUBLIC R/W
)

ROAD 'C'
(60' PUBLIC R/W)

RO
AD

 'D
'

(6
0'

 P
UB

LIC
 R

/W
)

ROAD 'D'(60' PUBLIC R/W)

RO
AD 'D'

(60' PUBLIC R/W
)

ROAD 'H'(60' PUBLIC R/W)

RO
AD

 'F
'

(6
0'

 P
U

BL
IC

 R
/W

)

ROAD 'I'

(60' PUBLIC R/W
)

ROAD 'I'

(60' PUBLIC R/W)

RO
AD 'I'

(60' PUBLIC R/W
)

RO
AD 'J'

(60' PU
BLIC R/W

)

ROAD 'K'

(60' PUBLIC R/W)

ROAD 'D'

(60' PUBLIC R/W
)

ROAD 'D'

(60' PUBLIC R/W)

ROAD 'D'

(60' PUBLIC R/W)

ROAD 'L'
(60' PUBLIC R/W)

ROAD 'M'
(60' PUBLIC R/W)

RO
AD

 'P
'

(6
0' 

PU
BL

IC
 R

/W
)

RO
AD 'Q

'
(60' PUBLIC R/W

)

13
0'

 L
O

T 
DE

PT
H

60' LOT WIDTH

RIGHT-OF-WAY

5' SIDE YARD5' SIDE YARD

5' REAR SETBACK

20' FRONT BUILDING
SETBACK

TYPICAL LOT DIMENSIONS
SCALE: 1' = 40'

23.5' GARAGE
SETBACK

NOTE: CORNER LOTS REQUIRE A 10' SIDE
YARD SETBACK WITH AN 11.5' GARAGE
SETBACK.

PHASE 1
± 55.12 AC

PHASE 2
± 59.99 AC

PHASE 3
± 47.38 AC

PHASE 4
± 63.80 AC

100' STREAM BUFFER

100' STREAM BUFFER

100' STREAM BUFFER

100' STREAM BUFFER

7,800 SF MIN. LOT

ACTIVE OPEN SPACE PROVIDED: 3.60 AC

LOCATION OF TERMINATING
VISTA. PROGRAMMING TBD

LOCATION OF
TERMINATING VISTA.
PROGRAMMING TBD

LOCATION OF TERMINATING
VISTA. PROGRAMMING TBD

SWMF
± 1.74 AC

20' PERIMETER BUFFER

CREEK CROSSING B

CREEK CROSSING A

IN THE EVENT POTENTIAL
PHASE 4 CONNECTION.
REFER TO DEVELOPMENT
STANDARDS

POCKET PARK

PROPERTY LINE TO BE VACATED
THROUGH SUBDIVISION PROCESS

PROPOSED PARCEL BOUNDARY

PROPOSED PARCEL BOUNDARY

APPROXIMATE LOCATION OF
PROPOSED PUMP STATION. FINAL
LOCATION TO BE DETERMINED
DURING CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS

43



CLIENT

REVISIONS

PROJECT NO.

FILENAME

CHECKED BY EM

DRAWN BY JDS

SCALE

DATE 12.10.2021

N0. DATE

M
:\

Pr
oj

ec
ts

\P
LT

\P
LT

21
00

1\
04

-P
ro

du
ct

io
n\

En
gi

ne
er

in
g\

Re
zo

ni
ng

\P
LT

21
00

1-
RZ

1-
al

t2
-6

0f
t.d

w
g,

 8
/3

0/
20

22
 3

:2
0:

52
 P

M
, D

re
w

 S
in

gl
et

on

The John R. McAdams Company, Inc.

www.mcadamsco.com

3430 Toringdon Way
Suite 110

phone 704. 527. 0800
fax 919. 361. 2269

license number: C-0293, C-187

Charlotte, NC 28277

SHEET

PLAN INFORMATION

PRELIMINARY DRAWING - NOT RELEASED FOR CONSTRUCTION

SP
EN

CE
R 

M
O

U
N

TA
IN

SI
N

G
LE

 F
AM

IL
Y

RE
ZO

N
IN

G 
PL

AN
LO

W
EL

L 
SP

EN
CE

R 
M

O
U

N
TA

IN
 R

O
AD

LO
W

EL
L,

 N
O

RT
H 

CA
RO

LI
N

A,
 2

80
98

PLT21001

PULTE HOMES
11121 CARMEL COMMONS BLVD.
SUITE 450
CHARLOTTE, NC 28226

1 07. 12. 2022 REVS PER SELLER COORDINATION
2 08. 30. 2022 PER CITY COMMENTS

PLT21001-RZ1

RZ.02
REZONING NOTES

Pulte Lowell

Development Standards

July 12, 2022

Spencer Mountain Rezoning Petition

Post Planning Committee

Post Adjusted Site Boundary

Site Development Data:

--Acreage: ± 226.29 acres

--Tax Parcel #:  136564 and 210660

--Tax Parcel #:  135144, 202166, and 202774 NOTE WHICH ARE “A PORTION OF”

--Existing Zoning:  SFR-3 and SFR-2

--Proposed Zoning:  SFR-4(CZ)

--Existing Uses:  Vacant

--Proposed Uses:  Up to 422 single-family detached dwelling units as allowed by right and under

prescribed conditions in the SFR-4 zoning district as further described in Section 2 below.

1. General Provisions:

a. Site Location. These Development Standards form a part of  the Rezoning Plan associated with the

Rezoning Petition filed by Pulte (“Petitioner”) to accommodate the development of  up to four hundred

and twenty-two (422) single-family detached dwelling units as generally depicted on the Rezoning Plan.

The proposed development will be on an approximately 226.29 acre site located on Spencer Mountain

Road (the "Site").

b. Zoning Districts/Ordinance.  Development of  the Site will be governed by the Rezoning Plan as

well as the applicable provisions of  the Lowell Land Development Code (the “Ordinance”).  Unless the

Rezoning Plan establishes more stringent standards, the regulations established under the Ordinance for

the SFR-4 zoning classification shall govern.

c. Graphics and Alterations.  The schematic depictions lots, sidewalks, structures and buildings,

building elevations, driveways, streets and other development matters and site elements (collectively the

“Development/Site Elements”) set forth on the Rezoning Plan should be reviewed in conjunction with the

provisions of  these Development Standards. The layout, locations, sizes and formulations of  the

Development/Site Elements depicted on the Rezoning Plan are graphic representations of  the

Development/Site elements proposed. Changes to the Rezoning Plan not anticipated by the Rezoning Plan

will be reviewed and approved as allowed by Section 5.4-3(F) of the Ordinance. 

Since the project has not undergone the design development and construction phases, it is intended that

this Rezoning Plan provide for flexibility in allowing some alterations or modifications from the graphic

representations of  the Development/Site Elements.  Therefore, there may be instances where minor

modifications will be allowed per the Ordinance.  These instances would include changes to graphics if

they are minor and don't materially change the overall design intent depicted on the Rezoning Plan.

The Planning Director will determine if  such minor modifications are allowed and if  it is determined that

the alteration does not meet the criteria described above, the Petitioner shall then follow the Ordinance; in

each instance, however, subject to the Petitioner's appeal rights set forth in the Ordinance.

2. Permitted Uses & Development Areas:

a. The Site may be developed with up to four hundred twenty-two (422) single-family detached

dwelling units to the west side of  the ultimate drainage line.  The ultimate drainage line location will be

determined as part of the overall grading plan during the land development process.

3. Transportation and Connectivity:

a. A Transportation Impact Analysis shall be provided if  required by Ordinance.  Any required

improvements to Lowell Spencer Mountain Road shall be as required by NCDOT.

b. In the event a direct connection is provided from Phase 4 to Lowell Spencer Mountain Road, Creek

Crossing B may be eliminated.

c. The Petitioner shall improve Lowell Spencer Mountain Road to the Rural Cross Section per the

most recently adopted version of  the North Carolina Complete Streets Planning and Design Guidelines

subject to the recommendations of the Traffic Impact Analysis and NCDOT approval.

4. Architectural Standards:

a. The building materials used on the principal buildings constructed on Site will be a combination of

portions of  the following: brick, stone, precast stone, precast concrete, synthetic stone, cementitious fiber

board, cementitious fiber shake, stucco, decorative block and/or wood.

b. Vinyl or Aluminum shall not be used as a primary siding material however it may be used on

windows, soffits, fascia and/or similar roof  overhang elements, handrails/railings, and/or other

miscellaneous trim elements.

c. The proposed roofing materials will be architectural shingles, slate, tile and/or metal.

d. All residential units shall include the following garage door treatments:

i. wall sconce lighting on at least one side of  the garage door or one large wall sconce above the

garage door,

ii. windows and/or a vent detail above the garage door,

iv. a minimum of two siding materials on the façade, and

vi. windows

5. Environmental Features and Open Space:

a. The Site shall comply with the minimum Stormwater and Water Quality requirements as set forth in

the Land Development Ordinance and municipal code.

b. The location of  the proposed stormwater areas are conceptual in nature and the exact size and

location of  these areas are subject to change depending upon final layout, product allocation, and/or other

site plan elements.  The overall layout and unit count may be altered as a result of  final stormwater

locations.

c. The Petitioner shall implement the following design and post construction stormwater containment

measures subject to the provisions set forth herein and subject to approval by Gaston County:

i. 200 or 100-year floodplain (whichever is greater) buffer on surface waters.

ii. A maximum built upon area (BUA) under 10% in the Protected Watershed.

iii. In areas where the BUA is greater than 10%, Stormwater Control Measures (SCMs) capable of

treating the greater 1.5” or the difference in stormwater runoff  from pre-development and post

development conditions for the one-year, twenty-four-hour storm.

iv. SCMs capable of  limiting peak flow from the site at each point of  discharge to the predevelopment

conditions for the 1 and 10 years, twenty-four-hour storm events

v. A total phosphorus (TP) removal rate of at least 70% for all SCM(s) used.

vi. SCMs capable of conveying the 25-year design storm.

vii. SCM Operation and Maintenance Agreements and Plans should be clearly explained to the

responsible party.

viii. To the greatest extent possible, BUA and runoff  should be minimized through site design and Low

Impact Development (LID) measures such as downspout disconnection, permeable pavements, green

roofs, planter boxes, etc.

d. The Petitioner shall implement the following active construction measures subject to the provisions

set forth herein and subject to approval by Gaston County:

i. The use of high hazard or double row silt fencing along surface water bodies.

ii. Stop valves and additional filtration at the outlet discharges.

iii. Retention basins capable of  conveying the 25-year storm with an outfall sized to maximize

drawdown time.

iv. Installation of temporary seeding and slope drains within 7 days after grading.

v. Installation of natural fiber matting on slopes greater than 10'.

vi. Third party sediment and erosion control monitoring of the site.

vii. Implementation of  devices downstream to numerically monitor turbidity during construction and

provide alerts to regulators and site operators when turbidity levels exceed action levels.

viii. Additional measures such as polyacrylamides, proposed by the designers and owners.

ix. Bathymetic survey and core samples of  any downstream coves before and after construction to

document off-site sedimentation.

e. The developer shall adhere to the LDO and only plant native plant materials on the Site.

f. A minimum of two (2) ten (10) foot wide access easements shall be provided as follows:

i.  One shall be located between lots on Road I or Road J.

ii. One shall be located along Spencer Lowell Mountain Road.

The exact location of the access easements shall be determined during the permitting process.  It is

understood the easements may be used to provide access to future amenities to be provided by others.

g. The Petitioner shall provide a minimum twenty (20) foot buffer behind the lots west of  the drainage

divide line.  Such buffers shall be maintained by the homeowner's association.  Land disturbance is

permitted within the buffer during development of the site.

6. Miscellaneous Provisions

a. The Petitioner shall provide a minimum of  three license plate readers to be operated for a minimum

of five years unless otherwise agreed to by the City Manager.  The license plate readers shall be installed

at the primary entrance for each phase prior to the last certificate of occupancy for the respective phase.

7. Amendments to the Rezoning Plan:

a. Future amendments to the Rezoning Plan (which includes these Development Standards) may be

applied for by the then Owner or Owners of  the applicable portion of  the Site affected by such

amendment in accordance with the provisions of the Ordinance.

8. Binding Effect of the Rezoning Application:

a. If  this Rezoning Petition is approved, all conditions applicable to the development of  the Site

imposed under the Rezoning Plan will, unless amended in the manner provided under the Ordinance, be

binding upon and insure to the benefit of  the Petitioner and subsequent owners of  the Site and their

respective heirs, devisees, personal representatives, successors in interest or assigns.

44



 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 3-2024 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE LOWELL 
DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE OF THE CITY 

OF LOWELL, NORTH CAROLINA 

 
WHEREAS, on May 11, 2021 the Lowell City Council adopted the 
Lowell Development Ordinance, also known as the LDO, and the City 
of Lowell Zoning Map to promote the health, safety, and general welfare 
of the residents of the City of Lowell by regulating the use of buildings 
and land, land development, planned developments, manufactured 
housing, development of subdivisions, signs off-street parking and 
loading, planting yards, watershed protection, flood damage protection, 
and/or undertaking other consistent action as provided in the Ordinance; 
and, 

 
WHEREAS, Article 5 of the LDO allows the Lowell City Council 
to amend, supplement, modify, or repeal any provision of the 
Ordinance or to amend the Zoning Map pursuant to the procedures 
established by N.C. Gen. Stat. §160D-601 through §160D-605 and 
upon a finding of compliance with the City of Lowell Comprehensive 
Land Use Plan; and 

 
WHEREAS, on April 2, 2024, the Lowell Planning Board unanimously voted to 
approve a Development Agreement between LENNAR CAROLINAS, LLC and the 
City of Lowell. Major Subdivisions proposing the development of new street 
infrastructure are required to enter into a Development Agreement in accordance 
with LDO Section 7.15 of Article 7. 

WHEREAS, the Lowell City Council, after conducting a public 
hearing which was duly advertised as provided by the foregoing 
statutes, has found this Amendment to the City of Lowell LDO be in 
the public interest, in furtherance of the general purpose and 
objectives of the LDO, and in compliance with the City of Lowell 
Comprehensive Land Use Plan; 

45



 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of 
Lowell, North Carolina that: 
 

Passed and Approved this _________ day of May, 2024. 

Attest: 

 

_____________________________   

Cheryl Ramsey, City Clerk 

 

_____________________________ 

Larry Simonds, Mayor 

 

 

 

 

       

 

 

    

 
 

46



  

1 

Revisions from previous documents have been accepted below; new comments from B Fisher 4/2/24 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Drawn by and mail to: 
 
St. Amand & Efird PLLC (JSE)  
Lincoln at Belle Grove  
3315 Springbank Lane, Suite 308   
Charlotte, North Carolina 28226 

 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
COUNTY OF GASTON 
 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
 

THIS DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (“Agreement”), is made and entered into this 
____ day of ____, 2024 (the “Effective Date”), by and among LENNAR CAROLINAS, LLC, a 
Delaware limited liability company (“Lennar” or “Developer”), and THE CITY OF LOWELL, 
a municipal corporation, created, organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the 
State of North Carolina (the “City”).  Developer, and the City may be collectively referred to 
herein as “Parties.” 

AUTHORITY 
 

The North Carolina General Statutes ("N.C.G.S.") §l60D-l001 through §l60D-1012, as it 
exists on the Effective Date of this Agreement (the "Development Agreement Act"), enables 
cities and towns to enter into binding development agreements with entities intending to develop 
real property under certain conditions set forth in the Development Agreement Act.  

N.C.G.S. §160D-1001(a)(l) provides that "Development projects often occur in multiple 
phases over several years, requiring a long-term commitment of both public and private resources." 

N.C.G.S. §160D-1001(a)(3) provides that "Because of their scale and duration, such 
projects often require careful coordination of public capital facilities planning, financing, and 
construction schedules and phasing of the private development." 

N.C.G.S. §160D-1001 (a)(4) provides that "Such projects involve substantial commitments 
of private capital, which developers are usually unwilling to risk without sufficient assurances that 
development standards will remain stable through the extended period of development." 

47



  

2 

N.C.G.S. §160D-1001 (a)(6) provides that "To better structure and manage development 
approvals for such developments and ensure their proper integration into local capital facilities 
programs, local governments need flexibility to negotiate such developments." 

In view of the foregoing, N.C.G.S. §160D-1001 through §160D-1012 expressly authorize 
local governments and agencies to enter into development agreements with developers pursuant 
to the procedures and requirements of N.C.G.S. §160D-1001 through 1012. 

In addition to the authority under the N.C.G.S, Sections 7.15-1 through 7.15-4 the Lowell 
Development Ordinance as adopted on May 11, 2021 (the “LDO”) authorize and require the City 

to enter into development agreement for any development project (i) that will be classified as 
Traditional Neighborhood Development Overlay (TNDO) District, Main Street (MS) District, and 
Mixed Use (MU-1 and MU-2) District or (ii) Major Subdivisions in any district where new street 
infrastructure will be developed. 

Section 7.15-2 of the LDO sets forth the contents of any development agreement entered 
into the by the City, in addition to any requirements under the N.C.G.S., including the time period 
for completion, the description of the property subject to the development agreement, all terms 
and conditions for development that differ from the LDO, and the delivery date of public facilities. 

The City on April 13, 2021 adopted its comprehensive land use plan (the “CUP”) to 

promote orderly growth within the City. 

In addition to the CUP, on August 10, 2021 and later amended on March 14, 2023, the City 
adopted its policy for managing utility allocations and extensions to establish sound policy for the 
management of water and sewer capacity (the “Utility Allocation Process”), the terms of which 
are attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit E. 

In addition to any force of law conferred upon this Agreement by North Carolina law 
related to local governments, the terms of this Agreement are also contractual in nature, are a result 
of good and valuable consideration and mutual covenants, and may be enforced as contractual 
terms. 

W I T N E S E T H: 
 

WHEREAS, Developer has entered into a purchase and sale agreement to acquire from 
Belmont Land and Investment Company, LLC, a North Carolina limited liability company 
(“BLIC”) that certain real property located in Gaston County, North Carolina as more particularly 
described on Exhibit A attached hereto (the “Property”).  Following Developer’s acquisition of 

the Property, Developer intends to develop the Property into a single-family residential community 
(the “Intended Development”), subject to Developer’s receipt of all required permits and 
approvals from applicable governmental authorities (collectively, the “Approvals”). 

WHEREAS, the Property is zoned CZ (Conditional Zoning) and subject to those Zoning 
Conditions set forth in RZ22-03 which conditions were approved by the City Council for the City 
of Lowell following a public hearing on April 12, 2022, and which, by the terms of the Conditional 
Zoning Approval, are binding upon and insure to the benefit of the Petitioner and subsequent 
owners of the Site and their respective heirs, devisees, personal representatives, successors in 

48



  

3 

interest or assigns. The Conditions of Approval in connection with the Conditional Zoning are 
attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit C.  

WHEREAS, Developer intends to develop the Intended Development in phases (each a 
“Phase” and collectively the “Phases”) according to the development schedule attached hereto as 
Exhibit B. 

WHEREAS, in connection with the Approvals, Developer has agreed to plan, engineer 
and construct an amenity center to serve the Intended Development (hereinafter, the “Amenity 
Center”). 

WHEREAS, in connection with the Approvals, Developer has agreed to plan, engineer 
and construct a landscape buffer around the Intended Development as required by the LDO 
(hereinafter, the “Landscape Buffers”). 

WHEREAS, in connection with the Approvals, Developer has agreed to plan, engineer 
and construct stormwater control measures within the Intended Development as required by the 
LDO (hereinafter, the “SCMs”). 

WHEREAS, in connection with the Approvals for Phase 4 (the “Phase 4 Approvals”), 
Developer has agreed to plan, engineer and construct a waterline to serve Phase 4 which will create 
a connecting loop of the City’s water main system (hereinafter, the “Phase 4 Waterline”). 

WHEREAS, the Phase 4 Waterline requires an easement from the adjacent property 
owner, Gaston County (herein the “County”) for the development and installation of the same. 

WHEREAS, the Phase 4 Waterline requires the County grant Developer an easement for 
to allow for the extension of an existing waterline (the “Existing City Waterline”) through Gaston 

County PID # 148012, commonly known as “George Poston Park.” 

WHEREAS, the County has agreed to grant Developer County Easement (as defined 
herein) as necessary for Developer to extend the Existing City Waterline . 

WHEREAS, in connection with the Approvals, Developer has agreed to plan, engineer 
and construct a trail within an easement for access to the Carolina Thread Trail (the “Trail”) within 

the Intended Development (hereinafter, the “Trail and Trail Easement”). 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual covenants 
contained herein, it is mutually agreed as follows: 

1. Term. The term of this Agreement shall commence on the later of (i) the date on 
which this Agreement is executed by the City and Developer or (ii) Developer’s acquisition of the 
Property (the “Commencement Date”), and shall terminate on the date which is six (6) years 
thereafter (the “Term”).  Notwithstanding such termination date, provided that the Developer is 
not in default of this Agreement, Developer has pursued the Intended Development, and the 
Intended Development has not been completed, at the conclusion of five years from the 
Commencement Date the termination date of this Agreement shall automatically be extended for 
one (1) additional five (5) year term.  At the conclusion of the initial five (5) year extension of the 
Term, provided that the Developer is not in default of this Agreement, Developer has pursued 

49



  

4 

development of the Property, and the Intended Development has not been completed, the 
termination date of this Agreement shall automatically be extended for a second and final 
additional five (5) year term. 

2. Development Schedule.  The Property shall be developed in accordance with the 
development schedule, attached as Exhibit “B” (the “Development Schedule”). Developer shall 

keep the City informed of its progress with respect to the Development Schedule as a part of the 
inspection process set forth in Section 21 below.   Pursuant to the Development Agreement Act, 
the failure of the Developer to meet the development schedule shall not, in and of itself, constitute 
a material breach of this Agreement. In such event, the failure to meet the Development Schedule 
shall be judged by the totality of circumstances, including but not limited Force Majeure (as 
defined herein), and the Developer’s good faith efforts made to attain compliance with the 

Development Schedule. As further provided in the Development Agreement Act, if the Developer 
requests a modification of the dates set forth in the development agreement and is able to 
demonstrate that there is good cause to modify those dates, such modification shall not be 
unreasonably withheld or delayed by the City. 

3. Construction of the Amenity Center.  Following Developer’s acquisition of the 

Property and in connection with the development thereof, Developer shall complete the Amenity 
Center which shall include: (i) a pool and clubhouse and (ii) any required environment permits to 
complete the project (collectively, the “Amenity Center Improvements”). The construction of 
the Amenity Center Improvements shall occur in accordance with the plans approved in 
accordance with the Rezoning Plan (the “Amenity Plans”) as prepared by Developer’s project 
engineer (“Project Engineer”).  Developer shall in good faith, subject to the terms of this 
Agreement, pursue the substantial completion of the Amenity Center Improvements prior to that 
date which is the later  of (i) the date on which the two hundred fiftieth (250th) certificate of 
occupancy (“CO”) is issued for the Intended Development or (ii) the date on which the first CO is 
issued for Phase 4(the “Amenity Completion Deadline”).  The substantial completion of the 
Amenity Center Improvements shall be evidenced by Developer’s delivery to City of the 
certification of substantial completion from the Project Engineer, certifying that the same are 
substantially complete in accordance with the Amenity Plans.  

4. Installation of Landscape Buffers.  Following Developer’s acquisition of the 

Property and in connection with the development thereof, Developer shall install Landscape 
Buffers around the Property which shall include: (i) code required plantings, (ii) any required 
environmental permits to complete the same, and (iii) any related rezoning conditions 
(collectively, the “Landscape Buffer Improvements”). The installation of the Landscape Buffer 
Improvements shall occur in accordance with the plans approved in accordance with the Rezoning 
Plan, (the “Buffer Plans”) as prepared by the Project Engineer and approved/stamped by City 
Staff.  Developer shall in good faith, subject to the terms of this Agreement,  complete the 
Landscape Buffer Improvements prior to that date on which the final CO is issued for the 
respective Phase in which the Landscape Buffer Improvements are located  (the “Buffer 
Completion Deadline”).  The completion of the Landscape Buffer Improvements shall be 

evidenced by Developer’s delivery to City of the certification of completion from the Project 

Engineer, certifying that the same are complete in accordance with the Buffer Plans. Following 
completion of the Landscape Buffer Improvements, and inspection by the City to confirm 
compliance with the Lowell Development Ordinance (“LDO”)and all conditions of the 
Conditional Zoning Approval, Developer shall be permitted in accordance with the rezoning 

50



  

5 

conditions and the LDO (see open space requirements and Article 2) to convey its rights and 
obligations for the maintenance of the Landscape Buffer Improvements to a property owners 
association established for the ownership, maintenance, and upkeep of common area facilities 
located on the Property (the “Property Owners Association”). Upon such conveyance or 

designation, all duties and obligations of Developer hereunder shall transfer to the Property 
Owners Association and Developer shall be released from the rights, duties and obligations 
assigned immediately upon such assignment. 

5. Construction of Stormwater Control Measures. Following Developer’s acquisition 

of the Property and in connection with the development thereof, Developer shall install SCMs 
around the Property which shall include: (i) those stormwater control measures as designed and 
approved on the construction drawings for each Phase of the Intended Development (ii) any 
required environment permits to complete the same (collectively, the “SCM Improvements”). 

The installation of the SCM Improvements shall occur in accordance with the plans approved in 
accordance with the City, County and NCDEQ Requirements (the “SCM Plans”) as prepared by 

the Project Engineer.  Developer shall in good faith, subject to the terms of this Agreement, pursue 
the substantial completion of the SCM Improvements prior to that date on which is the later of (i) 
six  (6) months following the issuance of the final CO for the respective Phase in which the SCM 
Improvements are located  or (ii) six (6) months following the issuance of the final CO for the 
respective drainage area in which the SCM Improvements are located (the “SCM Completion 
Deadline”),The substantial completion of the SCM Improvements shall be evidenced by 
Developer’s delivery to City of the certification of substantial completion from the Project 
Engineer, certifying that the same are substantially complete in accordance with the SCM Plans. 
Following completion of the city/plan approved SCM Improvements, Developer shall be 
permitted, in compliance with in compliance with the LDO Article 19to convey its rights and 
obligations for the maintenance of the SCM Improvements to a Property Owners Association,  
provided that prior to the date of Substantial Completion, SCM’s used as erosion and sediment 
control measures during construction shall be properly maintained in accordance with the issued 
erosion control permit until successfully converted to the permanent SCM facility.   An Operation 
and Maintenance Agreement for each SCM shall be recorded with the final plat for each phase of 
the development and  completed prior to the Developer’s conveyance of its rights and obligations 
for maintenance of the SCM Improvements.  Upon such conveyance or designation, all duties and 
obligations of Developer hereunder shall transfer to the Property Owners Association and 
Developer shall be released from the rights, duties and obligations assigned immediately upon 
such assignment. 

6. The Developer agrees to use good faith efforts to procure all offsite easements from 
the owners of Gaston County Parcel IDs# 136566, 136565, 136563, 136562, 136561, 136560, 
136558, 136557 and 136559 as necessary for the installation of the utilities, including waterline 
extension through “George Poston Park” water main and force main along Lowell Spencer 
Mountain Road to serve the Intended Development (collectively, the “Offsite Easements”). In the 
event that Developer successfully acquires all Offsite Easements, Developer shall notify the City 
in writing of the same (each an "Easement Acquisition Notice"). In the event that the Developer 
is unable to obtain any of the Offsite Easements within forty-five (45) days following recording of 
this Agreement (the “Offsite Easement Deadline”) in the Office of the Gaston County Register 

of Deeds, the Developer shall notify the City in writing of the same (each an "Offsite Easement 
Notice").  

51



  

6 

7. Construction of Waterline Phase 1; Phase 4 Waterline; Extension of Utilities. 
Following Developer’s acquisition of the Property and in connection with the development of 
Phase 1, Developer shall complete the following improvements: installation of approximately 
6500 linear feet of 12” waterline along Lowell Spencer Mountain Road. In connection with the 
development of Phase 4, Developer shall complete the following improvements: (i) installation 
of utilities in accordance with either Section 7(a) or 7(b), as applicable and (iii) any other 
encroachment or third party agreements as necessary along with any required environment 
permits to complete the Phase 4 Waterline (collectively, the four phases of construction are the 
“Waterline Improvements”). The construction of the Waterline Improvements shall occur in 
accordance with the plans approved in accordance with the City, County and NCDEQ 
Requirements (the “Waterline Plans”).  Developer shall in good faith, subject to the terms of 
this Agreement and the City’s Utility Extension Policy, pursue the substantial completion of the 
Waterline Improvements, including acquisition of the County Easement, prior to the later of (i) 
that date on which the first (1st) CO is issued for each Phase and (ii) ___ months following the 
approval of the Waterline Plans (the “Waterline Phase Completion Deadline”).  The 

substantial completion of the Waterline Improvements shall be evidenced by Developer’s 

delivery to Town of the certification of substantial completion and Final Approval from the 
NCDEQ Public Water Supply Section and from the Project Engineer, certifying that the same are 
substantially complete in accordance with the Plans. 

a. Developer has entered into a separate agreement pursuant to which, on or 
before December 31, 2025, the County shall grant and convey to Developer the County 
shall grant and convey to Developer an easement over and upon the property of the 
County, including George Poston Park,  as necessary for the construction of utilities, 
including without limitation, multiple waterlines, as well as to tie into Existing County 
Waterline, together with all necessary temporary construction and grading easements to 
complete the utility work, as more particularly shown and depicted on that drawing 
entitled “County Waterline Easement” attached hereto as Exhibit D  as necessary for the  
installation of the extension of the Existing County Waterline through George Poston 
Park. and, as necessary for Developer to connect into the Existing County Waterline, as 
extended (collectively, the “County Waterline Easement”). In any event, the County 
Waterline Easement shall be recorded prior to Developer’s commencement of Phase 4, 

and shall provide Developer the right to complete the extension of the Existing County 
Waterline and construction of a sight triangle. 

8. Construction of Force Main. Following Developer’s acquisition of the Property 

and in connection with the development of the Phases, Developer shall complete the following 
improvements: installation of approximately 6,150 linear feet of 4” force main along Lowell 
Spencer Mountain Road (collectively, the four phases of construction are the “Force Main 
Improvements”). The construction of the Force Main Improvements shall occur in accordance 
with the plans approved in accordance with the City, County and NCDEQ Requirements (the 
“Force Main Plans”) as the Project Engineer.  Developer shall in good faith, subject to the terms 

of this Agreement and the City’s Utility Extension Policy, pursue the substantial completion of 

the Force Main Improvements, prior to the later of (i) that date on which the first (1st) CO is 
issued for each Phase and (ii) ___ months following the approval of the Force Main Plans (the 
“Force Main Phase Completion Deadline”).  The substantial completion of the Force Main 
Improvements shall be evidenced by Developer’s delivery to Town of the certification of 

52



  

7 

Final Approval from NCDEQ and from the Project Engineer, certifying that the same are 
substantially complete in accordance with the Plans. 

9. Grant of Trail Easement. Following Developer’s acquisition of the Property and in 

connection with the development thereof, Developer shall design and plan a location for access to 
the Trail (the “Trail Construction Drawings”), including having the Trail Easement surveyed or 
platted (the “Trail Survey”). Developer shall deliver a copy of the Trail Survey to the City for 
City’s written approval and consent to the location, and City shall approve the location of the Trail 
Easement within ten (10) days of receipt of the Trail Survey, which approval shall not be 
unreasonably withheld. Following approval, the  Parties shall enter into a written easement for the 
Trail Easement in the location as approved on the Trail Survey, and the Developer shall proceed 
with construction of the Trail and all neighborhood connectors as provided in the Trail 
Construction Drawings  The Parties agree that the Trail Easement shall be granted and the Trail 
Construction completed prior to that date on which the fiftieth (50th) CO is issued for the applicable 
Phase in which the Trail and Trail Easement are  located (the “Easement Grant and Trail 
Construction Deadline”).  The completion of the Trail Easement shall be evidenced by 
Developer’s recording of an easement agreement in the Office of the Register of Deeds for Gaston 
County in favor of the City for access to the Trail. The completion of the Trail Construction 
Improvements shall be evidenced by Developer’s delivery to City of the certification of completion 

from the Project Engineer, certifying that the same are complete in accordance with the Trail 
Construction Plans, and inspection by the City to confirm compliance with the LDO and all 
conditions of the Conditional Zoning Approval. 

10. Provision of Potable Water by City. Subject to the Preliminary Capacity Assurance 
Review (“PCAR”), Full Capacity Assurance Review (“FCAR”) and all applicable fees paid in 
association with the granting of the utility allocation with the required deadline stated in the City 
of Lowell Utility Allocation and Reservation Policy, as those procedures are described and detailed 
in the Utility Allocation Process, along with the terms and conditions of the City of Lowell Utility 
Extension Policy, potable water will be supplied to the Property by the City upon request of the 
Developer and subject to the provisions of this Section 10. Developer will construct or cause to be 
constructed at Developer’s cost all necessary water service infrastructure to, from, and within the 
Property per City specifications which will be maintained by City or the provider. The Developer 
shall be responsible for maintaining all related internal water infrastructure until offered to, and 
accepted by, the City for public ownership and maintenance. To the extent easements are required 
to connect the improvements within the Property to the City’s existing improvements, the 
Developer will be responsible for providing such easements.  Upon final inspection and acceptance 
by the City and Final Approval from the NCDEQ Public Water Supply Section, the Developer 
shall provide a twelve (12) month warranty period for all water infrastructure constructed to serve 
the Intended Development. 

11. Provision of Sewage Treatment and Disposal by City. Subject to the PCAR and 
FCAR, as those procedures are described and detailed in the Utility Allocation Process (attached 
hereto as Exhibit E), sewage treatment and disposal will be supplied to the Property by the City 
upon request of the Developer and subject to the provisions of this Section 11. Developer will 
construct or cause to be constructed at Developer’s cost all necessary sewer service infrastructure 
to, from, and within the Property per City specifications and the terms and conditions of the City 
of Lowell Utility Extension Policy, which infrastructure will be maintained by it or the provider. 
The Developer shall be responsible for maintaining all related internal sewer infrastructure until 

53



  

8 

offered to, and accepted by, the City for public ownership and maintenance. To the extent 
easements are required to connect the improvements within the Property to the City’s existing 

improvements, the Developer will be responsible for providing such easements.  Upon final 
inspection and acceptance by the City and Final Approval from the NCDEQ, the Developer shall 
provide a twelve (12) month warranty period for all sewer infrastructure constructed to serve the 
Intended Development. 

The City covenants that it has, will have, will construct or will acquire sufficient additional 
capacity so as to meet all reasonably foreseeable needs, of current and projected future customers 
of the sewage system, as reflected in or determined from the information provided by the 
Developer in its PCAR Application of May 23, 2023, as approved by the City Council on July 11, 
2023. 

 
12. System Development Fees/. Within forty-five (45) days following FCAR approval 

Developer shall pay all “System Development Fees” imposed by the City at the time of this 
Agreement, or following the date of this Agreement, provided such fees are applied consistently 
and in the same manner to all similarly-situated property within the City limits.. In particular, the 
Developer agrees that it shall not seek any exemptions for any portions of the Property from any 
current development impact fees (so long as such development impact fees are applied consistently 
and in the same manner to all similarly-situated property within the City limits) for any reason. 

13. The delivery date of such public facilities as may be provided by Sections 8 and 9 
above shall be conditioned on the successful performance by the Developer in implementing the 
proposed development and compliance with all terms of this Agreement. 

14. Transportation Improvements.   The Developer shall (a) improve Lowell Spencer 
Mountain Road to the Rural Cross Section per the most recently adopted version of the North 
Carolina Complete Streets Planning and Design Guidelines, subject to the recommendations of the 
Traffic Impact Analysis and NCDOT approval; and (b) make any required improvements to 
Lowell Spencer Mountain Road shall be as indicated by the TIA and required or approved by NC 
DOT. The construction of the Transportation Improvements shall occur in accordance with 
drawing and plans approved by NC DOT (the “Transportation Construction Documents”) as 

prepared by Developer’s project engineer.  Developer shall in good faith, subject to the terms of 
this Agreement, pursue the substantial completion of the Transportation Improvements in 
accordance with the time frames set forth of Exhibit “F”, attached hereto an incorporated by 
reference herein (each a “Transportation Improvements Completion Deadline” and 
collectively, the “Transportation Improvements Completion Deadlines”). Completion of the 
Transportation Improvements shall be evidenced by Developer’s delivery to City of the 

certification of completion from the Project Engineer, certifying that the same are complete in 
accordance with the Transportation Construction Documents, and the completion of inspection 
and approval by NC DOT. 

15. Sidewalks. As a public benefit, Developer shall install a sidewalk, as required by 
the LDO in accordance with City standards, along Lowell Spencer Mountain Road in accordance 
with the approved site plan. All Sidewalks installed along Lowell Spencer Mountain Road, outside 
of the North Carolina Department of Transportation maintained portion, shall be maintained by 
the City, after inspection and approval by the City Engineer. In the event that additional Sidewalks 

54



  

9 

are required to be installed within the margin of or within the North Carolina Department of 
Transportation maintained portion of Lowell Spencer Mountain Road, shall be dedicated to the 
City for maintenance, after inspection and approval by the City Engineer. 

16. Terms and Conditions that differ from the provisions of the LDO, provide however, 
that any plans or construction drawings once approved by the City shall be deemed to have met all 
applicable requirements, provided that all conditions of approval as contained in the Conditional 
Rezoning and set forth in RZ22-03 shall remain in effect and may not be altered without the 
approval of the City Council. In the event of any conflict between the provisions of this Agreement 
and the Conditional Zoning Approval, the Conditional Zoning Approval shall control.  

17. Only the uses appearing in Table 8.1 of the Lowell Development Ordinance (LDO) 
shall be allowed in the “Single Family Residential 4 District Conditional Zoning” (SFR-4/CZ) 
created herein. 

a. Minimum lot widths shall not be less than sixty linear feet (60’) in width as 
measured at the minimum required setback line per LDO Art./Sect. 8.4-2.  This 
condition exceeds the minimum requirement of the LDO art. Sect. 8.4-2. 

b. All applicable standards and specifications of the LDO shall be met. 

c. Stormwater conditions for design and post construction stormwater 
containment on this project: 

i. 200 Feet or 100-year Floodplain (whichever is greater) buffer on surface 
waters. 

ii. For all projects with >10% BAU, Stormwater Control Measures (SCMs) 
capable of treating the greater of 1.5” or the difference in stormwater 

runoff from pre-development and post-development conditions for the 
1-yr, 24-hour storm. 

iii. SCMs capable of limiting peak flow from the site at each point of 
discharge to the predevelopment conditions for the 1- and 10-yr, 24hr 
storm events.   

iv. A total phosphorus (TP) removal rate of at least 70% for all SCM(s) 
used.   

v. SCMs capable of conveying the 25-yr design storm.   

vi. SCM Operation and Maintenance Agreements and Plans shall be clearly 
explained to the responsible party.   

vii. Developer shall use commercially reasonable efforts to minimize BUA 
and runoff through site design and Low Impact Development (LID) 
measures such as downspout disconnection. 

d. Stormwater conditions for active construction: 

55



  

10 

i. The use of high hazard and/or double row silt fencing along surface 
water bodies. 

ii. Retention basins capable of conveying the 25-year storm with an outfall 
sized to maximize drawdown time. 

iii. Installation of temporary seeding and slope drains, at the top of slopes 
with a greater than 3:1 gradient or greater than 10’ elevation change,  
per the approved Erosion Control Plan within 7 days after grading. 

iv. Installation of natural fiber matting on slopes greater than 10’,in height, 
at a gradient greater than 3:1. 

v. Third party sediment and erosion control monitoring of the site. 

vi. Implementation of devices on the two main tributaries running through 
the property before they enter the South Fork River to numerically 
monitor turbidity during construction and provide alerts to regulators 
and site operators when turbidity levels exceed action levels. 

vii. Additional measures such as polyacrylamides, proposed by the 
designers and owners, as needed.    

e. The general schematic development plan sheet RZ.01 appearing below 
establishes general layout and connectivity patterns. 

18. Cooperation.  The City agrees to cooperate with Developer in connection with the 
construction of the Improvements, including without limitation, including executing, within three 
(3) business days after Developer’s written request therefor, any and all documents, easements, 
encroachment agreements, instruments and plats, which are required to be executed by the City. 

19. Costs and Bond.  Developer shall be solely responsible for the expenses to construct 
the Improvements, which shall include all items defined by this Agreement as “Improvements” 

including but not limited to the Trail Improvement and the Landscape Buffer Improvements. As 
guaranty and security for performance of its obligations under this Agreement, Developer shall 
deposit with the City a bond or letter of credit covering the estimated cost of the Improvements 
(“Bond”) in accordance with LDO Section 16.1-9 This Bond shall be posted with the City within 
five (5) business days of the date on which the first plat of the Intended Development is recorded. 
The Bond may be used to pay for completion of the Improvements as the sole and exclusive 
remedy of the City in the event of default by Developer under this Agreement.  The Bond shall 
auto-renew yearly. 

20. Engineers, Contractors and Consultants.  The parties acknowledge that Developer 
shall have the right to engage, consult and otherwise use engineers, contractors and consultants, 
including but not limited to the Project Engineer, without the consent or release of the City, in 
order to complete the Improvements.  

21. Development Standards.  Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, City 
acknowledges and agrees that Developer’s completion of the Improvements in accordance with 

56



  

11 

the Plans, shall be subject to all faults and defects and without any expressed, implied or statutory 
warranties or representations of any kind, and Developer hereby disclaims any such 
representations and warranties.   

22. Notices. All notices required or desired to be given under this Agreement shall be 
in writing and either (a) hand-delivered, (b) sent by certified mail, return receipt requested, (c) sent 
via FedEx or similar overnight service, or (d) sent via electronic mail, so long as notice is also 
provided through either method (a), (b) or (c) as herein described.  All notices shall be addressed 
to the party being noticed, and shall be deemed to have been given (i) when delivered, if by hand 
delivery, (ii) three (3) business days after deposit in a U.S. Post Office or official letter box, if sent 
by certified mail, (iii) one (1) business day after timely deposited in a FedEx or similar overnight 
service depository, or (iv) upon transmission by sender if sent via electronic mail. All notices shall 
be delivered or sent prepaid for the specified service by the party giving notice, and shall be 
addressed as follows: 

CITY: City of Lowell 
 ____________________ 

____________________ 
____________________ 
____________________ 
 

 
LENNAR:  LENNAR CAROLINAS, LLC 

6701 Carmel Road, Suite 425 
Charlotte, NC 28226  
Attn: Mark Henninger 
E-Mail: mark.henninger@lennar.com  

 
Copy To: LENNAR CORPORATION  

700 NW 107th Avenue - 4th Floor 
Miami, Florida 33172 
Attn: General Counsel 
E-Mail: mark.sustana@lennar.com  
 

Copy To: ST. AMAND & EFIRD, PLLC 
3315 Springbank Lane, Suite 308 
Charlotte, NC  28226 
Telephone No.:  (704) 837-2670 
Attn:  Scott Efird 
E-Mail:  sefird@stamand-efird.com  

23. Other Approvals. To the extent that any county or other local government, state or 
federal approvals are required in connection with the Improvements, City shall use reasonable 
efforts to assist Developer in obtaining such approvals. 

24. Inspection, Default and Remedies. During the Term of this Agreement the City 
shall have the right to enter the premises in order to conduct reasonable inspections, including 
inspections necessary to confirm or assure Developer’s compliance with the terms of this 

57

mailto:mark.henninger@lennar.com
mailto:mark.sustana@lennar.com
mailto:sefird@stamand-efird.com


  

12 

Agreement. In addition to any other remedies provided herein, the City shall have the right to 
withhold permit or other approvals in the event of material noncompliance with the terms of this 
Agreement. City shall take no action with respect to a default by Developer until the non-defaulting 
party has given written notice to the defaulting party and the defaulting party has failed to cure the 
default within thirty (30) days after receipt of such notice (the “Cure Period”). 

25. Relationship of the Parties. This Agreement creates a contractual relationship 
between the parties. This Agreement shall not be interpreted or construed to create the relationship 
of master/servant, principal/agent, association, partnership, joint venture, or any other relationship 
where one party may be held responsible for acts of the other party. This Agreement does not 
impose any partnership obligation or liability upon either party. Further, this Agreement is not 
intended to create, nor does it create, a relationship whereby the conduct of Developer constitutes 
"state action" for any purposes. The Parties agree and acknowledge that pursuant to N.C. Gen. 
Stat. § 160D-1006(c), the City will be responsible for the overall administration of the Agreement. 

26. Acquisition Contingency. The Parties hereby acknowledge, affirm and understand 
that as of the Effective Date of this Agreement, Developer has not yet acquired the Property and 
is not the record owner thereof. As a result, the Parties hereby agree, covenant, and acknowledge 
that the obligations of the Parties hereunder shall be expressly conditioned upon Developer’s 

acquisition of the Property and taking record title thereto. In the event that the purchase and sale 
agreement is terminated and Developer does not acquire the Property, then Developer shall deliver 
written notice to the County the City and upon delivery thereof, this Agreement shall automatically 
terminate and the Parties shall be released from any obligations hereunder and any Bond paid shall 
be promptly returned to Developer.  

27. Official Act. This Agreement constitutes an official act of the City and has been 
adopted following procedures required by applicable law. 

28. Enforceability. The unenforceability or invalidity of any particular provision of this 
Agreement, in whole or in part, shall not affect the enforceability and validity of the remainder of 
this Agreement. 

29. Entire Agreement. This Agreement, together with other writings signed by the 
parties expressly stated to be supplementary hereto and together with any instruments to be 
executed and delivered pursuant to this Agreement, constitutes the entire agreement between the 
parties and supersedes all prior understandings and writing, and may be changed only by a writing 
signed by the parties hereto. 

30. Applicable Laws. This Agreement shall be governed and construed under the laws 
of the State of North Carolina. 

31. Binding Effect.  This Agreement shall run with title to the Property and shall be 
binding on all persons having any right, title or interest therein.  ESTABLISH TIME PERIOD 
FOR COMPLETION  AND CONSTRUCTION PER 7.15-2 (A) 

32. Estoppel. Each party agrees, from time to time, within thirty (30) days after request 
of another party, to deliver to the requesting party or such party's designee, an estoppel certificate 
stating that this Agreement is in full force and effect, the unexpired term of this Agreement, and 
whether or not, to such party's knowledge, there are any existing defaults or matters which, with 

58



  

13 

the passage of time, would become defaults under this Agreement. It is understood and agreed that 
the party's obligations to furnish such estoppel certificates in a timely fashion is a material 
inducement for execution of this Agreement. 

33. Assignment. Notwithstanding the forgoing, the Parties agree that Developer, or any 
subsequent developer, shall be entitled to assign and delegate the rights and duties of the Developer 
under this Agreement (the “Developer Rights”) to a subsequent purchaser of all or any portion of 

the Property. Such assignment shall be evidenced by a recorded assignment and assumption of 
development rights (the “Assignment of Developer Rights”), executed by the Parties and the 

subsequent purchaser, and shall be effective as the date of recording in the Office of the Register 
of Deeds for Gaston County. The Parties acknowledge and agree that any such assignment or 
transfer by the developer of the Developer Rights shall be non-recourse as to the assigning 
developer. From and after the effective date of the Assignment of Developer Rights, the assigning 
developer shall be released from all responsibility or liability under this Agreement. 

34. Waiver.  No waiver of any breach of any covenant or provision herein contained 
shall be deemed a waiver of any preceding or succeeding breach thereof, or of any other covenant 
or provision herein contained.  No extension of time for performance of any obligation or act shall 
be deemed an extension of time for performance of any other obligation or act. 

35. Severability.  If any term, covenant or condition of this Easement Agreement or the 
application thereof to any person or circumstance shall, to any extent, be illegal, invalid or 
unenforceable, the remainder of this Easement Agreement shall not be affected thereby and shall 
be valid and enforceable to the full extent permitted by law. 

36. Force Majeure.  In the event that the performance by either party of any of its 
obligations hereunder is delayed by natural disaster, adverse weather, acts of God, terrorist activity, 
war, labor dispute, pandemic, epidemic, governmental delay or other matter beyond the control of 
such party, without such party’s fault or negligence, (“Force Majeure”) then the deadline for 

completion of such obligation shall be extended by a like number of days.  
 
37. Execution of Agreement. This Agreement may be executed in multiple parts as 

originals or by facsimile or scanned copies of executed originals and may further be executed by 
counterpart signature pages. 

30. Recordation. Pursuant to NCGS §160D- 1011 and Section 7.15-3(F) of the LDO, 
this Agreement shall be recorded by the Developer with the Gaston County Register of Deeds 
within 14 days of the date of execution by the Developer and the City.   

59



  

14 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Developer has caused this Agreement to be duly executed 
and sealed pursuant to proper authority as of the day and year first above written. 

LENNAR CAROLINAS, LLC,  
a Delaware limited liability company 
 
By:       
Name: Mark Henninger 
Title: Vice President 
 

 
  

  
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
  
COUNTY OF __________________ 
 
 I certify that the following person personally appeared before me this day, each 
acknowledging to me that he or she voluntarily signed the foregoing document for the purpose stated 
therein and in the capacity indicated: Mark Henninger as Vice President of Lennar Carolinas, LLC. 
         
 
Date:              
 Official Signature of Notary Public 
 

  
Notary printed or typed name 

  
[OFFICIAL SEAL]     My commission expires:________________ 
 

 

60



  

15 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City caused this Agreement to be duly executed and 
sealed pursuant to proper authority as of the day and year first above written. 

CITY OF LOWELL, 
NORTH CAROLINA 
 
BY: ______________________________ 
 
Name: ____________________________ 
 
Title: _____________________________ 
 
 

ATTEST 
 
 
BY: ______________________________ 
 
Name: ____________________________ 
 
Title: _____________________________ 
 

 
 
 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
COUNTY OF       
 
 I, a Notary Public of such County and State, certify that _________________________ 
and ____________________ personally appeared before me this day, each acknowledging to me 
that they are the _____________________ and ___________________, of the City of Lowell, 
North Carolina, and that by authority duly given and as the act of the City of Lowell, North 
Carolina, the foregoing document was signed in the City’s name by such 

_____________________, sealed with its corporate seal and attested by such 
___________________________. 
 
Date:              
 Official Signature of Notary Public 
 

  
Notary printed or typed name 

 
[OFFICIAL SEAL/STAMP]    My commission expires:________________ 
  

61



  

16 
62



 

17 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

PROPERTY 
 

BEING ALL OF “TRACT 1” as shown on that plat entitled “SPENCER MOUNTAIN 

RECOMBINATION PLAT” prepared by The John R. McAdams Company, Inc. , dated November 
13, 2023 and recorded February 1, 2024 in Book 102, Pages 116-121, in the Office of the Register 
of Deeds for Gaston County, North Carolina. 
  

63



64



65



66



67



68



69



  

 

 
EXHIBIT B 

 
DEVELOPMENT SCHEDULE 

 

 
 

  

70



  

 

EXHIBIT C 
 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
 

  

71



 

 

 

Planning Department 

  

September 14, 2022 
 
The Pulte Group 
c/o Mellissa Oliver  
11121 Carmel Commons Blvd 
Suite 450 
Charlotte, NC  28226 
  

Dear Ms. Oliver: 

On September 14, 2022, the Lowell City Council voted to approve your request (File # RZ22-03) to 
conditionally rezone approximately 226 acres from SFR-2 & SFR-3 (Single-Family Residential 2 & 
3) to SFR-4 CZ (Single-Family Residential 4, Conditional Zoning District).  The approval is for the 
development of a single-family residential subdivision and is subject to a list of conditions and the 
Lowell Development Ordinance.  The properties are known by tax parcel identification number(s) 
13564, 210660, and portions of 135144, 202166 and 202774.  The SFR-4 CZ (Single-Family 
Residential 4, Conditional Zoning District) zoning is now effective as requested in the application. 

Next Steps – Development Agreement 

Due to the size and scope of the proposed development, this project will be subject Section 7.15 
Development Agreements. Per subsection 7.15-3(F.) The development agreement shall be recorded 
in the office of the Register of Deeds of the county in which the subject property is located within 
fourteen (14) days of execution and prior to the issuance of any development permits authorizing 
development activities to commence. Please note that this process will include a public hearing.  

Please feel free to contact me with any questions.  I can be reached at 704-617-0141 or via email at 
jgates@lowellnc.com. 

 Sincerely, 

 Joe Gates 

 Joe Gates, CZO 

Planning Director 

  

enclosure 

City of Lowell 
101 W. First Street 
Lowell, North Carolina 28098 

Phone: 704-824-3518 
www.lowellnc.com 

72

https://www.lowellnc.com/documents/article-7-permits-and-procedures/
https://www.lowellnc.com/documents/article-7-permits-and-procedures/
mailto:jgates@lowellnc.com


  

  

  

  

  

cc:  Belmont Land & Investment CO 

Attn: Bill Carstarphen 

PO Box 1939 

McAdenville, NC  28101-1939 

  

Moore & Van Allen 

c/o Bridget Grant 

100 North Tryon Street 

Suite 4700 

Charlotte, NC 28202-4003 

 

 

 

73



City of Lowell Conditional Zoning # RZ22-03 Planning Department 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
CONDITIONAL ZONING 

RZ22-03 
 

CITY OF LOWELL 
GASTON COUNTY  

NORTH CAROLINA 
 

 KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, THAT The Pulte Group., having applied to 

the City of Lowell to establish a Conditional Zoning designation on the property hereinafter 

described, and said zoning designation having been granted by the Lowell City Council on 

September 13, 2022 the terms of said Conditional Zoning being as follows:  

 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PREMISES 
 
Location: East and west side of Lowell Spencer Mountain Rd, just north of George Poston Park. 

Street Address: Lowell Spencer Mountain Rd 

Tax Map Reference Number(s): 136564, 210660 and a portion of 135144, 202166 and 202774 

 
SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 
Zoning Classification: SFR-4 (CZ-2022-03) (Single-Family Residential 4) 
 
Conditions: 

1. General Provisions: 
a. Site Location. These Development Standards form a part of the Rezoning Plan 
associated with the Rezoning Petition filed by Pulte (“Petitioner”) to accommodate the 

development of up to four hundred and twenty-two (422) single-family detached 
dwelling units as generally depicted on the Rezoning Plan. The proposed development 
will be on an approximately 226.29 acre site located on Spencer Mountain Road (the 
"Site"). 
b. Zoning Districts/Ordinance. Development of the Site will be governed by the 
Rezoning Plan as well as the applicable provisions of the Lowell Land Development 
Code (the “Ordinance”). Unless the Rezoning Plan establishes more stringent 
standards, the regulations established under the Ordinance for the SFR-4 zoning 
classification shall govern. 
c. Graphics and Alterations. The schematic depictions lots, sidewalks, structures and 
buildings, building elevations, driveways, streets and other development matters and 
site elements (collectively the “Development/Site Elements”) set forth on the Rezoning 

Plan should be reviewed in conjunction with the provisions of these Development 
Standards. The layout, locations, sizes and formulations of the Development/Site 
Elements depicted on the Rezoning Plan are graphic representations of the 
Development/Site elements proposed. Changes to the Rezoning Plan not anticipated by 
the Rezoning Plan will be reviewed and approved as allowed by Section 5.4-3(F) of the 
Ordinance. Since the project has not undergone the design development and 
construction phases, it is intended that this Rezoning Plan provide for flexibility in 
allowing some alterations or modifications from the graphic representations of the 
Development/Site Elements. Therefore, there may be instances where minor 
modifications will be allowed per the Ordinance. These instances would include 
changes to graphics if they are minor and don't materially change the overall design 
intent depicted on the Rezoning Plan. The Planning Director will determine if such 

74



City of Lowell Conditional Zoning # RZ22-03 Planning Department 

minor modifications are allowed and if it is determined that the alteration does not meet 
the criteria described above, the Petitioner shall then follow the Ordinance; in 
each instance, however, subject to the Petitioner's appeal rights set forth in the 
Ordinance. 

2. Permitted Uses & Development Areas: 
a. The Site may be developed with up to four hundred twenty-two (422) single-family 
detached dwelling units to the west side of the ultimate drainage line. The ultimate 
drainage line location will be determined as part of the overall grading plan during the 
land development process. 

3. Transportation and Connectivity: 
a. A Transportation Impact Analysis shall be provided if required by Ordinance. Any 
required improvements to Lowell Spencer Mountain Road shall be as required by 
NCDOT. 
b. In the event a direct connection is provided from Phase 4 to Lowell Spencer 
Mountain Road, Creek Crossing B may be eliminated. 
c. The Petitioner shall improve Lowell Spencer Mountain Road to the Rural Cross 
Section per the most recently adopted version of the North Carolina Complete Streets 
Planning and Design Guidelines subject to the recommendations of the Traffic Impact 
Analysis and NCDOT approval. 

4. Architectural Standards: 
a. The building materials used on the principal buildings constructed on Site will be a 
combination of portions of the following: brick, stone, precast stone, precast concrete, 
synthetic stone, cementitious fiber board, cementitious fiber shake, stucco, decorative 
block and/or wood. 
b. Vinyl or Aluminum shall not be used as a primary siding material however it may be 
used on windows, soffits, fascia and/or similar roof overhang elements, 
handrails/railings, and/or other miscellaneous trim elements. 
c. The proposed roofing materials will be architectural shingles, slate, tile and/or metal. 
d. All residential units shall include the following garage door treatments: 

i. wall sconce lighting on at least one side of the garage door or one large wall 
sconce above the garage door, 
ii. windows and/or a vent detail above the garage door, 
iv. a minimum of two siding materials on the façade, and 
vi. windows 

5. Environmental Features and Open Space: 
a. The Site shall comply with the minimum Stormwater and Water Quality 
requirements as set forth in the Land Development Ordinance and municipal code. 
b. The location of the proposed stormwater areas are conceptual in nature and the exact 
size and location of these areas are subject to change depending upon final layout, 
product allocation, and/or other site plan elements. The overall layout and unit count 
may be altered as a result of final stormwater locations. 
c. The Petitioner shall implement the following design and post construction 
stormwater containment measures subject to the provisions set forth herein and subject 
to approval by Gaston County: 

i. 200 or 100-year floodplain (whichever is greater) buffer on surface waters. 
ii. A maximum built upon area (BUA) under 10% in the Protected Watershed. 
iii. In areas where the BUA is greater than 10%, Stormwater Control Measures 
(SCMs) capable of treating the greater 1.5” or the difference in stormwater 

runoff from pre-development and post development conditions for the one-
year, twenty-four-hour storm. 
iv. SCMs capable of limiting peak flow from the site at each point of discharge 
to the predevelopment conditions for the 1 and 10 years, twenty-four-hour 
storm events 
v. A total phosphorus (TP) removal rate of at least 70% for all SCM(s) used. 
vi. SCMs capable of conveying the 25-year design storm. 
vii. SCM Operation and Maintenance Agreements and Plans should be clearly 
explained to the responsible party. 
viii. To the greatest extent possible, BUA and runoff should be minimized 
through site design and Low Impact Development (LID) measures such as 
downspout disconnection, permeable pavements, green 
roofs, planter boxes, etc. 

d. The Petitioner shall implement the following active construction measures subject 
to the provisions 75



City of Lowell Conditional Zoning # RZ22-03 Planning Department 

set forth herein and subject to approval by Gaston County: 
i. The use of high hazard or double row silt fencing along surface water 
bodies. 
ii. Stop valves and additional filtration at the outlet discharges. 
iii. Retention basins capable of conveying the 25-year storm with an outfall 
sized to maximize drawdown time. 
iv. Installation of temporary seeding and slope drains within 7 days after 
grading. 
v. Installation of natural fiber matting on slopes greater than 10'. 
vi. Third party sediment and erosion control monitoring of the site. 
vii. Implementation of devices downstream to numerically monitor turbidity 
during construction and provide alerts to regulators and site operators when 
turbidity levels exceed action levels. 
viii. Additional measures such as polyacrylamides, proposed by the designers 
and owners. 
ix. Bathymetic survey and core samples of any downstream coves before and 
after construction to document off-site sedimentation. 

e. The developer shall adhere to the LDO and only plant native plant materials on the 
Site. 
f. A minimum of two (2) ten (10) foot wide access easements shall be provided as 
follows: 

i. One shall be located between lots on Road I or Road J. 
ii. One shall be located along Spencer Lowell Mountain Road. 
The exact location of the access easements shall be determined during the 
permitting process. It is understood the easements may be used to provide 
access to future amenities to be provided by others. 

g. The Petitioner shall provide a minimum twenty (20) foot buffer behind the lots 
west of the drainage divide line. Such buffers shall be maintained by the homeowner's 
association. Land disturbance is permitted within the buffer during development of 
the site. 
6. Miscellaneous Provisions 

a. The Petitioner shall provide a minimum of three license plate readers to be 
operated for a minimum of five years unless otherwise agreed to by the City 
Manager. The license plate readers shall be installed at the primary entrance 
for each phase prior to the last certificate of occupancy for the respective 
phase. 

7. Amendments to the Rezoning Plan: 
a. Future amendments to the Rezoning Plan (which includes these 
Development Standards) may be applied for by the then Owner or Owners of 
the applicable portion of the Site affected by such amendment in accordance 
with the provisions of the Ordinance. 

8. Binding Effect of the Rezoning Application: 
a. If this Rezoning Petition is approved, all conditions applicable to the 
development of the Site imposed under the Rezoning Plan will, unless 
amended in the manner provided under the Ordinance, be 
binding upon and insure to the benefit of the Petitioner and subsequent owners 
of the Site and their respective heirs, devisees, personal representatives, 
successors in interest or assigns. 

************************************************************ 

I, the petitioner, consent to the conditions proposed 
for petition RZ22-03 and approved by the Lowell 
City Council.  
 
 
___________________________   
     
The Pulte Group 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

I, the property owner, consent to the conditions 
proposed for petition RZ22-03 and approved by the 
Lowell City Council.  
 
 
___________________________   
     
Belmont Land Investment Co 

76



20
'

T

T

T

T

TT

CLIENT

REVISIONS

PROJECT NO.

FILENAME

CHECKED BY EM

DRAWN BY JDS

SCALE

DATE 12.10.2021

N0. DATE

M
:\

Pr
oj

ec
ts

\P
LT

\P
LT

21
00

1\
04

-P
ro

du
ct

io
n\

En
gi

ne
er

in
g\

Re
zo

ni
ng

\P
LT

21
00

1-
RZ

1-
al

t2
-6

0f
t.d

w
g,

 8
/3

0/
20

22
 3

:3
0:

25
 P

M
, D

re
w

 S
in

gl
et

on

The John R. McAdams Company, Inc.

www.mcadamsco.com

3430 Toringdon Way
Suite 110

phone 704. 527. 0800
fax 919. 361. 2269

license number: C-0293, C-187

Charlotte, NC 28277

SHEET

PLAN INFORMATION

PRELIMINARY DRAWING - NOT RELEASED FOR CONSTRUCTION

SP
EN

CE
R 

M
O

U
N

TA
IN

SI
N

G
LE

 F
AM

IL
Y

RE
ZO

N
IN

G 
PL

AN
LO

W
EL

L 
SP

EN
CE

R 
M

O
U

N
TA

IN
 R

O
AD

LO
W

EL
L,

 N
O

RT
H 

CA
RO

LI
N

A,
 2

80
98

PLT21001

PULTE HOMES
11121 CARMEL COMMONS BLVD.
SUITE 450
CHARLOTTE, NC 28226

1 07. 12. 2022 REVS PER SELLER COORDINATION
2 08. 30. 2022 PER CITY COMMENTS

PLT21001-RZ1

1" = 300'

SITE LEGEND
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14

OWNER
DORIS B TALLENT
DORIS B TALLENT
TALLENT DRUM COMPANY
DORIS B TALLENT
EUNICE H CARPENTER & CATHY J SNYDER
GAIL REDDICK BARKER
DANIEL A DAVIS
JEFFREY A LITTLE
TAMMY S SCHRONCE
RACHEL MANN MOORE
FRANKLIN CHARLES & MARSHA B MORROW
EDITH C MAY HEIRS
DOROTHY MAY BROWN
THOMAS GERALD & TERI LYN FLOWERS

PARCEL
136566
136565
136557
136558
135132
135137
135141
135134
135133
135138
135129
135128
135127
135108

DEED
2133-708
2411-777
1891-116
1454-363
4963-030
4514-2463
4684-697
4975-2031
4693-2468
2286-634
2371-490
0010-551
1432-802
4467-1512

NOTE: PROPERTY INFORMATION BASED ON GASTON COUNTY GIS

ADJACENT PROPERTY OWNERS
ZONING
RS-20
RS-20
RS-20
RS-20
R-1
R-1
R-1
R-1
C-1
R-1
R-1
R-1
R-1
R-1

GRAPHIC SCALE
0 150 300 600

1 inch = 300 ft.

NC GRID (NAD83)

STREAM FEATURE

20' PERIMETER BUFFER

STREAM FEATURE

20' PERIMETER BUFFER

20' PERIMETER BUFFER

20' PERIMETER BUFFER

20' PERIMETER BUFFER

20' PERIMETER BUFFER

EXISTING
LOWELL SPENCER
MOUNTAIN ROAD

(NCDOT MAINTAINED)

EXISTING
LOWELL SPENCER
MOUNTAIN ROAD

(NCDOT MAINTAINED)

68' OVERHEAD
POWER EASEMENT

SOUTH FORK CATAWBA RIVER

SO
U

TH FO
RK CATAW

BA RIVER

AMENITY
AREA

PLANNED CAROLINA
THREAD TRAIL. FINAL
LOCATION TBD

PLANNED CAROLINA
THREAD TRAIL. FINAL
LOCATION TBD

PLANNED CAROLINA
THREAD TRAIL. FINAL
LOCATION TBD

SWMF
± 1.02 AC

SWMF
± 0.94 AC

SWMF
± 2.55 AC

SWMF
± 1.41 AC

SWMF
± 0.64 AC

SWMF
± 0.43 AC

SITE DATA

TAX PARCEL NUMBER:

PROPOSED ZONING:

136564, 210660 + PORTIONS OF 135144,
202166, 202774
SFR-4 (CZ)

PREPARED BY:
MCADAMS

3430 TORINGDON WAY, SUITE 110
CHARLOTTE, NC 28277

TOTAL DEVELOPMENT
AREA:
PERIMETER BUFFER:
PUBLIC ROW WIDTH:
SINGLE FAMILY (60' x 130')
DENSITY:
OPEN SPACE REQUIRED (5% OF SITE AREA):

NATURAL OPEN SPACE PROVIDED:
STORMWATER DETENTION PROVIDED:
TREE SAVE REQUIRED (6% OF EXISTING TREES):
TREE SAVE PROVIDED:

± 226.29 AC
20'
60'
422 LOTS
1.86 LOTS/AC
11.31 AC

7.71 AC
± 9.16 AC
13.58 AC
13.58 AC

NOTES:
1. ALL INTERNAL STREETS WILL BE PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAYS

20' AT&T EASEMENT

20' AT&T
EASEMENT

SWMF
± 0.43 AC

PHASE #
1
2
3
4
TOTAL

LOT COUNT
99
133
101
89
422

POCKET
PARK

+/- 1.0 AC TO BE SUBDIVIDED
TO ADJACENT PROPERTY
OWNER

RZ.01
REZONING PLAN

AMENITY
AREA

ROAD 'G'(60' PUBLIC R/W)

RO
AD

 'E
'

(6
0'

 P
U

BL
IC

 R
/W

)

ROAD 'E'

(60' PUBLIC R/W
)

ROAD 'G'
(60' PUBLIC R/W)

ROAD 'A'
(60' PUBLIC R/W)

RO
AD

 'A
'

(6
0'

 P
UB

LIC
 R

/W
)

RO
AD 'A'

(60' PU
BLIC R/W

)

ROAD 'B'
(60' PUBLIC R/W)

ROAD 'C'

(60' PUBLIC R/W
)

ROAD 'C'
(60' PUBLIC R/W)

RO
AD

 'D
'

(6
0'

 P
UB

LIC
 R

/W
)

ROAD 'D'(60' PUBLIC R/W)

RO
AD 'D'

(60' PUBLIC R/W
)

ROAD 'H'(60' PUBLIC R/W)

RO
AD

 'F
'

(6
0'

 P
U

BL
IC

 R
/W

)

ROAD 'I'

(60' PUBLIC R/W
)

ROAD 'I'

(60' PUBLIC R/W)

RO
AD 'I'

(60' PUBLIC R/W
)

RO
AD 'J'

(60' PU
BLIC R/W

)

ROAD 'K'

(60' PUBLIC R/W)

ROAD 'D'

(60' PUBLIC R/W
)

ROAD 'D'

(60' PUBLIC R/W)

ROAD 'D'

(60' PUBLIC R/W)

ROAD 'L'
(60' PUBLIC R/W)

ROAD 'M'
(60' PUBLIC R/W)

RO
AD

 'P
'

(6
0' 

PU
BL

IC
 R

/W
)

RO
AD 'Q

'
(60' PUBLIC R/W

)

13
0'

 L
O

T 
DE

PT
H

60' LOT WIDTH

RIGHT-OF-WAY

5' SIDE YARD5' SIDE YARD

5' REAR SETBACK

20' FRONT BUILDING
SETBACK

TYPICAL LOT DIMENSIONS
SCALE: 1' = 40'

23.5' GARAGE
SETBACK

NOTE: CORNER LOTS REQUIRE A 10' SIDE
YARD SETBACK WITH AN 11.5' GARAGE
SETBACK.

PHASE 1
± 55.12 AC

PHASE 2
± 59.99 AC

PHASE 3
± 47.38 AC

PHASE 4
± 63.80 AC

100' STREAM BUFFER

100' STREAM BUFFER

100' STREAM BUFFER

100' STREAM BUFFER

7,800 SF MIN. LOT

ACTIVE OPEN SPACE PROVIDED: 3.60 AC

LOCATION OF TERMINATING
VISTA. PROGRAMMING TBD

LOCATION OF
TERMINATING VISTA.
PROGRAMMING TBD

LOCATION OF TERMINATING
VISTA. PROGRAMMING TBD

SWMF
± 1.74 AC

20' PERIMETER BUFFER

CREEK CROSSING B

CREEK CROSSING A

IN THE EVENT POTENTIAL
PHASE 4 CONNECTION.
REFER TO DEVELOPMENT
STANDARDS

POCKET PARK

PROPERTY LINE TO BE VACATED
THROUGH SUBDIVISION PROCESS

PROPOSED PARCEL BOUNDARY

PROPOSED PARCEL BOUNDARY

APPROXIMATE LOCATION OF
PROPOSED PUMP STATION. FINAL
LOCATION TO BE DETERMINED
DURING CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS

77



CLIENT

REVISIONS

PROJECT NO.

FILENAME

CHECKED BY EM

DRAWN BY JDS

SCALE

DATE 12.10.2021

N0. DATE

M
:\

Pr
oj

ec
ts

\P
LT

\P
LT

21
00

1\
04

-P
ro

du
ct

io
n\

En
gi

ne
er

in
g\

Re
zo

ni
ng

\P
LT

21
00

1-
RZ

1-
al

t2
-6

0f
t.d

w
g,

 8
/3

0/
20

22
 3

:2
0:

52
 P

M
, D

re
w

 S
in

gl
et

on

The John R. McAdams Company, Inc.

www.mcadamsco.com

3430 Toringdon Way
Suite 110

phone 704. 527. 0800
fax 919. 361. 2269

license number: C-0293, C-187

Charlotte, NC 28277

SHEET

PLAN INFORMATION

PRELIMINARY DRAWING - NOT RELEASED FOR CONSTRUCTION

SP
EN

CE
R 

M
O

U
N

TA
IN

SI
N

G
LE

 F
AM

IL
Y

RE
ZO

N
IN

G 
PL

AN
LO

W
EL

L 
SP

EN
CE

R 
M

O
U

N
TA

IN
 R

O
AD

LO
W

EL
L,

 N
O

RT
H 

CA
RO

LI
N

A,
 2

80
98

PLT21001

PULTE HOMES
11121 CARMEL COMMONS BLVD.
SUITE 450
CHARLOTTE, NC 28226

1 07. 12. 2022 REVS PER SELLER COORDINATION
2 08. 30. 2022 PER CITY COMMENTS

PLT21001-RZ1

RZ.02
REZONING NOTES

Pulte Lowell

Development Standards

July 12, 2022

Spencer Mountain Rezoning Petition

Post Planning Committee

Post Adjusted Site Boundary

Site Development Data:

--Acreage: ± 226.29 acres

--Tax Parcel #:  136564 and 210660

--Tax Parcel #:  135144, 202166, and 202774 NOTE WHICH ARE “A PORTION OF”

--Existing Zoning:  SFR-3 and SFR-2

--Proposed Zoning:  SFR-4(CZ)

--Existing Uses:  Vacant

--Proposed Uses:  Up to 422 single-family detached dwelling units as allowed by right and under

prescribed conditions in the SFR-4 zoning district as further described in Section 2 below.

1. General Provisions:

a. Site Location. These Development Standards form a part of  the Rezoning Plan associated with the

Rezoning Petition filed by Pulte (“Petitioner”) to accommodate the development of  up to four hundred

and twenty-two (422) single-family detached dwelling units as generally depicted on the Rezoning Plan.

The proposed development will be on an approximately 226.29 acre site located on Spencer Mountain

Road (the "Site").

b. Zoning Districts/Ordinance.  Development of  the Site will be governed by the Rezoning Plan as

well as the applicable provisions of  the Lowell Land Development Code (the “Ordinance”).  Unless the

Rezoning Plan establishes more stringent standards, the regulations established under the Ordinance for

the SFR-4 zoning classification shall govern.

c. Graphics and Alterations.  The schematic depictions lots, sidewalks, structures and buildings,

building elevations, driveways, streets and other development matters and site elements (collectively the

“Development/Site Elements”) set forth on the Rezoning Plan should be reviewed in conjunction with the

provisions of  these Development Standards. The layout, locations, sizes and formulations of  the

Development/Site Elements depicted on the Rezoning Plan are graphic representations of  the

Development/Site elements proposed. Changes to the Rezoning Plan not anticipated by the Rezoning Plan

will be reviewed and approved as allowed by Section 5.4-3(F) of the Ordinance. 

Since the project has not undergone the design development and construction phases, it is intended that

this Rezoning Plan provide for flexibility in allowing some alterations or modifications from the graphic

representations of  the Development/Site Elements.  Therefore, there may be instances where minor

modifications will be allowed per the Ordinance.  These instances would include changes to graphics if

they are minor and don't materially change the overall design intent depicted on the Rezoning Plan.

The Planning Director will determine if  such minor modifications are allowed and if  it is determined that

the alteration does not meet the criteria described above, the Petitioner shall then follow the Ordinance; in

each instance, however, subject to the Petitioner's appeal rights set forth in the Ordinance.

2. Permitted Uses & Development Areas:

a. The Site may be developed with up to four hundred twenty-two (422) single-family detached

dwelling units to the west side of  the ultimate drainage line.  The ultimate drainage line location will be

determined as part of the overall grading plan during the land development process.

3. Transportation and Connectivity:

a. A Transportation Impact Analysis shall be provided if  required by Ordinance.  Any required

improvements to Lowell Spencer Mountain Road shall be as required by NCDOT.

b. In the event a direct connection is provided from Phase 4 to Lowell Spencer Mountain Road, Creek

Crossing B may be eliminated.

c. The Petitioner shall improve Lowell Spencer Mountain Road to the Rural Cross Section per the

most recently adopted version of  the North Carolina Complete Streets Planning and Design Guidelines

subject to the recommendations of the Traffic Impact Analysis and NCDOT approval.

4. Architectural Standards:

a. The building materials used on the principal buildings constructed on Site will be a combination of

portions of  the following: brick, stone, precast stone, precast concrete, synthetic stone, cementitious fiber

board, cementitious fiber shake, stucco, decorative block and/or wood.

b. Vinyl or Aluminum shall not be used as a primary siding material however it may be used on

windows, soffits, fascia and/or similar roof  overhang elements, handrails/railings, and/or other

miscellaneous trim elements.

c. The proposed roofing materials will be architectural shingles, slate, tile and/or metal.

d. All residential units shall include the following garage door treatments:

i. wall sconce lighting on at least one side of  the garage door or one large wall sconce above the

garage door,

ii. windows and/or a vent detail above the garage door,

iv. a minimum of two siding materials on the façade, and

vi. windows

5. Environmental Features and Open Space:

a. The Site shall comply with the minimum Stormwater and Water Quality requirements as set forth in

the Land Development Ordinance and municipal code.

b. The location of  the proposed stormwater areas are conceptual in nature and the exact size and

location of  these areas are subject to change depending upon final layout, product allocation, and/or other

site plan elements.  The overall layout and unit count may be altered as a result of  final stormwater

locations.

c. The Petitioner shall implement the following design and post construction stormwater containment

measures subject to the provisions set forth herein and subject to approval by Gaston County:

i. 200 or 100-year floodplain (whichever is greater) buffer on surface waters.

ii. A maximum built upon area (BUA) under 10% in the Protected Watershed.

iii. In areas where the BUA is greater than 10%, Stormwater Control Measures (SCMs) capable of

treating the greater 1.5” or the difference in stormwater runoff  from pre-development and post

development conditions for the one-year, twenty-four-hour storm.

iv. SCMs capable of  limiting peak flow from the site at each point of  discharge to the predevelopment

conditions for the 1 and 10 years, twenty-four-hour storm events

v. A total phosphorus (TP) removal rate of at least 70% for all SCM(s) used.

vi. SCMs capable of conveying the 25-year design storm.

vii. SCM Operation and Maintenance Agreements and Plans should be clearly explained to the

responsible party.

viii. To the greatest extent possible, BUA and runoff  should be minimized through site design and Low

Impact Development (LID) measures such as downspout disconnection, permeable pavements, green

roofs, planter boxes, etc.

d. The Petitioner shall implement the following active construction measures subject to the provisions

set forth herein and subject to approval by Gaston County:

i. The use of high hazard or double row silt fencing along surface water bodies.

ii. Stop valves and additional filtration at the outlet discharges.

iii. Retention basins capable of  conveying the 25-year storm with an outfall sized to maximize

drawdown time.

iv. Installation of temporary seeding and slope drains within 7 days after grading.

v. Installation of natural fiber matting on slopes greater than 10'.

vi. Third party sediment and erosion control monitoring of the site.

vii. Implementation of  devices downstream to numerically monitor turbidity during construction and

provide alerts to regulators and site operators when turbidity levels exceed action levels.

viii. Additional measures such as polyacrylamides, proposed by the designers and owners.

ix. Bathymetic survey and core samples of  any downstream coves before and after construction to

document off-site sedimentation.

e. The developer shall adhere to the LDO and only plant native plant materials on the Site.

f. A minimum of two (2) ten (10) foot wide access easements shall be provided as follows:

i.  One shall be located between lots on Road I or Road J.

ii. One shall be located along Spencer Lowell Mountain Road.

The exact location of the access easements shall be determined during the permitting process.  It is

understood the easements may be used to provide access to future amenities to be provided by others.

g. The Petitioner shall provide a minimum twenty (20) foot buffer behind the lots west of  the drainage

divide line.  Such buffers shall be maintained by the homeowner's association.  Land disturbance is

permitted within the buffer during development of the site.

6. Miscellaneous Provisions

a. The Petitioner shall provide a minimum of  three license plate readers to be operated for a minimum

of five years unless otherwise agreed to by the City Manager.  The license plate readers shall be installed

at the primary entrance for each phase prior to the last certificate of occupancy for the respective phase.

7. Amendments to the Rezoning Plan:

a. Future amendments to the Rezoning Plan (which includes these Development Standards) may be

applied for by the then Owner or Owners of  the applicable portion of  the Site affected by such

amendment in accordance with the provisions of the Ordinance.

8. Binding Effect of the Rezoning Application:

a. If  this Rezoning Petition is approved, all conditions applicable to the development of  the Site

imposed under the Rezoning Plan will, unless amended in the manner provided under the Ordinance, be

binding upon and insure to the benefit of  the Petitioner and subsequent owners of  the Site and their

respective heirs, devisees, personal representatives, successors in interest or assigns.

78



  

 

EXHIBIT D 
 

COUNTY WATERLINE EASEMENT 
 
 

  

79



REBAR

REBAR

GASTON COUNTY
PARCEL 148012
DB 2030, PG 246

GASTON COUNTY
PARCEL 148012
DB 2030, PG 246

TRACT 2

REBAR

DOYLE D. & DORIS
TALLENT

PARCEL 136558
DB 1454, PG 0363

LOWELL - SPENCER

MOUNTAIN RD

S 57°09'18" E   1650.91'  IPS TO REBAR

N 54°17'08" E
   4

43.99'

LINE TABLE
LINE BEARING DISTANCE
L1 S 84°21'23" E 164.85'
L2 S 44°42'47" E 200.67'
L3 S 27°04'27" W 92.91'
L4 S 23°42'16" W 156.33'
L5 S 33°59'20" E 226.21'
L6 S 32°13'11" E 258.50'
L7 S 29°52'51" E 158.90'
L8 S 30°37'16" E 74.40'
L9 S 27°02'56" E 143.53'

L10 S 31°06'12" E 172.18'
L11 N 68°39'36" E 191.92'
L12 S 80°40'33" E 24.31'
L13 N 80°40'33" W 19.05'
L14 S 68°39'36" W 203.29'
L15 N 31°06'12" W 189.74'
L16 N 27°02'56" W 143.62'
L17 N 30°37'16" W 73.91'
L18 N 29°52'51" W 158.62'
L19 N 32°13'11" W 257.78'
L20 N 33°59'20" W 236.92'
L21 N 23°42'16" E 28.06'
L22 N 66°17'44" W 159.53'
L23 N 23°42'16" E 20.00'
L24 S 66°17'44" E 159.53'
L25 N 23°42'16" E 119.87'
L26 N 27°04'27" E 95.52'
L27 S 57°09'18" E 20.10'
L28 N 57°09'18" W 20.00'

L1

L2

458.74'  ESMT. TIE

CURVE TABLE
CURVE LENGTH RADIUS CHORD BEARING CHORD

C1 20.00' 454.33' S 08°41'45" W 20.00'

L27

L3

L4

L5

L6

L7

L8

L9

L10

L11
L12

L13
L14

L15

L16

L17

L18

L19

L20

L2
1

L22

L2
3

L24 L2
5

L2
6

10.0'

10.0'

PROPOSED 20' PERMANENT UTILITY
EASEMENT WITH 10'
TEMP. CONST. EASEMENT BOTH SIDES

EYEBOLT
NC GRID (NAD83-2011)
N: 566,980.61'
E: 1,370,546.21'

L28

22" POST
OAK BELMONT LAND AND

INVESTMENT
COMPANY

PARCEL 136564
DB 3253, PG 175

GASTON COUNTY
PARCEL 148012
DB 2030, PG 246

PROPOSED
UTILITY EASEMENT

33,645 SF
0.77 AC.

PROPOSED
TEMP. CONST.

EASEMENT
33,649 SF
0.77 AC.

E/
P

E/
P

APPROX. ROAD
CENTERLINE

S 45°56'02" E   425.63'  TIE TO CL

C1

20.0'

VICINITY MAP

I, KEVIN S. BAUCOM, CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAT WAS DRAWN UNDER MY
SUPERVISION FROM AN ACTUAL SURVEY MADE UNDER MY SUPERVISION
FROM  DEED DESCRIPTION RECORDED IN BOOK AND PAGE SHOWN; THAT
THE BOUNDARIES NOT SURVEYED ARE CLEARLY INDICATED AND DRAWN
FROM  INFORMATION FOUND IN BOOK AND PAGE SHOWN; THAT THE
RATIO OF PRECISION AS CALCULATED IS 1:10,000+; AND THAT THIS PLAT
WAS PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH G.S. 47-30 AS AMENDED.
WITNESS MY ORIGINAL SIGNATURE, LICENSE NUMBER, AND SEAL THIS

______ DAY OF _____________________, A.D. 2024.

___________________________________
KEVIN S. BAUCOM, PLS    L-4275

PRELIMINARY
NOT FOR RECORDATION,
CONVEYANCES OR SALES

NC GRID (NAD83)

1 inch = 200 ft.

GRAPHIC SCALE

The John R. McAdams Company, Inc.

www.mcadamsco.com

phone 704. 527. 0800
fax 919. 361. 2269

license number: C-0293

2100 South Tryon Street
Suite 400

Charlotte, NC 28203
PROJECT NO. LEN23006
FILENAME LEN23006-Q7
CHECKED BY KSB
DRAWN BY JC
SCALE 1"=200'
DATE 4.2.2024

PLAN INFORMATIONPROPOSED UTILITY EASEMENT
AND TEMPORARY

CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT
PROPERTY OF GASTON COUNTY

1101 LOWELL-SPENCER MOUNTAIN ROAD
GASTONIA TWSP., GASTON CO., NORTH CAROLINA

I, KEVIN S. BAUCOM, PLS, CERTIFY THAT THIS MAP WAS
DRAWN UNDER MY SUPERVISION AND THE FOLLOWING
INFORMATION WAS USED TO PERFORM THE SURVEY:
(1)CLASS OF SURVEY: CLASS A
(2)POSITIONAL ACCURACY: < 0.100'
(3)TYPE OF GPS FIELD PROCEDURE: VRS
(4)DATE OF SURVEY: 09/16/2021
(5)DATUM/EPOCH: NAD 83(2011)
(6)PUBLISHED/FIXED-CONTROL USED: GAST
(7)GEOID MODEL: GEOID12A
(8)COMBINED GRID FACTOR(S): 0.999835694
(9)UNITS: METERS CONVERTED TO US SURVEY FEET

SITE

GEORGE
POSTON

PARK

7

LOWELL

GENERAL  NOTES
1.) BEARINGS BASED ON NC GRID NAD-83(2011).
2.) ALL DISTANCES ARE HORIZONTAL GROUND DISTANCES.
3.) FLOOD NOTE: THIS PROPERTY IS NOT LOCATED IN A SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD

ZONE AS DEFINED BY FEMA F.I.R.M. MAP NUMBER 3710357600J DATED
SEPTEMBER 28, 2007.

4.) REFERENCES: DB 2030, PG 246 OF THE GASTON COUNTY REGISTRY.
PARCEL NO. 148012

5.) NO GRID MONUMENTS FOUND WITHIN 2000' OF SITE.

LEGEND
EXISTING IRON AS NOTED
IRON PIPE SET
CALCULATED POINT

SURVEYED PROPERTY LINE
PROPERTY LINE NOT SURVEYED

PROPOSED UTILITY EASEMENT
PROPOSED TEMPORARY
CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT

OVERHEAD UTILITY LINE WITH POLE

80



  

 

EXHIBIT E 
 

UTILITY ALLOCATION PROCESS 
 

  

81



  

 

EXHIBIT F 
 

TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENTS & COMPLETION DEADLINES 
 

A. PHASE 1 Transportation Improvements 
1. Access B – including Northbound Left Turn Lane with 100’ storage 

i. Will be commenced simultaneously with Phase 1 
2. Access D (no required  

i. Will be commenced simultaneously with Phase 1 
B. PHASE 1 Transportation Improvements Deadline – On or before the issuance of the fiftieth (50th) 

CO for Phase 1. 
C. PHASE 2 Transportation Improvements 

1. Access C – including Northbound Right Turn Lane (the “Access C NBRTL”) with 100’ 

storage 
i. Access C -Will be commenced simultaneously with Phase 2 

ii. The Access C NBRTL will be completed on or before the earlier of (i) the 
issuance of the fiftieth (50th) CO for Phase 2. 

2. Access E - including Northbound Right Turn Lane (the “Access E NBRTL”) with 100’ 

storage 
i. Access E - will be completed on or before the earlier of (i) the issuance of the 

fiftieth (50th) CO for Phase 2 or (ii) the issuance of the 180th CO for the Project. 
ii. The Access E NBRTL will be completed on or before the earlier of (i) the 

issuance of the fiftieth (50th) CO for Phase 2. 
3. Northbound Left Turn Lane transition tapers will be remarked at this time to provide a 

50’ Southbound Left Turn Lane into Access C. 
D. PHASE 3 & 4 

1. Access A including Northbound Left Turn Lane (the “Access A NBLTL”) with 100’ 

storage 
i. will be completed on or before the earlier of (i) the issuance of the first (1st) CO 

for Phase 3 or (ii) the issuance of the 231st CO for the Project. 
2. N. Main St. and W. 1st St. – Southbound Right Turn Lane Remarking 

i. The remarking exercise to provide a 100’ Southbound Right Turn Lane will be 

completed by the issuance of the fiftieth (50th) CO for Phase 3. 
 

 
 

82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



City of Lowell

Regular City Council Meeting

Consideration to adopt the City of Lowell 2024 Legislative Advocacy Agenda

Meeting

Tuesday, May 14, 2024, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

Unfinished Business Item: 5C

Reference File Presented By

Attachments

2024 Advocacy Agenda Revised Final 5_8_24.pdf

To: Lowell Mayor and City Council

From: Scott Attaway, City Manager

Date: 5-10-2024

Re: Consideration of the 2024 City of Lowell Legislative Advocacy Agenda

Attached is the Advocacy Agenda that was discussed during the last City Council Work Session on April 16, 2024 for
your consideration.

94

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F663bc671740e3800552c4a29%2F2024%20Advocacy%20Agenda%20Revised%20Final%205_8_24.pdf?alt=media&token=000dd22d-1e20-4d6a-bdfa-10d9cc53530f
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F663bc671740e3800552c4a29%2F2024%20Advocacy%20Agenda%20Revised%20Final%205_8_24.pdf?alt=media&token=000dd22d-1e20-4d6a-bdfa-10d9cc53530f
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F663bc671740e3800552c4a29%2F2024%20Advocacy%20Agenda%20Revised%20Final%205_8_24.pdf?alt=media&token=000dd22d-1e20-4d6a-bdfa-10d9cc53530f


ADVOCACY AGENDA
2024

FEDERAL
PRIORITY
ISSUES
THE CITY OF LOWELL SEEKS FUNDING FOR
MAJOR TRANSPORTATION PROJECTS,
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT, AFFORDABLE
HOUSING AND INFRASTRUCTURE INITIATIVES.

STATE
PRIORITY

ISSUES

COUNTY
PRIORITY
ISSUES

THE CITY OF LOWELL WILL
FOCUS EFFORTS ON

PROJECTS AND INITIATIVES
THAT SUPPORT THE CITY’S

FINANCIAL WELL-BEING,
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT,

LOCAL GOVERNANCE,
UTILITIES, TRANSPORTATION,

PARKS AND RECREATION,
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
AND HOUSING, AND PUBLIC

SAFETY.

THE CITY OF LOWELL SUPPORTS PROJECTS AND INITIATIVES THAT PROVIDE
OPPORTUNITIES TO PARTNER WITH GASTON COUNTY TO IMPROVE
EMPLOYMENT, ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, TRANSPORTATION AND ADDRESS
HOMELESSNESS.

95



CITY VISION
LOWELL WILL BE A THRIVING, MULTI-GENERATIONAL COMMUNITY FOR ACTIVE LIVING.

CITY MISSION
THE CITY OF LOWELL DELIVERS EXCELLENT PUBLIC SERVICES THROUGH TRANSPARENT
LEADERSHIP AND COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT.

COUNCIL VALUES
WE BELIEVE IN BEING POSITIVE STEWARDS OF OUR COMMUNITY THROUGH OUR
COMMITMENT TO:

INTEGRITY - INCLUSIVENESS - TRANSPARENCY - FAIRNESS - ACCOUNTABILITY - COMPASSION

GOALS
CONTINUOUSLY IMPROVE AND EXPAND WATER, SEWER, AND STORMWATER
INFRASTRUCTURE
CONTINUOUSLY IMPROVE AND EXPAND CITY STREETS AND SIDEWALKS
DEVELOP AND UPDATE PUBLIC FACILITIES
ENHANCE MULTI-GENERATIONAL PARKS AND RECREATION ACTIVITIES
DEVELOP LAND USE MASTER PLANS FOR TARGETED AREAS

LOWELL CITY COUNCIL

LOWELL CITY COUNCIL
LEFT TO RIGHT: MAYOR LARRY SIMONDS, MAYOR PRO-TEM SCOTT BATES, PHIL BONHAM, 

DEWAYNE CHITWOOD, SHANE ROBINSON, TRAVIS SMITH

WWW.LOWELLNC.COM

96



FEDERAL PRIORITY ISSUES
THE CITY OF LOWELL SEEKS FUNDING FOR MAJOR TRANSPORTATION PROJECTS, COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT, AFFORDABLE HOUSING, AND INFRASTRUCTURE INITIATIVES.

THE CITY SEEKS FUNDING FROM THE US DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION THROUGH
VARIOUS ESTABLISHED GRANT PROGRAMS SUCH AS THE RAISE PROGRAM,
RECONNECTING COMMUNITIES AND NEIGHBORHOODS (RCN) PROGRAM, INFRA
PROGRAM, SAFE STREETS AND ROADS FOR ALL PROGRAM, RAIL CONNECTIVITY, SMART
PROGRAM, AND ALL PROGRAMS THAT PROVIDE FUNDING TO IMPROVE LOCAL
TRANSPORTATION CONDITIONS AND RAIL CONNECTIVITY.

THE GEORGIA, NORTH CAROLINA, AND SOUTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENTS OF
TRANSPORTATION ARE PREPARING A PLAN TO BUILD A HIGH‐SPEED RAIL LINE FROM
ATLANTA TO CHARLOTTE. THE CITY SUPPORTS ROUTE OPTIONS THAT INCLUDE STOPS IN
GASTON COUNTY.

THE CITY SUPPORTS WORKING WITH THE FEDERAL RAIL ADMINISTRATION TO FURTHER
STUDY INTERCITY PASSENGER RAIL FROM KINGS MOUNTAIN TO CHARLOTTE AS PART OF
THE CORRIDOR ID PROGRAM.

THE CITY SUPPORTS MAINTAINING THE TAX‐EXEMPT STATUS OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT
BONDS. PROPOSALS TO MAKE GOVERNMENT BONDS TAXABLE WOULD MAKE LOCAL
GOVERNMENTAL INFRASTRUCTURE PROJECTS COSTLIER TO LOCAL TAXPAYERS AND
RATEPAYERS AND MAY MAKE THEM LESS ATTRACTIVE TO INVESTORS.

THE CITY SUPPORTS CONTINUED FUNDING FOR INFRASTRUCTURE INITIATIVES IN THE
AREAS OF TRANSPORTATION, BROWNFIELDS GRANTS, PUBLIC WATER AND SEWER
SYSTEM REHABILITATIONS AND EXPANSIONS, TARGETED ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT,
PUBLIC SAFETY, COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANTS, AND HOME PROGRAMS
THAT ADDRESS AFFORDABLE HOUSING AND REDUCE HOMELESSNESS.

97



STATE PRIORITY ISSUES
THE CITY OF LOWELL WILL FOCUS EFFORTS ON PROJECTS AND INITIATIVES THAT SUPPORT
THE CITY’S FINANCIAL WELL-BEING, ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, LOCAL GOVERNANCE,
UTILITIES, TRANSPORTATION, PARKS AND RECREATION, COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND
HOUSING, AND PUBLIC SAFETY.

FINANCIAL
THE CITY SUPPORTS THE POSITION THAT THE STATE SHOULD NOT CUT OR ELIMINATE
STATE‐SHARED REVENUES TO LOCAL GOVERNMENTS UNLESS OTHER SUITABLE
REVENUES REPLACE THEM.

THE CITY OPPOSES UNFUNDED MANDATES, WHICH ARE ESTABLISHED THROUGH
LEGISLATION OR REGULATION AND REQUIRE ADDITIONAL LOCAL EXPENDITURES
WITHOUT CORRESPONDING REVENUES.

TAX REFORM OR REDISTRIBUTION OF REVENUES SHOULD NOT ADVERSELY AFFECT THE
CITY’S REVENUES NECESSARY FOR LOCAL SERVICES.

THE CITY SUPPORTS LEGISLATION TO PROVIDE MUNICIPALITIES WITH AUTHORITY FOR
ADDITIONAL LOCALLY‐-CONTROLLED REVENUE OPTIONS AND FLEXIBILITY IN THE USE OF
THOSE OPTIONS, INCLUDING – BUT NOT LIMITED TO – CITY‐ONLY SALES TAX, CITY
OCCUPANCY TAXES, A PREPARED FOOD AND BEVERAGE TAX, AND IMPACT FEES FOR
TRANSPORTATION, PARKS AND RECREATION, AND PUBLIC SAFETY.

98



ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
THE CITY SUPPORTS LEGISLATION THAT WILL PROVIDE FUNDING FOR STATE‐LEVEL
INCENTIVE PROGRAMS NECESSARY TO KEEP NORTH CAROLINA COMPETITIVE IN ITS
EFFORTS TO BRING ADDITIONAL JOBS AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT TO LOCAL
COMMUNITIES WHEN COMPETING WITH PROJECTS IN OTHER STATES. THIS INCLUDES
THE GOVERNOR’S ONENC FUND, GOLDEN LEAF FOUNDATION, JOB DEVELOPMENT
INVESTMENT GRANTS (JDIG), AND OTHER PROGRAMS THAT SUPPORT MAJOR
INDUSTRIAL SITE DEVELOPMENT AND DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT.

THE CITY SUPPORTS LEGISLATION THAT PROVIDES ADDITIONAL TOOLS FOR THE
REDEVELOPMENT OF DOWNTOWN PROPERTIES. FOR EXAMPLE, THE CITY BELIEVES
CHAPTER 160D COULD BE AMENDED TO PROVIDE FOR MORE FLEXIBILITY IN THE
NEGOTIATION OF ECONOMIC REDEVELOPMENT AGREEMENTS AND THE SALE OF CITY
PROPERTIES WHEN ADDRESSING URBAN BLIGHT AND DOWNTOWN REVITALIZATION.

THE CITY SUPPORTS STATE HISTORIC PRESERVATION TAX CREDITS AND ADVOCATES
FOR THEIR CONTINUED EXISTENCE. THESE CREDITS ARE IMPORTANT ECONOMIC
DEVELOPMENT TOOLS FOR LOWELL AND THE STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA.

THE CITY SUPPORTS THE RE‐ESTABLISHMENT OF THE NORTH CAROLINA MILLS TAX
CREDIT OR A SIMILAR INCENTIVE THAT WILL STIMULATE THE MARKETPLACE TO
RESTORE AND REUSE LARGE VACANT INDUSTRIAL, AGRICULTURAL, AND UTILITY
BUILDINGS.

SUPPORT THE STATE IN CONTINUING TO FUND A STRONG FILM INCENTIVE PROGRAM
AND CONSIDER PUBLIC POLICY THAT POSITIVELY IMPACTS FILM JOBS IN OUR STATE.

THE CITY SUPPORTS THE EFFORTS TO REVITALIZE THE P&N RAIL LINE FOR COMMUTER
RAIL AND APPROPRIATE FREIGHT USE.

THE CITY SUPPORTS THE REVITALIZATION OF VACANT AND ABANDONED PROPERTIES
WITH FUNDING.

MANY TOWNS AND CITIES DO NOT HAVE FUNDING TO ADDRESS ABANDONED
PROPERTIES.
THESE PROPERTIES AFFECT SURROUNDING HOME AND BUSINESS PROPERTY
VALUES, ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT OPPORTUNITIES AND CRIME RATES.
WITH FUNDING AND ADDITIONAL LEGAL TOOLS, SUCH AS THOSE ALLOWING FOR
PROPERTIES TO BE MORE EASILY CONDEMNED, THESE PROPERTIES COULD SERVE
TO ADDRESS LOCAL HOUSING NEEDS.

99



LOCAL GOVERNANCE
THE CITY SUPPORTS AMENDING STATE ANNEXATION LAWS TO ALLOW CITIES
TO CLOSE DOUGHNUT HOLES AND RESTRICT ALL WATER AND SEWER
EXPENDITURES TO AREAS ONLY WITHIN PUBLIC RIGHTS‐OF‐WAY AND
EASEMENTS.

THE CITY SUPPORTS A SYSTEM OF SPIRITUOUS LIQUOR SALES THAT
MAINTAINS A LOCAL REFERENDUM ABOUT THE DECISION TO SELL,
PRESERVES LOCAL CONTROL OVER THE LOCATION AND DENSITY OF OUTLETS,
AND PRESERVES THE LOCAL REVENUE STREAM.

THE CITY SEEKS AUTHORITY TO CRIMINALLY ENFORCE CITY REGULATIONS FOR
THE TOWING AND BOOTING INDUSTRY (SUCH AS MANDATORY SIGNAGE,
PROCEDURES TO TOW OR BOOT, BUSINESS HOURS’ OPERATION, AND
MANDATORY ACCEPTANCE OF CREDIT CARDS).

THE CITY SUPPORTS STATE REGULATIONS THAT PREVENT ABUSIVE PRICE
GOUGING AND EXTORTION IN THIS INDUSTRY.

THE CITY SEEKS TO REDUCE PRESSURE ON PROPERTY TAXPAYERS BY
EXPANDING LOCALLY‐CONTROLLED OPTIONS FOR REVENUE GENERATION.

PROPERTY TAXES REMAIN THE PRIMARY REVENUE STREAM OVER WHICH
MUNICIPAL GOVERNMENTS EXERCISE CONTROL.
A LACK OF DIVERSE LOCAL TAX OPTIONS CAN AFFECT ECONOMIC GROWTH
AND CAUSE LARGE SWINGS IN REVENUE BASED ON ECONOMIC CHANGES.

THE CITY SUPPORTS LEGISLATION CLARIFYING A CITY’S RIGHT TO ESTABLISH A
TREE ORDINANCE AND OPPOSES LEGISLATION IMPAIRING THE RIGHT OF A
CITY TO PROTECT ITS TREE CANOPY.

THE CITY SUPPORTS AMENDMENTS TO THE NORTH CAROLINA OPEN MEETINGS
LAW THAT WILL CLARIFY WHEN AND HOW ELECTED OFFICIALS CAN
PARTICIPATE REMOTELY IN CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS EVEN WHEN THE CITY IS
NOT OPERATING UNDER A GOVERNOR’S EXECUTIVE ORDER OR A LOCAL STATE
OF EMERGENCY. THESE AMENDMENTS SHOULD INCLUDE THE SITUATION
WHEN A MAJORITY OF THE COUNCIL CAN MEET IN PERSON. HOWEVER, ONE
OR MORE COUNCIL MEMBERS CANNOT BE PHYSICALLY PRESENT BUT STILL
WISH TO PARTICIPATE VIA TELEPHONE OR VIDEO CONFERENCE IN VOTING ON
SOME ISSUES. THE CITY ACKNOWLEDGES THAT VOTES ON SPECIFIC ZONING
AND QUASI‐JUDICIAL MATTERS MAY NOT BE APPROPRIATE FOR SUCH
AMENDMENTS.

100



UTILITIES
THE CITY SUPPORTS THE COOPERATIVE INTERCONNECTION OF WATER AND
WASTEWATER UTILITIES THROUGH PARTNERSHIPS AND CONTRACTUAL NEGOTIATION
AND ENCOURAGES THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY TO ENACT LEGISLATION THAT PROVIDES
FISCAL AND REGULATORY INCENTIVES IN SUPPORT OF SUCH INITIATIVES. CONVERSELY,
THE CITY STRONGLY OPPOSES STATE LEGISLATION THAT WOULD COMPEL THE TRANSFER
OR SALE OF UTILITY SYSTEMS OR THAT CURTAILS THE ABILITY OF MUNICIPALITIES TO
SECURE NO-INTEREST LOANS AND GRANT FUNDING OPPORTUNITIES FOR REGIONAL
WATER AND SEWER INTERCONNECTIONS.

THE CITY SUPPORTS FULL FUNDING FOR THE STATE REVOLVING LOAN FUND (SRLF) OF
THE NCDEQ.

THE CITY SUPPORTS FULL FUNDING OF THE NC LAND AND WATER FUND (FORMERLY THE
NC CLEAN WATER MANAGEMENT TRUST FUND) FOR STORMWATER AND WATER QUALITY
PROJECTS.

THE CITY SUPPORTS LOCAL GOVERNMENT AUTHORITY TO BUILD BROADBAND
INFRASTRUCTURE, PARTNER WITH PRIVATE PROVIDERS, AND PROVIDE ADDITIONAL
FUNDING TO HELP CLOSE THE DIGITAL DIVIDE.

THE CITY SEEKS ADDITIONAL STATE FUNDING FOR UTILITIES AND INFRASTRUCTURE
THROUGH THE AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT.

THE CITY SUPPORTS SCIENCE-BASED PFAS DRINKING WATER AND WASTEWATER
REGULATIONS AND THE FUNDING OF TREATMENT UPGRADES TO REMOVE PFAS FROM
DRINKING WATER AND WASTEWATER.

THE CITY SEEKS TO CONTINUE ACCURATELY IDENTIFYING LEAD WATER SERVICE LINES
AND THE FUNDING FOR LEAD SERVICE LINE REPLACEMENT.

THE CITY SEEKS ADDITIONAL STATE AND FEDERAL FUNDING TO PROTECT WATER
QUALITY, ADVANCE ITS STORMWATER PROGRAM, AND REPAIR AND IMPROVE ITS
STORMWATER INFRASTRUCTURE.

101



TRANSPORTATION
THE CITY SUPPORTS THE CATAWBA CROSSINGS TRANSPORTATION PROJECT. IMPROVING
CONNECTIVITY FROM LOWELL TO CHARLOTTE‐DOUGLAS INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT AND
ITS INTERMODAL FACILITY IS A KEY TRANSPORTATION AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
PRIORITY. BRIDGE CROSSINGS OF THE CATAWBA AND SOUTH FORK RIVERS ARE A HIGH-
PRIORITY TRANSPORTATION GOAL IN OUR REGION.

THE CITY STRONGLY SUPPORTS THE EXTENSION OF LIGHT RAIL, INTERCITY PASSENGER
RAIL, AND RAPID TRANSIT FROM CHARLOTTE THROUGH LOWELL AND BEYOND,
INCLUDING DAILY PASSENGER RAIL SERVICE THAT WILL EXTEND FROM CHARLOTTE TO
GASTON COUNTY. THIS INCLUDES THE FULL UTILIZATION OF THE P&N RAIL LINE.

THE CITY SUPPORTS LEGISLATION THAT WOULD ALLOW (FOR ALL NON‐FEDERALLY
FUNDED INTERSTATE HIGHWAY PROJECTS) FOR THE REIMBURSEMENT OF UTILITY
RELOCATION PROJECTS TO BE PHASED IN OVER FIVE YEARS. NCDOT SHOULD ALLOW
MUNICIPAL UTILITIES WITH ADEQUATE, FUNCTIONING, AND EXISTING UNDERGROUND
LINES WITHIN STATE ROAD RIGHTS‐OF‐WAYS TO REMAIN IN PLACE FOR NCDOT ROAD‐
WIDENING PROJECTS.

THE CITY SUPPORTS THE NCDOT‐FUNDED PROJECT TO WIDEN INTERSTATE 85 AND
PARTNERING WITH NCDOT TO ENSURE THAT THE CITY HAS INPUT IN THE PLANNING AND
CONSTRUCTION OF IMPROVEMENTS, INCLUDING AESTHETICS.

 
THE CITY SEEKS LEGISLATION TO ENSURE THAT THE AMOUNT OF POWELL BILL FUNDS OR
A FUTURE-LIKE MODEL FUNDING SOURCE APPROPRIATED BY THE STATE ARE SUSTAINED
AND DISTRIBUTIONS TO MUNICIPALITIES ARE INCREASED AND GROW OVER TIME.

THE CITY SUPPORTS INCREASED STATE FUNDING FOR PUBLIC TRANSIT AND
TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATIONS.

102



PARKS & RECREATION
THE CITY SUPPORTS THE CONTINUED FUNDING OF THE PARKS AND RECREATION TRUST
FUND GRANT PROGRAM (PARTF GRANTS).

THE CITY SUPPORTS THE CONTINUATION OF ALLOCATIONS FOR THE RECREATIONAL
TRAILS GRANT PROGRAM (RTP GRANT).

THE CITY SUPPORTS THE CONTINUED FUNDING OF THE LAND AND WATER TRUST FUND
GRANT PROGRAM (LWCF GRANTS).

THE CITY SUPPORTS THE CAROLINA THREAD TRAIL AND THE CATAWBA LAND
CONSERVANCY IN THEIR EFFORTS TO CONSTRUCT TRAILS CONNECTING SPENCER
MOUNTAIN THROUGH LOWELL TO THE DANIEL STOWE BOTANICAL GARDEN. 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT & HOUSING
THE CITY SEEKS LEGISLATION THAT PROVIDES ADDITIONAL TOOLS AND FINANCIAL
RESOURCES TO ADDRESS SAFE AND AFFORDABLE HOUSING.

THE CITY SEEKS FINANCIAL RESOURCES FOR PROGRAMS AND PARTNERSHIPS THAT
ADDRESS HOMELESSNESS.

THE CITY SUPPORTS THE ADOPTION OF THE UNIFORM PARTITION OF HEIRS PROPERTY
ACT, WHICH HAS THE POTENTIAL TO PUT MORE VACANT PROPERTY BACK INTO USE –
AND TO DO SO BY TREATING PROPERTY OWNERS FAIRER WITH FEWER COURT‐
ORDERED FORCED SALES AND WITH A STREAMLINED PROCESS TO SORT OUT
OWNERSHIP INTERESTS. THESE VACANT PROPERTY SITUATIONS ARE PARTICULARLY APT
TO ARISE IN PROPERTIES HANDED DOWN FROM ONE GENERATION TO ANOTHER
WITHOUT A FORMAL WILL LEFT BY THE ORIGINAL OWNER.

103



PUBLIC SAFETY
THE CITY SEEKS PUBLIC SAFETY GRANT FUNDING AND THE EXPANSION OF ALLOWABLE
USES.

IMPROVING POLICING WILL REQUIRE ADDITIONAL PUBLIC SAFETY GRANT FUNDING
AND MORE FLEXIBILITY IN ITS USES.
MORE EFFECTIVE AND EQUITABLE POLICING CAN BE ACHIEVED BY ADDITIONAL
FUNDING OF COMMUNITY POLICING PROGRAMS, AS WELL AS THE ALLOCATION OF
MORE FUNDS TOWARD ALTERNATIVE PROGRAMS THAT SEEK TO ADDRESS MENTAL
HEALTH CALLS AND OTHER ISSUES THROUGH NON‐ UNIFORMED PERSONNEL.

THE CITY SEEKS ADDITIONAL FUNDING FOR THE CONTINUED IMPROVEMENT OF THE
CHARLOTTE AREA URBAN AREA SECURITY INITIATIVE (UASI) COMMUNICATIONS SYSTEM IN
PARTNERSHIP WITH REGIONAL AND FEDERAL PARTNERS.

THE CITY SUPPORTS LEGISLATION PROVIDING ADDITIONAL POST‐EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS
TO PUBLIC EMPLOYEES THAT INCLUDES A FUNDING MECHANISM TO FULLY SUPPORT THE
COST AND LIABILITY OF THE BENEFIT, AND SUPPORTS THE STUDY OF EXISTING POST‐
EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS, SUCH AS SPECIAL SEPARATION ALLOWANCE PROGRAMS TO
ENSURE THAT THE LIABILITY OF PROVIDING THE BENEFIT IS NOT SOLELY BORNE BY THE
LAST EMPLOYER.

THE CITY SEEKS IMPROVED STATEWIDE FUNDING AND SUPPORT FOR LEO TRAINING
FOCUSED ON THE USE OF FORCE, MENTAL HEALTH, AND DE‐ESCALATION SKILLS.

HIGHLY PUBLICIZED INCIDENTS OF POLICE USE OF FORCE IN RECENT YEARS HAVE
UNDERSCORED THE NEED FOR ENHANCED AND EXPANDED LAW ENFORCEMENT
TRAINING.
IMPROVED TRAINING IS NEEDED TO BUILD TRUST AND LEGITIMACY IN THE COMMUNITY
WHILE SERVING THE PUBLIC IN A PROFESSIONAL AND EQUITABLE MANNER.
NUMEROUS STUDIES SHOW THAT ADDITIONAL AND EFFECTIVE TRAINING FOCUSED ON
CONFLICT DE-ESCALATION CAN SIGNIFICANTLY REDUCE POLICE USE OF FORCE.

THE CITY SUPPORTS INCREASED RESOURCES FOR THE NC DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
CRIMINAL JUSTICE STANDARDS DIVISION TO EXPEDITE THE ONBOARDING OF POLICE
RECRUITS.

104



COUNTY PRIORITY ISSUES
THE CITY OF LOWELL SUPPORTS PROJECTS AND INITIATIVES THAT PROVIDE OPPORTUNITIES
TO PARTNER WITH GASTON COUNTY TO IMPROVE EMPLOYMENT, ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT,
TRANSPORTATION, AND ADDRESS HOMELESSNESS.

THE CITY SEEKS TO PARTNER WITH GASTON COUNTY AND AREA NON‐PROFITS TO REDUCE
HOMELESSNESS.

THE CITY SEEKS TO PARTNER WITH GASTON COUNTY ON THE ACQUISITION AND
DEVELOPMENT OF ADDITIONAL PROPERTY FOR INDUSTRIAL USE AND JOB CREATION.

THE CITY SEEKS TO PARTNER WITH GASTON COUNTY ON MUTUALLY BENEFICIAL STUDIES
THAT INCLUDE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, TRANSPORTATION ISSUES, AND OTHER ITEMS
OF INTEREST.

THE CITY SEEKS TO CONTINUE TO PARTNER WITH GASTON COUNTY TO FUND AND
CONSTRUCT STRATEGIC UTILITY EXTENSIONS.

THE CITY SUPPORTS A COUNTYWIDE INITIATIVE TO PROVIDE NECESSARY FUNDING FOR
TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENTS THAT INCLUDES FUNDING FOR MASS TRANSIT.

THE CITY SEEKS TO PARTNER WITH GASTON COUNTY ON DOWNTOWN BEAUTIFICATION
EFFORTS, SPECIFICALLY IN PUBLICLY OWNED SPACES AND PUBLIC ARTWORK.

THE CITY SEEKS TO PARTNER WITH GASTON COUNTY TO INCREASE TRAVEL AND TOURISM
THROUGH CAPITAL PROJECTS AND STRATEGIC MARKETING.

THE CITY SEEKS TO CONTINUE CONTINUE INVESTING IN THE CATAWBA THREAD TRAIL
WITH THE CONNECTION TO SPENCER MOUNTAIN. 

105



City of Lowell

Regular City Council Meeting

Presentation of the Proposed Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Budget

Meeting

Tuesday, May 14, 2024, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

New Business Item: 6A

Reference File Presented By

To: Lowell Mayor and City Council

From: Scott Attaway, City Manager

Date: 4-29-24

Re: Presentation of the Proposed FY 2024-2025 Budget

The City Manager will present the Proposed FY 2024-2025 Budget.

106



City of Lowell

Regular City Council Meeting

Set Public Hearing for Adoption of the Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Budget Ordinance

Meeting

Tuesday, May 14, 2024, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

New Business Item: 6B

Reference File Presented By

To: Lowell Mayor and City Council

From: Scott Attaway, City Manager

Date: 4-29-2024

Re: Set Public Hearing for Adoption of the FY 24-25 Budget Ordinance

Please set a public hearing for June 11, 2024 at 6:00 p.m. for the adoption of the FY24-25 Budget Ordinance.

107



City of Lowell

Regular City Council Meeting

Set Public Hearing to Closeout the FY17 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Neighborhood

Revitalization Program

Meeting

Tuesday, May 14, 2024, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

New Business Item: 6C

Reference File Presented By

To: Scott Attaway

From: Cheryl Ramsey

Date: 04/29/24

Re: Public Hearing for the CDBG Closeout

A public hearing is needed to review and assess the performance of the City's FY17 Community Development Block
Grant (CDBG) Neighborhood Revitalization Program.  This will allow citizens to make their views known prior to the
submission of closeout information to the NC Dept. of Commerce.  The Public Hearing should be set for June 11, 2024
at 6pm.

108



City of Lowell

Regular City Council Meeting

Consideration of Interlocal Agreement with Town of McAdenville to Provide Water Service to Lowell

Elementary

Meeting

Tuesday, May 14, 2024, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

New Business Item: 6D

Reference File Presented By

Attachments

Interlocal Water Agreement Lowell Elementary Waterline_5_9_24.pdf

To: Lowell Mayor and City Council

From: Scott Attaway, City Manager

Date: 5-9-2024

Re: Interlocal Agreement with McAdenville to Provide Water Service to Lowell Elementary

The attached interlocal agreement authorizes Lowell to provide water service to Lowell Elementary, within
McAdenville's corporate limits.

109

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F6630e272d5e6000044ceb1ae%2FInterlocal%20Water%20Agreement%20Lowell%20Elementary%20Waterline_5_9_24.pdf?alt=media&token=960cbd59-e89e-4457-93eb-63876262c8f4
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F6630e272d5e6000044ceb1ae%2FInterlocal%20Water%20Agreement%20Lowell%20Elementary%20Waterline_5_9_24.pdf?alt=media&token=960cbd59-e89e-4457-93eb-63876262c8f4
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F6630e272d5e6000044ceb1ae%2FInterlocal%20Water%20Agreement%20Lowell%20Elementary%20Waterline_5_9_24.pdf?alt=media&token=960cbd59-e89e-4457-93eb-63876262c8f4


STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA  
COUNTY OF GASTON 
 
 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR  
THE PROVISION OF WATER SERVICE TO LOWELL ELEMENTARY 

SCHOOL  
 

THIS AGREEMENT shall be effective this ______  day of ________________, 2024 
and is hereby made by and between the City of Lowell, a North Carolina municipal 
corporation, hereinafter referred to as “Lowell” or the “City” and the Town of McAdenville, 
also a North Carolina municipal corporation, hereinafter referred to as “McAdenville”  or the 
“Town.” The Agreement provides as follows:  

 
 

WITNESSETH: 
 
WHEREAS, Lowell Elementary School is situated on a parcel of real property 

containing 22.36 acres, more or less, with a listed address of 1500 Power Drive, Lowell, North 
Carolina 28098, and a Gaston County Parcel ID number of 216023 (hereinafter the 
“Property”), which Property is situated within the municipal limits of the Town of 
McAdenville; and  

 
WHEREAS, as a result of age, materials of construction, and related circumstances and 

conditions, the waterline serving Lowell Elementary School is and has been corroding, 
potentially causing water quality and water pressure to be compromised; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Property and Lowell Elementary School are owned and/or operated 

by the Gaston County Board of Education; and  
 
WHEREAS, Gaston County, as agent or on behalf of the Gaston County Board of 

Education, has been awarded Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Fund Grant, as 
established in S.L. 2021-180 as part of the American Rescue Plan Act to provide funding for 
extension of a new waterline to serve Lowell Elementary School, and further desires to design 
and install a new waterline of approximately 420 LF of an 8-inch diameter line and related 
appurtenances to serve Lowell Elementary School. The County intends to run said new 
infrastructure along Saxony Drive, from the City or Lowell’s water main between Riverview 
Dr. and Beaunitt Rd. to Lowell Elementary School; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City of Lowell through its Utilities Department has available water 

system capacity to support Lowell Elementary School’s critical water need; and 
 
WHEREAS, Lowell and Gaston County have entered into a separate Interlocal 

Agreement relating to the costs of construction, dedication of the new waterline and related 
infrastructure, provision of water services, and the utility billing arrangements for such 
services provided to the Property and/or Lowell Elementary School; and  

 

110



 WHEREAS, the provision or water or other governmental services by a municipality 
to a property or customer within the jurisdictional limits or another municipality requires the 
consent or agreement of the municipality where the property or customer is situated; and  

 
WHEREAS, under Article 20 of Chapter 160A of the North Carolina General 

Statutes, as amended, cities and towns are authorized to enter into interlocal cooperation 
undertakings with each other for the contractual exercise by one unit of local government for 
the other unit of local government of any power, function, public enterprise, right, privilege, 
or immunity of such local governments.  

 
NOW, THEREFORE in consideration of the foregoing recitals, which are incorporated 

herein, the mutual covenants and conditions hereinafter set forth, the parties hereto agree for 
themselves, their successors and assigns, as follows: 

 
1. Purpose: The purpose of this Agreement is to set forth the terms and conditions 

under which Lowell will supply water to Lowell Elementary School, and to further 
provide for termination of services and/or for the ownership and disposition of the 
waterline in the event the property at 1500 Power Drive is no longer used for public 
educational purposes.  
 

2. Term: The Term of this Agreement shall begin on the date it is entered into and 
continue indefinitely, unless or until the property at 1500 Power Drive is no longer 
used for public educational purposes, as provided further herein.  
 

3. Agreement with respect to water services: Upon completion of the new waterline 
by Gaston County or its designated contractor, the parties agree that water services to 
Lowell Elementary shall be provided by the City of Lowell.  The City shall have the 
right and the obligation to provide regular utility billing for the provision of such 
water services, and any and all payments for such water services shall be made to and 
retained by the City of Lowell, subject to any conditions provided for in the Interlocal 
Agreement with Gaston County.  

 

4. Operation and Maintenance: Upon completion of construction and installation of 
the waterline, Lowell shall be solely responsible to operate, repair and maintain the 
line.  

 

5. Fees and costs: The City of Lowell shall not be charged or assessed any fees or 
charges by the Town for the provision of water services to Lowell Elementary, or for 
maintaining or locating the waterline in the location constructed and installed, 
including but not limited to tap fees, system development fees, or other fees or 
charges. Similarly, the Town of McAdenville shall not be charged or assessed any 
fees or charges by the City for the provision of water services to Lowell Elementary. 

 
6. Indemnification. To the fullest extent allowed by law, and so long as this Agreement 

remains in effect. Lowell shall indemnify and hold McAdenville harmless of and from 
any claims relating to or arising out of the provision of water to Lowell Elementary 
and for the costs of operating, maintaining, and repairing the waterline.   

111



 
7. Land Ownership: This Agreement shall have no effect on the ownership of 1500 

Power Drive, Lowell, North Carolina 28098, and a Gaston County Parcel ID number 
of 216023.   
 

8. Other governmental services: Except for and other than the provision of water 
services as provided for by this Agreement, the Town of McAdenville shall retain 
jurisdiction and governmental authority over the property known as 1500 Power 
Drive, Lowell, North Carolina 28098, Gaston Cunty Parcel ID 216023.  
 

9. Termination due to change in use: In the event that the property known as 1500 
Power Drive, Lowell, North Carolina 28098, Gaston County Parcel ID 216023 is no 
longer owned by the Gaston County Board of Education or is no longer used for public 
educational purposes, then the parties agree that Town of McAdenville may, at its 
sole election and discretion, terminate this Interlocal Agreement and thereafter supply 
and provide water to the Property. In the event the Town of McAdenville elects to 
terminate this Agreement as allowed by this paragraph, the City of Lowell shall shut 
off and cap the waterline. The City shall retain all ownership interests in the waterline 
and all easement rights allowing the line to remain as constructed and installed in its 
then-existing location. It is agreed that Lowell shall not be charged or assessed any 
fees or charges for maintaining the line in its then existing location and condition.  

 

10. No Joint Agency Established: No joint agency is to be established as a result of the 
execution of this Interlocal Agreement, and each party shall manage its own 
personnel, respectively, as necessary for the execution of this undertaking. 

 

11. Duplicate Originals:  This Agreement shall be executed by the parties hereto in 
duplicate originals, each of which when executed shall constitute one and the same 
Agreement. 

 

12. Invalid Terms:  Should any one or more of the provisions contained in this 
Agreement be held invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, the validity, 
legality, and enforceability of the remaining provisions contained in this Agreement 
shall not in any way be affected or impaired thereby, and this Agreement shall 
otherwise remain in full force and effect.  If any such provision is held to be invalid 
or unenforceable, then upon the request of either party, Lowell and McAdenville shall 
attempt in good faith to negotiate and agree upon a replacement provision. 

 

13. Counterparts:  This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, 
each of which when so executed and delivered shall be deemed an original. 

 

14. Notices:  Any notices required or permitted in this Agreement, including address 
changes, shall be made in writing and shall be made either by mailing registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, and postage prepaid, to the other party at the 
address shown herein for that party or at such different address for that party, notice 
of which has been properly given hereunder, or by personally delivering such notice 

112



to an officer or other party.  The notice, if mailed as provided for herein, shall be 
deemed given on the day of receipt or refusal to accept receipt, and if personally 
delivered, on the date of delivery.  The addresses are as follows: 

 

 
TO THE CITY OF LOWELL:   TO THE TOWN OF McADENVILLE 

NAME: Scott Attaway    NAME:  Lesley Dellinger   

ADDRESS: 101 W. First St.    ADDRESS: 163 Main Street 
                 Lowell, NC 28098 

        McAdenville, NC 28101 

 
15. Entire Agreement; Amendment: This instrument contains the entire Agreement 

between the parties, and no statement, oral or written, made by either party or agent of 
either party that is not contained in this Agreement shall be valid or binding.  This 
Agreement may not be amended, enlarged, modified, or altered, except in writing 
signed by the parties and endorsed hereon. 

 
16. Amendment or Termination:  This Agreement may be amended or terminated only 

by an instrument in writing executed by all parties hereto. 
 

17. Remedies in the Event of Default:  In the event of Default by a party to this 
Agreement, the other party may exercise all legal and equitable remedies to which it is 
entitled. 

 

18. Waiver:  No delay or omission by either party to exercise any right or power it has 
under this Agreement shall impair or be construed as a waiver of such right or power.  
A waiver by either party of any covenant or breach of this Agreement shall not 
constitute or operate as a waiver of any succeeding breach of that covenant or of any 
other covenant.  No waiver of any provision of this Agreement shall be effective unless 
in writing and signed by the party waiving the rights. 

 

19. Binding Nature and Assignment:  This Agreement shall bind the parties and their 
successors and permitted assigns.  McAdenville may assign this Agreement to any 
successor owner or operator of its water and/or sewer system.  Any other assignment 
attempted without the written consent of the other party shall be void. 

 

20. Governing Law and Jurisdiction:  North Carolina law shall govern the interpretation 
and enforcement of this Agreement, and any other matters relating to this Agreement 
(all without regard to North Carolina conflicts of law principles).  All legal actions or 
other proceeding relating to this Agreement shall be brought in a court sitting in Gaston 
County, North Carolina.  By execution of this Agreement, the parties submit to the 
jurisdiction of said courts and hereby irrevocably waive any and all objections that they 
may have with respect to venue in any court sitting in Gaston County, North Carolina. 

 

113



21. Dispute Resolution: In addition to and prior to litigation, the parties shall endeavor to
settle disputes first by negotiation between the parties, and, if negotiation is
unsuccessful, then by non-binding mediation. Demand for mediation shall be filed in
writing with the other party to this Agreement. A demand for mediation shall be made
within a reasonable time after the claim, dispute, or other matter in question has arisen.
In no event shall the demand for mediation be made after the date when institution of
legal or equitable proceedings based on such claim, dispute, or other matter in question
would be barred by the applicable statute of repose or limitations.

22. Titles of Sections:  The section headings inserted herein are for convenience only and
are not intended to be used as an aid to interpretation and are not binding on the parties.

23. No Doctrine of Construction Against the Drafter:  All parties acknowledge and
stipulate that this Agreement is the product of mutual negotiation and bargaining and
that it has been drafted and reviewed by Counsel for all parties.  As such, the doctrine
of construction against the drafter shall have no application to this Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been duly executed as of 
the date set forth in the Preamble hereto. 

THE CITY OF LOWELL: THE TOWN OF McADENVILLE: 

By:  By:  
         City Manager Jim Robinette 

Mayor 

Date: ____________________________ Date: _____________________________ 

ATTEST: ATTEST: 
__________________________ 

City Clerk Chris Whelchel 
Town Attorney 

114



 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2-2024 

 

TO ALLOW FOR A VOLUNTEER AUXILIARY POLICE DEPARTMENT 

  

WHEREAS, PURSUANT TO North Carolina General Statutes 160A-282 (a) and (b), a  City 
may by ordinance provide for the organization of an auxiliary police department made up of volunteer 
members: and by enactment of an ordinance, may provide that while undergoing official training and 
while performing duties on behalf of the city pursuant to orders or instructions of the Chief of Police of 
the City of Lowell, auxiliary law-enforcement personnel shall be entitled to benefits under the North 
Carolina Workers-Compensation Act and to any fringe benefits for which such volunteer  personnel 
qualify. 

 

WHERAS, There is hereby established within the City of Lowell police department, as a division thereof, 
an auxiliary police division.  The auxiliary police division shall be a volunteer organization, whose 
members shall serve without compensation, composed of as many members as may from time to time be 
determined by the Chief of Police and approved by the City Manager. 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED this _____________ day of _________________, 2024. 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

___________________________    ____________________________ 

Cheryl Ramsey, City Clerk     Larry Simonds, Mayor 

 

115



City of Lowell

Regular City Council Meeting

Resolution to Discontinue Collection of Motor Vehicle Tag Tax beginning FY 2024-2025

Meeting

Tuesday, May 14, 2024, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

New Business Item: 6F

Reference File Presented By

Attachments

RS 07-2024 To Discontinue the Collection of a Motor Vehicle Tag Tax.pdf

To:  Scott Attaway, City Manager

From:  Lisa Nolen, Finance Director

Date:  4-30-2024

Re:  Resolution to Discontinue the Collection of a Motor Vehicle Tag Tax

As per Council's request, we have completed a resolution to discontinue the collection of a motor vehicle tag tax
beginning in FY 2024-2025. Once adopted, we will forward to Gaston County.

116

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F66310e41d5e6000044cf07d7%2FRS%2007-2024%20To%20Discontinue%20the%20Collection%20of%20a%20Motor%20Vehicle%20Tag%20Tax.pdf?alt=media&token=1f953fe6-68f2-4205-a82e-0efdcd0e2c98
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F66310e41d5e6000044cf07d7%2FRS%2007-2024%20To%20Discontinue%20the%20Collection%20of%20a%20Motor%20Vehicle%20Tag%20Tax.pdf?alt=media&token=1f953fe6-68f2-4205-a82e-0efdcd0e2c98
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F66310e41d5e6000044cf07d7%2FRS%2007-2024%20To%20Discontinue%20the%20Collection%20of%20a%20Motor%20Vehicle%20Tag%20Tax.pdf?alt=media&token=1f953fe6-68f2-4205-a82e-0efdcd0e2c98


RESOLUTION TO DISCONTINUE THE COLLECTION OF A MOTOR VEHICLE TAG 
TAX PURSUANT TO NORTH CAROLINA GENERAL STATUES 160A-213 

RESOLUTION 07-2024 

WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statues 160A-213 and 20-97 authorizes municipalities to 
assess an annual tag tax of up to $30.00 upon each registered motor vehicle resident within their 
corporate limits; and, 

WHEREAS, the City of Lowell Council currently assesses a $10 tag tax fee; and, 

WHEREAS, the City of Lowell Council desires to cease the collection of this tag tax fee; and, 

WHEREAS, the City of Lowell has entered into an agreement with Gaston County whereby 
Gaston County collects all taxes assessed by the City of Lowell; and, 

WHEREAS, it is necessary for the City Council to adopt a resolution to remove said tax and 
direct the Gaston County Tax Administrator to stop the collection of said tax; 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT BE RESOLVED, that the City of Lowell Council does hereby 
authorize the Mayor to sign this resolution for the purpose of formally removing an annual tag 
tax of $10.00 upon all motor vehicles residing within the Municipal Boundaries of the City of 
Lowell pursuant to North Carolina General Statues 160A—213 and 20-97, effective the 2024-
2025 budget year beginning July 1, 2024;  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Finance Director is hereby directed to forward a copy 
of this resolution to the Gaston County Tax Administrator with directions to cease the collection 
of the tax on behalf of the City of Lowell. 

 

Adopted this _________ day of May, 2024, 

 

 

 

______________________________________ ____________________________________ 

                     Mayor Larry Simonds         ATTEST: Cheryl Ramsey, City Clerk 

117



City of Lowell

Regular City Council Meeting

Amended Grant Project Ordinance

Meeting

Tuesday, May 14, 2024, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

New Business Item: 6G

Reference File Presented By

Attachments

GRANT PROJECT ORDINANCE DATED 12-04-2023.pdf

AMENDED GRANT PROJECT ORDINANCE - LOWELL WWTP PLANNING (SRP-W-ARP-0301).pdf

December 4, 2023 Special City Council Meeting Minutes.pdf

WRE Task Order Lowell WWTP Decommissioning and PS (004) Signed.pdf

October 10, 2023 Meeting Minutes.pdf

To:  Scott Attaway, City Manager

From:  Lisa Nolen, Finance Director

Date:  5-7-2024

Re:  Amended Grant Project Ordinance - Lowell WWTP Planning Grant (SRP-W-ARP-0301)

Please see the attached Amended Grant Project Ordinance for the Lowell WWTP Planning Grant. Also attached is the
signed contract with Withers Ravenel, current Grant Project Ordinance, and the minutes of the previously approved
Grant Project Ordinance.

118

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F663a4931740e38005527fbb8%2FGRANT%20PROJECT%20ORDINANCE%20DATED%2012-04-2023.pdf?alt=media&token=bb11d921-e88e-4a4e-8755-3cd41508f7c7
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F663a4931740e38005527fbb8%2FGRANT%20PROJECT%20ORDINANCE%20DATED%2012-04-2023.pdf?alt=media&token=bb11d921-e88e-4a4e-8755-3cd41508f7c7
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F663a4931740e38005527fbb8%2FGRANT%20PROJECT%20ORDINANCE%20DATED%2012-04-2023.pdf?alt=media&token=bb11d921-e88e-4a4e-8755-3cd41508f7c7
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F663a4931740e38005527fbb8%2FAMENDED%20GRANT%20PROJECT%20ORDINANCE%20-%20LOWELL%20WWTP%20PLANNING%20(SRP-W-ARP-0301).pdf?alt=media&token=c49cafa1-bcef-40c2-8a8e-df01b416f03a
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F663a4931740e38005527fbb8%2FAMENDED%20GRANT%20PROJECT%20ORDINANCE%20-%20LOWELL%20WWTP%20PLANNING%20(SRP-W-ARP-0301).pdf?alt=media&token=c49cafa1-bcef-40c2-8a8e-df01b416f03a
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F663a4931740e38005527fbb8%2FAMENDED%20GRANT%20PROJECT%20ORDINANCE%20-%20LOWELL%20WWTP%20PLANNING%20(SRP-W-ARP-0301).pdf?alt=media&token=c49cafa1-bcef-40c2-8a8e-df01b416f03a
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F663a4931740e38005527fbb8%2FDecember%204%2C%202023%20Special%20City%20Council%20Meeting%20Minutes.pdf?alt=media&token=f3a522a2-8e56-4513-84c6-ddea66ebd7f7
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F663a4931740e38005527fbb8%2FDecember%204%2C%202023%20Special%20City%20Council%20Meeting%20Minutes.pdf?alt=media&token=f3a522a2-8e56-4513-84c6-ddea66ebd7f7
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F663a4931740e38005527fbb8%2FDecember%204%2C%202023%20Special%20City%20Council%20Meeting%20Minutes.pdf?alt=media&token=f3a522a2-8e56-4513-84c6-ddea66ebd7f7
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F663a4931740e38005527fbb8%2FWRE%20Task%20Order%20Lowell%20WWTP%20Decommissioning%20and%20PS%20(004)%20Signed.pdf?alt=media&token=5f0c211d-858f-4e6f-a7f1-88636a4cd0d8
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F663a4931740e38005527fbb8%2FWRE%20Task%20Order%20Lowell%20WWTP%20Decommissioning%20and%20PS%20(004)%20Signed.pdf?alt=media&token=5f0c211d-858f-4e6f-a7f1-88636a4cd0d8
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F663a4931740e38005527fbb8%2FWRE%20Task%20Order%20Lowell%20WWTP%20Decommissioning%20and%20PS%20(004)%20Signed.pdf?alt=media&token=5f0c211d-858f-4e6f-a7f1-88636a4cd0d8
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F663a4931740e38005527fbb8%2FOctober%2010%2C%202023%20Meeting%20Minutes.pdf?alt=media&token=33f6c209-a7d8-4746-9102-4752803aaf83
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F663a4931740e38005527fbb8%2FOctober%2010%2C%202023%20Meeting%20Minutes.pdf?alt=media&token=33f6c209-a7d8-4746-9102-4752803aaf83
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F663a4931740e38005527fbb8%2FOctober%2010%2C%202023%20Meeting%20Minutes.pdf?alt=media&token=33f6c209-a7d8-4746-9102-4752803aaf83


119



120



CITY OF LOWELL 
WASTEWATER PRE-CONSTRUCTION PLANNING GRANT 

AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT GRANT 
PROJECT# SRP-W-ARP-0301 

AMENDED GRANT PROJECT ORDINANCE 

Be it ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Lowell, North Carolina, that pursuant to section 13.2 of 

Chapter 159 of the General Statutes of North Carolina, the following Grant Project Ordinance is hereby 

adopted. 

 
Section 1: The Project authorized is the Wastewater Pre-Construction Planning project (grant project 

number SRP-W-ARP-0301) to be to be financed by the federal American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) grant 

funds awarded to the City of Lowell by the North Carolina Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) 

Division of Water Infrastructure (DWI). 

 
Section 2: The officers of this unit are hereby directed to proceed with the grant project within the 

terms of the board resolution, grant documents, the rules and regulations of the Division of Water 

Infrastructure (DWI), and the budget contained herein. 

 
Section 3: The following amounts are appropriated for the project revenues: 

 
ARPA Grant Proceeds $   400,000 
Local Funds $   188,000 

 
Total $   588,000 

 
Section 4: The following amounts are appropriated for the project expenses: 

 
Engineering and Administration Services $   588,000 

 
Total $   588,000 

 
Section 5: The finance officer is hereby directed to maintain within the Wastewater Pre-Construction Grant 

Fund sufficient specific detailed accounting records to satisfy the requirements of the grantor agency, the 

grant agreements, and federal regulations. 

 
Section 6: Funds may be advanced from the Water & Sewer Fund for the purpose of making payments as 

due. Reimbursement requests should be made to the State grantor agency in an orderly and timely manner. 

Compliance with all federal and state procurement regulations is required. 

 
Section 7: The finance officer is directed to report, on a quarterly basis, on the financial status of each project 

element in section 4 and on the total grant revenues received or claimed. 

 
Section 8: The Budget Officer is directed to include a detailed analysis of past and future costs and revenues 

on this capital project in every budget submission made to this board. 

121



Section 9: Copies of this grant project ordinance shall be furnished to the Clerk, the Budget Officer, and the 

Finance Officer for direction in carrying out this project. 

 
 
 

Adopted this the _____ day of ____________, 2024 at the City of Lowell, North Carolina. 
 
 
 
 
       
 __________________________________                           _ 
        ________________________________ 

Larry Simonds, Mayor 
                                            
 

ATTEST: 

 

 

______________________________                                    

Cheryl Ramsey, City Clerk 
 

122



123



124



125



126



201 S. Tryon Street, Suite 800 Charlotte, NC 28202
t: 919.469.3340 | www.withersravenel.com | License No. F 1479

Asheville | Cary | Greensboro | Pittsboro | Raleigh | Southern Pines | Wilmington

October 16, 2023

Scott Attaway, City Manager
City of Lowell
101 W. First Street
Lowell, North Carolina 28098

RE: Task Order 1
WWTP Decommissioning and Pump Station
Lowell, North Carolina
WR Project No. 23 0752 001

Dear Mr. Attaway,

WithersRavenel is pleased to provide Task Order 1 for the City of Lowell On Call for the decommissioning
of the City�s WWTP and design and construction of a pump station and force main. We look forward to
working with you on this project. If you have any questions or concerns about this proposal, please do not
hesitate to call me at the number listed below.

Sincerely,

WithersRavenel 

Chris Rosenboom, PE
Director of Charlotte, Utilities
CRosenboom@withersravenel.com
Ph:919.678.3782

Attachment:
Task Order 1

127



City of Lowell � Task Order No. 1 WR Project No.23 0752
October 16, 2023 Page 1

City of Lowell 
Task Order No. 1 

Lowell WWTP Decommissioning and Pump Station 

A. Preliminary Matters
This Task Order is hereby included as an addition to and incorporated as part of the Agreement
BetweenOwner and Engineer for Engineer Services, TaskOrder Edition signed July 21, 2023 between
the City of Lowell (�Owner�) and WithersRavenel, Inc. (�Engineer�).

B. Project Description
Listed below is a summary of key aspects of the project based on our discussions and preliminary
research. Refer to the Scope of Services and Additional Services/Exclusions for further detailed
information. The project shall include services through final design (excluding services during bid and
construction) for:

 New wastewater pump station at the City�s WWTP site. The size is to be determined as part of
this agreement.

 New wastewater force main conveying the City�s wastewater flows from the new pump station
to a metering manhole located generally near the intersection of Hickory Grove Road and
Lakeview Drive in McAdenville.

 Upgrades to Two River Utilities (TRU) existing pump station located at the location indicated on
the figure below to accommodate the new flows from the City of Lowell.

For the purposes of this agreement and any subsequent agreements the following references shall
apply:

1. North Carolina Department of Transportation shall be known as �NCDOT�;
2. US Army Corps of Engineers shall be known as �USACE�;
3. North Carolina Department of Environmental Quality shall be known as �NCDEQ�;

Given the recent market conditions we consider it important to address a typical component of our
design services which includes developing an opinion of probable cost for construction of the project.
Our cost opinions for construction are made on the basis of current labor and material prices and our
collective experience and qualifications, and represent�s our professional judgment as an experienced
professional familiar with projects of the type described in this Agreement. It is important to note
however, that we have no control over the resources provided by construction contractors to meet
contract schedules, nor over the amount or reasonableness of bids or actual construction costs, and
we cannot and do not guarantee the proposals, bids or actual costs or schedules will not vary
significantly from opinions of probable costs or time prepared by our firm. Our recent experience has
been that bidders on public infrastructure projects have been limited which in turn results in higher
bid prices than can be reasonably estimated or forecasted. We are constantly monitoring bids
received for infrastructure projects and we work to incorporate the most recent bid information, unit
costs, etc. that are applicable into our cost opinions.

If at any time the Client wishes greater assurances as to schedules or the amount of any costs, after
presentation to the Client for review, we will be agreeable to assist the Client to employ an
independent cost estimator, scheduling consultant, or other third party to make such determination.

128



City of Lowell � Task Order No. 1 WR Project No.23 0752 001
October 16, 2023 Page 2

C. Timeline for Services
Engineer will begin work upon receipt of executed Agreement and written notice to proceed from the
Owner. Estimated timeframe(s) for the basis of the services described in the Scope of Services are
shown below.

Milestone Time Frame

Submittal of Engineering Report (ER) November 15, 2023

Completion of Field Investigations, Including
Survey, SUE, Geotechnical, and Environmental December 15, 2023

60% Design Submittal March 15, 2024

Final Bid Package Submittal June 16, 2024

4. From the milestone time frames and factoring in variability in the approval process, Engineer
estimates the total project timeframe for the Scope of Services to be 10 months.

5. The estimated timeframe(s) may be impacted by, among other things:

a. Timeliness and additional permit and/or plan reviews of review agencies;
b. Timeliness and accuracy of information provided by the Owner and Owner consultants.

6. If available, opportunities to adjust these estimated timeframes can be discussed. Implementation
of agreed upon adjustments may result in adjustments to Engineer fees.

7. Certain tasks, such as reviews and approvals, are performed by third parties, including
governmental agencies, over which neither Owner nor Engineer have control or responsibility. As
such, neither party is responsible for delays or the resulting cost impacts caused by third parties.

D. Scope of Services
Engineer shall provide the services identified under each task below as its Basic Services under the
Task Order.

Task 1  Project Management

Consultant shall manage the project by:

A. Keeping the Client regularly informed of progress, providing over sight of the production
tasks and managing the monthly billing and invoicing for the project.

B. Perform a site visit documenting the existing field conditions, identify any constructability
issues, verify measurements, and note any project requirements.

C. Evaluate available documentation of the infrastructure including previously collected GIS
data, as builts and previous studies.

D. Prepare maps and worksheets to facilitate the necessary fieldwork and data gathering related
to the project.

E. Schedule a kickoff meeting with Client to determine the acceptable methods of construction,
determine the availability of needed data, determine the availability of Client specifications
and construction details, and develop a project schedule for construction.

Deliverables
 Kick Off Meeting

 Site Visit

129



City of Lowell � Task Order No. 1 WR Project No.23 0752 001
October 16, 2023 Page 3

Task 2  Preliminary Engineering Report

Consultant shall perform the following services:

A. Consultant will review provided project information from the Client, the funding application,
funding award, funding budget, and develop a basis of design for the project conforming to
the NCDWI award and conditions.

B. Consultant will prepare the ER in accordance with the �Guidance for the Preparation of
Engineering Reports and Environmental Information Documents for Collection System
Projects� as published by NCDWI which will include the following information:

1. Executive Summary

2. Current/Future Situation

3. Need and Purpose

4. Alternative Analysis (Alternative Description/Present Worth Analysis)

5. Proposed Project Description

6. Financial Analysis

C. Consultant will submit the ER to the NCDWI for review.

D. Consultant will incorporate NCDWI review comments and resubmit ER to NCDWI for
approval.

E. Consultant will provide (1) copy of the approved ER to the Client.

Deliverables
 ER Submittal to NCDWI

 ER Hard Copy to Client

Task 3  Flow Analysis

A. The Consultant will analyze existing and future wastewater inflows for the purpose of sizing
pumps, force main, and other appurtenances.

B. A meeting will be held with City staff to determine which parcels may be developed within
the 20 year study period. This discussion will be based on the Client�s current
comprehensive plan.

C. A GIS map of future growth parcels will be developed by the Consultant and provided to the
City to document the growth area estimates determined at the meeting.

D. Current zoning will be used to estimate future wastewater flows generated for identified
growth parcels.

E. Existing flows from two years� worth of WWTP DMR�s will be analyzed to estimate current
average daily flows and peak daily flows. Available local rain gauge information will be
utilized to identify wet weather related peaks for the historical inflows.

F. A draft technical memorandum will be prepared by the Consultant and submitted to the
Client documenting existing and future flow estimates. The memorandum will also provide
preliminary recommendations for pump sizing and possible provisions for future pump station
upgrades/expansion.

130



City of Lowell � Task Order No. 1 WR Project No.23 0752 001
October 16, 2023 Page 4

Task 4  Field Investigations

A. Topographic Survey � Consultant will provide topographic survey of the project areas.
Topographic survey shall include:

1. The Proposed Force Main Corridor to be Survey is identified as a 50� width on center of
the proposed Alignment.

2. Horizontal control will be based on NC State Grid, NAD�83(2011);
3. Vertical control will be based on NAVD�88;
4. Locate existing property corners as may be found on the subject property, and property

corners on adjacent properties as may be necessary to help reestablish the boundary of
the subject property;

5. Conventional survey will be completed using spot grades at approximate 50� intervals
and/or LiDAR mapping using UAS (Unmanned Air System). Agreement to this proposal
will constitute permission to fly the UAS over the project site and properties;

6. Contours will be mapped at a 1� foot interval;
7. Includes locating top and bottom of slopes and any change in the slope lines.
8. Includes survey of roadways as shown in the corridor.
9. Locate all visible and obvious site improvements such as roadways, drives, walkways,

signs, parking spaces, roadway markings, etc.;
10. Storm and Sanitary Sewer will be located to include top and invert elevations, pipe sizes

and types, where such determinations are possible;
11. A minimum of 2 project benchmarks will be set and identified in the mapping;
12. Sub surface utilities will be located based on observation of visible and obvious surface

features and SUE Level B Designations to be applied by WR or NC811.
13. Location of tree lines. Does not include the location of individual trees within wooded

areas;
14. Location of the limits of jurisdictional wetlands and streams to be flagged by others;
15. Topographic mapping will be competed to a scale to be determined by client�s engineer

and will be delivered as a digital CAD file in AutoCAD .dwg format with associated signed
and certified survey report;

B. Easement Exhibit Maps Consultant will prepare an easement exhibit map and Legal
Description body for each temporary and permanent easement as may be required for the
project;

1. This Project is assuming Seven (7) affected parcels along the proposed Alignment in Lump
Sum pricing.

2. Horizontal control to be based on NC State Grid, NAD�83(2011);
3. Locate existing property corners as may be found on the subject property within which

the easement(s) will be located, and property corners on adjacent properties as may be
necessary to help reestablish the boundary of the subject property;

4. Map will be suitable for attachment to a deed (to be prepared by others) for recording;
5. Survey will be completed to N.C.G.S. 47 30 standards for an exhibit map and will not be

suitable for recording as a stand alone map;
6. Points where new permanent easement lines cross existing property lines will be set using

18� long, 5/8� iron pipes.

C. Subsurface Utility Engineering (SUE)

Level B SUE Consultant will use both Electromagnetic (EM) and Ground Penetrating Radar
(GPR) to designate underground utilities within the proposed corridor, as shown on the
attached maps. All utilities designated will be marked using the APWA guidelines with
marking paint and/or pin flags. At the conclusion of the field work, a detailed field sketch will

131



City of Lowell � Task Order No. 1 WR Project No.23 0752 001
October 16, 2023 Page 5

be provided to the survey crews to collect all of the designated utilities and import them into
AutoCAD.

Level A SUE Test Holes as needed to determine information such as size, depth, and
material on specific utilities designated during the Level B SUE investigation. All information
will be incorporated into Test Hole Forms and provided to the client at the conclusion of the
project. The number of Test Holes can be decided upon the completion of the Level B SUE
investigation. In addition, all test hole locations will be conventionally surveyed to obtain
accurate Northing, Easting, and Pipe Elevation.

D. Environmental Investigations

Wetland Delineations: The consultant will obtain preliminary site information, including
aerial photos, USGS Quadrangle Maps, Gaston County Soil Survey, Gaston County GIS data,
prior to conducting site visit. A site review will be performed to determine if the project site
contains jurisdictional wetlands, streams and riparian buffers. Jurisdictional wetlands will be
determined using criteria set forth in the 1987 US Army Corps of Engineers (USACE)
Wetlands Delineation Manual and applicable Regional Supplement. Streams will be assessed
using criteria set forth in the NC Division of Water Quality Identification Methods for the
Origins of Intermittent and Perennial Streams (2005). The consultant will delineate all
jurisdictional wetlands and starting point of streams in the field using sequentially numbered
Wetland Delineation flagging. Wetland flags and stream start point flags will be located using
Trimble GPS unit. GPS data will be used to prepare exhibits for wetland report.

Preliminary Survey for Federally and State Listed Threatened & Endangered Species: The
consultant will complete a review of literature and data for the NCDEQ, USFWS, and NCNHP
to determine listed species known to have ranges extending into Gaston County that are
likely to occur with the project. Conduct a pedestrian survey of the project study area to
document vegetative communities and determine presence/absence of potential habitat for
listed species. A pedestrian survey of the potential habitat within the project study area will
be conducted to determine the presence of protected species and/or potential habitat in
which protected species may occur. GPS will be used to locate any occurrences of listed
species observed during the pedestrian survey. A brief letter report documenting the
findings of the survey, including Biological Conclusions for �effect� determinations on listed
species will be prepared.

E. Geotechnical Investigations � Consultant, through a subconsultant, shall provide geotechnical
soil borings to establish existing soil conditions at up to 4 locations selected along the project
alignment. Locations shall include the selected site of the new pump station, along with
locations at which trenchless pipe installation is proposed.

Task 5  Design and Permitting Services

Based on the data and other information developed as part of the preceding Tasks, Consultant will
perform the design services that include the following sub tasks.

A. Conduct a review of compiled data including geotechnical and environmental data, surveys,
and SUE.

B. Evaluate collected data to determine appropriate methods of construction.

C. Consultant will consider the necessary logistics for maintaining WWTP operations during
construction of a new pump station. Design considerations will reflect efforts to minimize
interruptions to operations.

D. Consultant will review permitting requirements likely to be required.

132



City of Lowell � Task Order No. 1 WR Project No.23 0752 001
October 16, 2023 Page 6

E. Once the above has been completed, Consultant will meet with the Client to discuss the
design and construction approach options identified with a goal of determining the design
approach.

F. Prepare 30% Plans: Plans will focus primarily on the location of a new pump station on the
WWTP site, as well as routing of the new force main. A preliminary site plan for the new
pump station will be provided to illustrate the location of the wet well, valve vault, electrical
building, etc., as well as a conceptual plan for tying in the existing headworks into the design.

G. 30% Plans will be submitted to the City for review and a meeting scheduled to go over any
review comments that the City has.

H. A preliminary Engineer�s Opinion of Probable Construction Costs (EOPC) will be developed
and submitted with the 30% Design.

I. Prepare 60% Plans/Technical Specification Table of Contents: Plans will include a cover,
general notes, plan sheets, project specific details and standard project details for the new
pump station, upgrades to the existing pump station, and new force main. Draft front end
documents (EJCDC) will be developed for the project in addition to a table of contents for
technical specifications. Comments from the 30% Design review will be reflected in the 60%
design.

J. 60% Plans will include preliminary electrical designs for both the new pump station and the
proposed pump station upgrade. Pump selection and generator sizing will be included.

K. 60% Plans will include profile drawings for the new force main.

L. 60% Plans will be submitted to the City for review and a meeting scheduled to go over any
review comments that the City has.

M. A revised Engineer�s Opinion of Probable Construction Costs (EOPC) will be developed and
submitted with the 60% Design.

N. Prepare 90% Plans/Technical Specifications: Contract Documents reflecting review
comments in the 60% stage from the Client.

O. A revised Engineer�s Opinion of Probable Construction Costs (EOPC) will be developed and
submitted with the 60% Design.

P. 90% Plans will be submitted to the City for review and a meeting scheduled to go over any
review comments that the City has.

Q. Coordinate design efforts with NCDEQ and any other permitting agency. Consultant shall
submit and obtain all necessary permits, possibly including.

 NCDOT R/W Encroachment Agreement

 NCDEQ Authorization to Construct

 NCDEQ DLQ Erosion Control Permit

 Floodplain/Stream Buffer Encroachment (excludes 401/404 permits)

All submittal, review, or permitting fees associated with the Project will be paid for by the
Consultant. Consultant will address two rounds of comments (make two submittals) for each
permit application.

R. Final (Bid) Plans/Documents: Contract Documents will be developed by the Consultant
reflecting review comments in the 90% stage from the Client. The final bid documents will
include all required documents for bidding the project, including:
Pertinent study information, including reports, and copies of all permits secured
Signed and sealed construction drawings
Pertinent technical specifications

133



City of Lowell � Task Order No. 1 WR Project No.23 0752 001
October 16, 2023 Page 7

Front end contract documents

Task 6  Grant/Funding Assistance

Upon receipt of written authorization from the Client, Consultant will provide the following funding
administration tasks during the preconstruction phase of the project:

A. General Administration and Financial Management

1. Attend the project kick off meeting with NCDWI to review ARPA funding requirements.

2. Set up Dual Filing System (hardcopy and digital) for the Client�s funded project, to be kept
and maintained at the Client�s location. Work with Client project designees to ensure dual
files stay current and comprehensive.

3. Assist the Client in completing NCDWI paperwork including state assurances, progress
reports, monitoring report forms, and others as required by NCDWI for the project.

4. Assist the Client in requisition payment requests and compile necessary supporting
documentation for the Client to review, execute, and submit to NCDWI.

5. Act as liaison between the Client and NCDWI.

6. Provide ongoing technical assistance regarding ARPA regulations and NCDWI
requirements.

7. Assist the Client in close out procedures and paperwork.

B. Project Implementation

1. Provide oversight and guidance in preparation for procurement procedures in accordance
with DWI requirements and applicable federal and state regulations.

2. Assist the Client in complying with regulations regarding property acquisitions and
easements, if necessary.

3. Work with the Client to ensure compliance with all NCDWI guidelines during design.

E. Additional Services
Services that are not included in the Scope of Services or are specifically excluded from this Proposal
(see below) shall be considered Additional Services if those services can be performed by Consultant
and its agents if requested in writing by the Owner and accepted by Engineer. Additional services shall
be paid by the Client in accordance with the Fee & Expense Schedule. The exclusions are described
below but are not limited to the following:

General

o Any work previously provided in other
proposals;

o Any other services not specifically listed within
the Scope of Services.

o Any/all services during bidding and
construction.

Geomatics Services

o Tree survey/cover report by Registered
Forester;

o Surveys for off site improvements;
o Platting services;
o Plot Plans;
o ALTA Surveys;
o GIS mapping services;
o Construction staking
o Building staking;
o As built (record drawing) surveys;

Environmental Services

o Historic Resources Survey;
o Phase I & II ESA�s;

134



City of Lowell � Task Order No. 1 WR Project No.23 0752 001
October 16, 2023 Page 8

Offsite/Specialty

o Development agreements;
o Homeowner association documents;
o Utility allocation agreements;
o Preparation of electronic file suitable for GPS
machine control;

o Expert witnesses;

Planning/Studies

o Entitlement services;
o Variance and Quasi Judicial processes;
o Traffic Impact Analysis;
o Signalization Studies;
o Hydrant flow determination and hydraulic
analyses;

o Existing sewer hydraulic analyses;
o City or regulatory approvals;
o Special & Conditional Use Permits;

Services During Construction

o Bidding/negotiation services;
o Pay application reviews;
o Change order reviews;
o Shop Drawing review;
o RFI�s during bidding;
o Construction administration;
o Construction management;
o Dry utility coordination/design;
o NPDES monitoring/reporting;
o Loan draw certifications;
o Bonds and Bond Estimates;
o Record drawings/as builts;
o Engineer Certifications;
o O&M/SWMP Manuals;

Stormwater Services

o Stormwater Management Plan;
o Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SPPP)
update or revision;

o Secondary containment designs;
o SCM design;
o Culvert design;
o Dam inspection, engineering, or analysis;
o Dam breach analysis;
o Flood studies, floodplain permitting or
coordination with FEMA (such as for a LOMR
F, CLOMR/LOMR, etc.);

o Soil investigations (such as Seasonal high
water table determinations;

o Soil Media Mix Testing and Gradation
Certification;

o Downstream impact analysis;
o Nutrient calculations;
o Peak flow analysis;
o SCM conversion;
o Building permits and associated work;
o 401/404 permitting;
o Floodplain Development permit;
o Sign permitting;

Landscape Architecture Services
o Landscape layout and design;
o Irrigation design;
o Hardscape design;
o Enhanced landscape design beyond minimum
requirements;

o Entrance/signage feature design;
o Water feature and/or pool design;
o Renderings;
o Park improvements;
o Public art design or commissioning

Services by Others

o Architectural and MEP services;
o Structural Services;
o Arborist/Registered Forester Services;

Documents/Drawings

o Schematic Drawings as typically defined in the
architectural industry;

o Record (As Built) Plans;
o Lot Matrix;

Design Services

o Detailed Builder focused lot fit matrix;
o Detailed lot grading;
o LEED certification coordination;
o Signal design;

Project Management

o Adjacent property owner discussions;
o Neighborhood meetings;
o Attendance at formal regulatory meetings
unless noted above;

135



WithersRavenel
Our People. Your Success.

City of Lowell � Task Order No. 1 WR Project No.23 0752 001
October 16, 2023 Page 9

The above list is not all inclusive, and the Scope of Services defines the services to be provided by
Engineer for this project.

Both parties agree that certain tasks, e.g. reviews and approvals. are performed by governmental
agencies and that all parties have limited influence on these agencies to meet the prescribed deadlines
and that neither party is responsible for delays caused by governmental agencies.

F. Owner Responsibilities
The following are responsibilities of the Owner and Engineer will rely upon the accuracy and
completeness of this information:

1. General:

a. Provide representative for communications and decisions;
b. Coordination and designation of a primary contact for Architect, Contractor, and other

Consultants engaged by the Owner.
c. Preferred media platforms for communications with the Owner.
d. Provide in writing, any information as to Owner�s requirements for design.
e. Provide any information needed to complete the Project not specifically addressed in the

Scope of Services.
f. Provide all available information pertinent to the Project, including any GIS information,

reports, maps, drawings, and any other data relative to the Project.
g. Examine all proposals, reports, sketches, estimates and other documents presented by the

Engineer and render in writing decisions pertaining thereto within a reasonable period so as
not to delay the services of the Engineer.

h. Give prompt written notice to the Engineer whenever the Owner observes or otherwise
becomes aware of any defect in the Project.

i. Attend Owner meetings as required/needed.
j. Access to property for Engineer and subconsultants.
k. Discussions/negotiations with adjacent landowners.
l. Owner shall be responsible for acquisition of all off site utility and/or construction easements

required for this project.
m. Manage and coordinate the work of subconsultants/subcontractors that are not directly

subcontracted through the Engineer.
n. All submittal, review, or permitting fees associated with the project.
o. Any legal representation requiring an attorney at law.
p. Construction Specific
q. The Owner or an Owner representative will be responsible for arranging a pre construction

conference with the contractor, Owner, Engineer and other design professionals for the final
project coordination prior to the commencement of construction.

r. Providing direction and payments to contractors.
s. Coordination with contractor on scheduling or fulfillment of their responsibilities.
t. Distribution of approved plans and permits to contractor.

2. Construction Specific:

a. Arrange a pre construction conference with the contractor, Client, Consultant, and other
design professionals for the final Project coordination prior to the commencement of
construction;

b. Provide direction and payments to contractors;
c. Coordination with contractor on scheduling or fulfillment of its responsibilities;
d. Distribution of approved plans and permits to contractor.

Any changes to the alternatives or Project requirements after Engineer have begun work may
require additional fees.

136



WithersRavenel
Our People. Your Success.

City of Lowell � Task Order No. 1 WR Project No.23 0752 001
October 16, 2023 Page 10

G. Compensation for Services
A. Lump Sum Fee

Consultant proposes to provide the Scope of Services previously outlined on a lump sum fee
basis as described in the following table. Compensation shall not exceed the total estimated
compensation amount unless approved in writing by Client.

Task No. Task Name Fee
1 Project Management $18,000
2 Preparation of Preliminary Engineering Report $42,000
3 Flow Analysis $40,000
4A Topographic Survey $58,000
4C Subsurface Utility Engineering $35,000
4D Geotechnical Investigations $25,000
4E Environmental Investigations $18,000
5 Design and Permitting Services (Bid Documents) $303,000

TOTAL $539,000

1. Consultant may alter the distribution of compensation between individual phases noted
herein to be consistent with services rendered but shall not exceed the total Lump Sum
amount unless approved in writing by the Client.

2. The Lump Sum includes compensation for Consultant�s services. Appropriate amounts have
been incorporated in the Lump Sum to account for labor costs, overhead, profit, expenses,
and Consultant charges.

3. Consultant will bill the Client for subcontract expenses based on the unit prices charged for
each class of work that has been accepted plus 15%.

4. The portion of the Lump Sum amount billed for Consultant�s services will be based upon
Consultant�s estimate of the percentage of the total services completed during the billing
period.

B. Hourly Fee
Consultant proposes to provide the Scope of Services previously outlined on an hourly basis at
the current rate with an estimated budget as described in the following table, plus expenses.
Compensation shall not exceed the total estimated compensation amount unless approved in
writing by Client.

1. Client shall pay Consultant for Basic Services by an amount equal to the cumulative hours
charged to the Project by each class of Consultant�s personnel times Standard Hourly Rates

Task Number Task Name *Hourly Fee
Budget

4B Easement Maps $24,000

6 Grant/Funding Assistance $25,000

TOTAL $49,000

*These Tasks are presented as an hourly fee with a budget due to the difficulty in
estimating the hours required to adequately perform the task(s).

137



WithersRavenel
Our People. Your Success.

City of Lowell � Task Order No. 1 WR Project No.23 0752 001
October 16, 2023 Page 11

for each applicable billing class for all services performed on the Project, plus Reimbursable
Expenses and Consultant�s charges, ifany.

2. Consultant may alter the distribution of compensation between individual phases of the work
noted herein to be consistent with services rendered but shall not exceed the total estimated
compensation amount unless approved in writing byClient.

3. The Standard Hourly Rates charged by Consultant constitute full and complete compensation
for Consultant�s services, including labor costs, overhead, and profit; the Standard Hourly
Rates do not include Reimbursable Expenses or Consultant�s Consultants� charges.

4. Consultant�s estimate of the amounts that will become payable for specified services are only
estimates for planning purposes, are not binding on the parties, and are not the minimum or
maximum amounts payable to Consultant under theAgreement.

5. When estimated compensation amounts have been stated herein and it subsequently
becomes apparent to Consultant that the total compensation amount thus estimated will be
exceeded, Consultant shall give Client written notice thereof, allowing Client to consider its
options, including suspension or termination of Consultant 's services for Client 's
convenience. Upon notice, Client and Consultant promptly shall review thematter of services
remaining to be performed and compensation for such services. Client shall either exercise its
right to suspend or terminate Consultant 's services for Client 's convenience, agree to such
compensation exceeding said estimated amount, or agree to a reduction in the remaining
services to be rendered by Consultant, so that total compensation for such services will not
exceed said estimated amount when such services are completed. If Client decides not to
suspend Consultant 's services during the negotiations and Consultant exceeds the estimated
amount before Client and Consultant have agreed to an increase in the compensation due
Consultant or a reduction in the remaining services, then Consultant shall be paid for all
services renderedhereunder.

C. Fee Summary

The Client will pay Consultant for services and expenses in accordance with periodic invoices to
Client a final invoice upon completion of the services. Each invoice is due and payable in full upon
presentation to Client. Invoices are past due after 30 days. If the Project is reliant on State and/or
Federal Funds, then the Client will pay Consultant for all invoices within three (3) banking days of
receipt of those State or Federal Funds. The client is ultimately

Task Number Fee Type
Estimated
Fee/Budget

1 3 4A,4C,4D,4E,5 Lump Sum $539,000

4B,6 Hourly $49,000

TOTAL $588,000

138



WithersRavenel
Our People. Your Success.

City of Lowell � Task Order No. 1 WR Project No.23 0752 001
October 16, 2023 Page 12

H. Acceptance
This Task Order is valid 60 days from the date it is transmitted to theOwner. Receipt of an executed
copy of this Task Order will serve as the written Agreement between WithersRavenel and the City
of Lowell. All Exhibits identified after the signature blocks below, are incorporated herein and are
integral parts of the Task Order.

OFFERED BY: ACCEPTED BY:

WithersRavenel CITY OF LOWELL

Attachments:
Attachment A ARPA Federal Contract Provisions
Attachment B Debarment Certification
Attachment C E Verify Affidavit

Signature Date Signature Date

Chris Rosenboom, PE
Name Name

Director of Utilities, Charlotte
Title Title

Signature Date

Ken Orie, PE
Name

Practice Area Lead, Utilities
Title

PREAUDIT STATEMENT: This instrument has been preaudited in the manner required by the Local
Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act (NC G.S. 159 28(a)).

Signature of Finance Officer:

Printed Name:

Date:

Scott Attaway

City Manager

10/17/2023

Lisa Nolen

10/17/2023



WithersRavenel
Our People. Your Success.

Attachment A � ARPA Federal Contract Provisions, Page 1 of 4

ATTACHMENT A

ARPA FEDERAL CONTRACT PROVISIONS

1. LEGAL REMEDIES PROVISION AND TERMINATION PROVISION

(As stated in 2CFRAppendix II to Part 200�Contract Provisions for Non Federal Entity Contracts Under Federal
Awards)

Contracts other than small purchases shall contain provisions or conditions which will allow for administrative,
contractual, or legal remedies in instances where contractors violate or breach contract terms, and provide for
such sanctions and penalties as may be appropriate. All contracts in excess of $10,000 shall contain suitable
provisions for termination by the grantee including the manner by which it will be effected and the basis for
settlement. In addition, such contracts shall describe conditions under which the contract may be terminated for
default as well as conditions where the contract may be terminated because of circumstances beyond the control
of the contractor.

Termination for Cause: Event of Default

a. CLIENT may terminate contract with written notice of violation or breach of contract provided,
however, that no such violation shall occur until the CLIENT has been given written notice of the
breach and thirty (30) days to cure haveelapsed.

b. CLIENT may terminate contract for default in performance provided, however, that no such default
shall occur until the CLIENT has been given written notice of the default and 30 days to cure have
elapsed

c. CLIENT may terminate contract for misrepresentation if any representation or warranty made by the
CONSULTANT in connection with the Contract or any information, certificate, statement, or report
heretofore or hereafter made shall be untrue or misleading in any material respect at the time made.

Remedies: If an Event of Default shall occur, the CLIENT shall have the following rights and remedies,
which are exercisable at the CLIENT�s sole discretion, and are cumulative, concurrent, and independent
rights

a. In the event that the CLIENT finds that it is inadvisable or impossible to continue the execution of the
project; or if CONSULTANT shall fail to fulfill in a timely and proper manner its obligations under this
Agreement; or, if CONSULTANT shall violate any of the covenants, agreements, or stipulations of this
Agreement; or if CONSULTANT becomes subject to a voluntary or involuntary adjudication of
bankruptcy or makes a general assignment for the benefit of creditors; then the CLIENT has the right
to terminate at any time this Agreement or any task or phase of work being performed herein by
providing thirty days written notice to CONSULTANT of such termination and specifying the effective
date of such termination; provided, however, that during such period of thirty (30) days CONSULTANT
shall have the opportunity to remedy such failures or violations to avoid such termination.

b. In the event of termination, as provided herein, CONSULTANT shall be paid for all services performed
and actual expenses incurred up to the effective date of the termination of services and any fees or
expenses post termination effective date that may be incurred associated with transitioning the work
to the CLIENT or the CLIENT�saffiliate.

140



WithersRavenel
Our People. Your Success.

Attachment A � ARPA Federal Contract Provisions Page 2 of 4

2. CONFLICT OF INTEREST

(2 CFR Part §200.318 General Procurement Standards): Interest of Members, Officers, Or Employees Of The
Recipient, Members Of Local Governing Body, Or Other Public Officials

No member, officer, or employee of the CLIENT, or its agents, no member of the governing body of the
locality in which the program is situated, and no other public official of such locality or localities who
exercises any functions or responsibilities with respect to the program during his tenure or for one year
thereafter, shall have any financial interest, either direct or indirect, in any contract or subcontract, or the
proceeds under this Agreement. Immediate family members of said members, officers, employees, and
officials are similarly barred from having any financial interest in the program. The CLIENT and
CONSULTANT shall incorporate, or cause to be incorporated, in all such contracts or subcontracts, a
provision prohibiting such interest pursuant to the purpose of this section.

3. INTEREST OF CONSULTANT AND EMPLOYEES

The CONSULTANT covenants that they presently have no interest and shall not acquire interest, direct or
indirect, in the project areas or any parcels therein or any other interest which would conflict in any manner
or degree with the performance of his services hereunder.

4. ACCESS TO RECORDS AND RECORD RETAINAGE CLAUSE

In general, all official project records and documents, including personal property and financial records,
adequate to identify and account for all costs pertaining to the Agreement and such other records as may
be deemed necessary by the CLIENT to assure proper accounting for all project funds, must be maintained
during the operation of this project and for a period of three (3) years following close out in compliance with
2 CFR 200.334 338, unless permission to destroy them is granted by the CLIENT. The North Carolina
Department of the Treasurer, the Comptroller General of the United States, and the North Carolina
Department of Environmental Quality, or any of their duly authorized representatives, shall have access to
any books, documents, papers, and records of the Administering Agency which are pertinent to the
execution of this Agreement, for the purpose of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions in
compliance with the above Rule.

5. PERSONNEL & SUBCONTRACTING

A. The CONSULTANT represents that they have, or will secure at their own expense, all personnel
required in performing the services under this Agreement. Such personnel shall not be employees
of the CLIENT.

B. All of the services required hereunder will be performed by the CONSULTANT or under their
supervision and all personnel engaged in the work shall be fully qualified and shall be authorized or
permitted under State and local law to perform such services.

C. None of the work or services covered by this Agreement shall be subcontracted without the prior
written approval of the CLIENT.

D. Any work or services subcontracted hereunder shall be specified by written contract or agreement
and shall be subject to each provision of this Agreement.

141



WithersRavenel
Our People. Your Success.

Attachment A � ARPA Federal Contract Provisions Page 3 of 4

6. RIGHTS TO INVENTIONS MADE UNDER A CONTRACT OR AGREEMENT

(As stated in 2CFRAppendix II to Part 200�Contract Provisions for Non Federal Entity Contracts Under Federal
Awards)

If the Federal award meets the definition of �funding agreement� under 37 CFR §401.2 (a) and the recipient
or subrecipient wishes to enter into a contract with a small business firm or nonprofit organization regarding
the substitution of parties, assignment or performance of experimental, developmental, or research work
under that �funding agreement,� the recipient or subrecipient must comply with the requirements of 37 CFR
Part 401, �Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit Organizations and Small Business Firms Under
Government Grants, Contracts and Cooperative Agreements,� and any implementing regulations issued by
the awarding agency.

7. LOBBYING CLAUSE

(As stated in 2CFRAppendix II to Part 200�Contract Provisions forNon Federal Entity Contracts Under Federal
Awards)

As required by 31 U.S.C. Section 1352, Byrd Anti Lobbying Amendment, Contractors that apply or bid for
an award exceeding $100,000 must file the required certification. Each tier certifies to the tier above that
it will not and has not used Federal appropriated funds to pay any person or organization for influencing or
attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, officer or employee
of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with obtaining any Federal contract,
grant or any other award covered by 31 U.S.C. 1352. Each tier must also disclose any lobbying with non
Federal funds that takes place in connection with obtaining any Federal award. Such disclosures are
forwarded from tier to tier, up to the non Federal award.

(1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned,
to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a
Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of
Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any federal
grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative, agreement, and the
extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan,
or cooperative agreement.

(2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee or any agency, a Member of
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned
shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in
accordance with its instructions.

This is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was made or
entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction
imposed by section 1352, title 31, U. S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be
subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.

142



WithersRavenel
Our People. Your Success.

Attachment A � ARPA Federal Contract Provisions Page 4 of 4

8. AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT (ARPA) CIVIL RIGHTS COMPLIANCE

(As stated in �Compliance and ReportingGuidance, State & Local Fiscal Recovery Funds�; U.S. Department of The
Treasury)

Recipients of Federal financial assistance from the Treasury are required to meet legal requirements relating
to nondiscrimination and nondiscriminatory use of Federal funds. Those requirements include ensuring that
entities receiving Federal financial assistance from the Treasury do not deny benefits or services, or
otherwise discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin (including limited English proficiency),
disability, age, or sex (including sexual orientation and gender identity), in accordance with the following
authorities: Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (Title VI) Public Law 88 352, 42 U.S.C. 2000d 1 et seq.,
and the Department's implementing regulations, 31 CFR part 22; Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of
1973 (Section 504), Public Law 93 112, as amended by Public Law 93 516, 29 U.S.C. 794; Title IX of the
Education Amendments of 1972 (Title IX), 20 U.S.C. 1681 et seq., and the Department's implementing
regulations, 31 CFR part 28; Age Discrimination Act of 1975, Public Law 94 135, 42 U.S.C. 6101 et seq.,
and the Department implementing regulations at 31 CFR part 23.

9. DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION (EXECUTIVE ORDERS 12549 AND 12689)

(As stated in 2CFRAppendix II to Part 200�Contract Provisions forNon Federal Entity Contracts Under Federal
Awards)

A contract award (see 2 CFR 180.220) must not be made to parties listed on the government-wide 
exclusions in the System for Award Management (SAM), in accordance with the OMB guidelines at 2 CFR 
180 that implement Executive Orders 12549 (3 CFR part 1986 Comp., p. 189) and 12689 (3 CFR part 1989 
Comp., p. 235), �Debarment and Suspension.� SAM Exclusions contains the names of parties debarred, 
suspended, or otherwise excluded by agencies, as well as parties declared ineligible under statutory or 
regulatory authority other than Executive Order 12549. 

(This space left intentionally blank)

143



WithersRavenel
Our People. Your Success.

Attachment B � Debarment Status Certification

ATTACHMENT B

DEBARMENT STATUS CERTIFICATION

This form must be attached and made a part of all contracts obligated by grantees and paid with federal funds.

By entering into this Agreement, the CONTRACTOR certifies that they nor any person or firm who has an
interest in the CONTRACTOR�s firm is a person or firm ineligible to be awarded Government contracts by
virtue of 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1), 2 CFR § 2424, 2 CFR § 180.220, and 40 U.S. Code § 3144, or if applicable, by
virtue of Section 3(a) of the Davis Bacon Act. No part of this Contract shall be subcontracted to any person
or firm ineligible for award of a Government contract by virtue of 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1), 29 CFR §5.12, 2 CFR §
2424, 2 CFR § 180.220, and 40 U.S. Code § 3144, or, if applicable, by virtue of Section 3(a) of the Davis
Bacon Act. The penalty for making false statements is prescribed in the U.S. Criminal Code, 18 U.S.C. 1001
and 18 U.S.C. 1010.

CONTRACTOR INFORMATION

WithersRavenel, Inc
(Authorized Signature) (Name of Contractor)

115 MacKenan Drive
(Street Address and/or PO Box)
Cary, NC 27511

(Date) (City, State, Zip Code)
Fed ID 56 1740520 / DUNS 604477039
(DUNS, Tax Identification or Social Security Number)

*******************************************************************************************

FOR FUNDING RECIPIENT USE ONLY

The Federal List of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement or Non procurement Programs
(www.sam.gov) and State of North Carolina Debarred Vendors List (http://ncadmin.nc.gov/government
agencies/procurement/contracts/debarred vendors) have been checked and the above contractor or
subcontractor has been determined to be eligible to participate in a federally assisted project. Attached is
the documentation proving eligibility (websites printout).

(Signature of Verifying Officer) (Local Government Name)

(Printed Name and Title) (Project Name)

(Date) (Project Number)

(Printed Name and Title)

144



Attachment A � Federal Contract Provisions, Supplementary Terms and Conditions Page | 1

Federal Debarment Search

https://sam.gov/content/home

145



Attachment A � Federal Contract Provisions, Supplementary Terms and Conditions Page |

146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



City of Lowell

Regular City Council Meeting

Discussion of Forensic Audit

Meeting

Tuesday, May 14, 2024, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

New Business Item: 6H

Reference File Presented By

To: Lowell Mayor and City Council

From: Scott Attaway, City Manager

Date: 5-8-2024

Re: Discussion of Forensic Audit

Mayor Simonds has requested this agenda item and would like to discuss a forensic audit of the City of Lowell from
2010 - current.

166



City of Lowell

Regular City Council Meeting

Consideration of Budget Amendment #13

Meeting

Tuesday, May 14, 2024, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

New Business Item: 6I

Reference File Presented By

Attachments

Budget Amendment #13 FY 2023-2024.pdf

To:  Scott Attaway, City Manager

From:  Lisa Nolen, Finance Director

Date:  May 7, 2024

Re:  Consideration of Budget Amendment #13

This is to receive funds for the FY 2022 Water AIA Grant. This is the final payment for this grant from FY 2022.

167

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F663a51e0740e380055281b85%2FBudget%20Amendment%20%2313%20FY%202023-2024.pdf?alt=media&token=12d45d73-0670-4b6d-ac39-d5cb833f624e
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F663a51e0740e380055281b85%2FBudget%20Amendment%20%2313%20FY%202023-2024.pdf?alt=media&token=12d45d73-0670-4b6d-ac39-d5cb833f624e
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F663a51e0740e380055281b85%2FBudget%20Amendment%20%2313%20FY%202023-2024.pdf?alt=media&token=12d45d73-0670-4b6d-ac39-d5cb833f624e


                                              
 

City Of Lowell 
Budget Amendment #13 

Budget Ordinance FY 23-24 
 
 BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Lowell, North Carolina, that the 
following amendment be made to the annual budget ordinance for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2024: 
 
Section 1: To amend the Water/Sewer Fund, estimated revenues are to be changed as follows: 
    
 Water/Sewer Fund: 
  Revenue:          
        Decrease Increase 
30-3303-0000 Water AIA Grant-FY 2022                                          $67,521.00 
 
  
This will result in an increase of $400,000.00 in the Water/Sewer Fund estimated revenues, bringing 
the revenues budgeted for FY 23-24 from $1,755,7093.24 to $2,155,709.24. 
 
 
Section 2:  To amend the General Fund, the appropriations are to be changed as follows: 
 
 Water/Sewer Fund: 
  Expenses: 
        Decrease Increase 
30-8200-0400 WWTP-Professional Services                           $67,521.00 
 
   
This amendment will result in an increase of $400,000.00 in the WWTP appropriations for 
Professional Services in FY 23-24 from $10,000.00 to $410,000.00. 
 
 
Section 3: Copies of this budget amendment shall be furnished to the Clerk of the City Council, and to 
the Budget Officer and the Finance Officer for their direction. 
 
Adopted this __________ day of May, 2024. 
 
 

____________________________ 
           Mayor 
Attest: 
 
____________________________ 
                   City Clerk 

168



City of Lowell

Regular City Council Meeting

Consideration of Budget Amendment #14

Meeting

Tuesday, May 14, 2024, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

New Business Item: 6J

Reference File Presented By

Attachments

Budget Amendment #14 FY 2023-2024.pdf

To:  Scott Attaway, City Manager

From:  Lisa Nolen, Finance Director

Date:  May 8, 2024

Re:  Consideration of Budget Amendment #14

Please see the attached Budget Amendment #14 to receive funds for the Township Grant from Gaston County.

169

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F663b6cf0740e3800552af631%2FBudget%20Amendment%20%2314%20FY%202023-2024.pdf?alt=media&token=80f81437-0940-4f9d-bd99-1005eae8b4bf
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F663b6cf0740e3800552af631%2FBudget%20Amendment%20%2314%20FY%202023-2024.pdf?alt=media&token=80f81437-0940-4f9d-bd99-1005eae8b4bf
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lowellnc%2Factions%2F663b6cf0740e3800552af631%2FBudget%20Amendment%20%2314%20FY%202023-2024.pdf?alt=media&token=80f81437-0940-4f9d-bd99-1005eae8b4bf


                                              
 

City Of Lowell 
Budget Amendment #14 

Budget Ordinance FY 23-24 
 
 BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Lowell, North Carolina, that the 
following amendment be made to the annual budget ordinance for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2024: 
 
Section 1: To amend the Water/Sewer Fund, estimated revenues are to be changed as follows: 
    
 General Fund: 
  Revenue:          
        Decrease Increase 
10-3300-0000 Township Grant                                                          $31,000.00 
 
  
This will result in an increase of $31,000.00 in the General Fund estimated revenues, bringing the 
revenues budgeted for FY 23-24 from $5,009,073.93 to $5,040,073.93. 
 
 
Section 2:  To amend the General Fund, the appropriations are to be changed as follows: 
 
 General Fund: 
  Expenses: 
        Decrease Increase 
10-6120-1501 CC-Maint. & Repair-Bldg/Grounds               $31,000.00 
 
   
This amendment will result in an increase of $31,000.00 in the Parks & Recreation appropriations for 
Community Center Maintenance & Repair-Building/Grounds in FY 23-24 from $5,000.00 to 
$36,000.00. 
 
 
Section 3: Copies of this budget amendment shall be furnished to the Clerk of the City Council, and to 
the Budget Officer and the Finance Officer for their direction. 
 
Adopted this __________ day of May, 2024. 
 
 

____________________________ 
           Mayor 
Attest: 
 
____________________________ 
                   City Clerk 

170


	RegularCityCouncilMeeting-2024-05-14.pdf
	horizon_agendalink_app.pdf
	Regular-City-Council-Meeting-04-9-2024-minutesdraft.pdf
	horizon_agendalink_app.pdf
	PR 02-2024 Public Works Week Proclamation.pdf
	PR 03-2024 Proclamation of National Police Week May 12-18, 2024 and Peace Officers Memorial Day May 15, 2024.pdf
	horizon_agendalink_app.pdf
	horizon_agendalink_app.pdf
	horizon_agendalink_app.pdf
	horizon_agendalink_app.pdf
	horizon_agendalink_app.pdf
	horizon_agendalink_app.pdf
	horizon_agendalink_app.pdf
	horizon_agendalink_app.pdf
	horizon_agendalink_app.pdf
	Town of Lowell_20240328_100850 (1).pdf
	Rezoning_ChoiceUSABeverageINC_2024March28 (1).pdf
	ORDINANCE NO 2-24 Rezoning Choice.pdf
	ORDINANCE NO. 2-2024
	AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE LOWELL DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LOWELL, NORTH CAROLINA


	horizon_agendalink_app.pdf
	Version 2.0 202022-08-30 - Spencer Mountain - Rezoning Plan.pdf
	ORDINANCE NO 3-24 Spencer Ridge DA Ordinance.pdf
	ORDINANCE NO. 3-2024
	AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE LOWELL DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LOWELL, NORTH CAROLINA


	Spencer Ridge - Development Agreement v9.pdf
	horizon_agendalink_app.pdf
	2024 Advocacy Agenda Revised Final 5_8_24.pdf
	horizon_agendalink_app.pdf
	horizon_agendalink_app.pdf
	horizon_agendalink_app.pdf
	horizon_agendalink_app.pdf
	Interlocal Water Agreement Lowell Elementary Waterline_5_9_24.pdf
	WITNESSETH:
	THE CITY OF LOWELL: THE TOWN OF McADENVILLE:

	02-2004 To Approve a Volunteer Auxiliary Police Department.pdf
	horizon_agendalink_app.pdf
	RS 07-2024 To Discontinue the Collection of a Motor Vehicle Tag Tax.pdf
	horizon_agendalink_app.pdf
	GRANT PROJECT ORDINANCE DATED 12-04-2023.pdf
	AMENDED GRANT PROJECT ORDINANCE - LOWELL WWTP PLANNING (SRP-W-ARP-0301).pdf
	December 4, 2023 Special City Council Meeting Minutes.pdf
	WRE Task Order Lowell WWTP Decommissioning and PS (004) Signed.pdf
	October 10, 2023 Meeting Minutes.pdf
	horizon_agendalink_app.pdf
	horizon_agendalink_app.pdf
	Budget Amendment #13 FY 2023-2024.pdf
	horizon_agendalink_app.pdf
	Budget Amendment #14 FY 2023-2024.pdf

